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Issue Details

I MERGER BY ABSORPTION OF YASH COMPOSTABLES LIMITED WITH YASH PAKKA LIMITED
Scheme Details (in short):

01/04/2020 [

Designated Stock Exchange: |BSE LIMITED |* Appointed Date:

High Court: [NATIONAL COMPANY LAW]* Name of Transferee/Resulting Company:  [YASH PAKKA LIMITED |
In case of l?en_1erger whether resulting company ) Name of Transferor/Demerged Company: |YASH COMPOSTABLES LI|\|
seeking listing:
Share Capital Details

Particulars No of Shares Type FV Amount (Rs.) Swap Ratio Remarks

[ Capital before the S v || [35240000 Il lEQUITY [l 110 || [352400000 Il 11:56.77 |

[New shares issued v || [2838500 Il [EUITY || 110 || 128385000 Il 11:56.77 [

[ Capital After the Sc v || [38078500 Il [EUITY || 110 || 380785000 Il 11:56.77 [

Add Row
Shareholding pattern As submitted by the Co. |30/06/2020 |
Category Pre Percentage(%) New Shares Issued Post Percentage(%)

Promoters 15880156 45.06 2810115 18690271.00 49.08
Public 19359844 54.94 28385 19388229.00 50.92
Custodian 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
Total 35240000 100 2838500 38078500 100

| Add Share Holding Pattern |

Networth Amount in Cr.

Pre [11662.99 | Post |11946.86 |

Number of company's involved in Scheme

Add Company

Documents Upload (As per Checklist) Delete Document

Choose File | No file chosen

*

Choose File | No file chosen
Choose File | No file chosen

1 Scanned copy of Covering Letter

Certified true copy of the resolution passed by
the Board of Directors of the company.
Certified copy of the draft Scheme of

3 Amalgamation / Arrangement, etc. proposed to
be filed before the NCLT.

2
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Valuation report from Independent Chartered
Accountant as applicable as per Para I(A)(4) of
Annexure | of SEBI Circular no.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017.
The valuation report shall be as per the format
given in Annexure |

Report from the Audit Committee recommending
the draft scheme taking into consideration,inter
alia, the aforesaid valuation report

Fairness opinion by Independent SEBI
Registered Merchant Banker

Shareholding pattern of all the companies pre
and post Amalgamation / Arrangement as per
the format provided under Regulation 31 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 ( with PAN &
without PAN Nos.)

Audited financials of the transferee/resulting and
transferor/demerged companies for the last 3
financial years (financials not being more than 6
months old) as per Annexure V. Please note
that for existing Listed Company, provide the last
Annual Report and the audited / unaudited
financials of the latest quarter (where it is due)
accompanied mandatorily by the Limited Review
Report of the auditor.

If pursuant to scheme the allotment of shares is
proposed to be made to a selected group of
shareholders or to the shareholders of unlisted
companies, pricing certificate from the Statutory
Auditor of the listed company as per Proviso of
SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Detailed Compliance Report as per the format
specified in Annexure 1V of SEBI circular dated
March 10, 2017 duly certified by the Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and the
Managing Director, confirming compliance with
various regulatory requirements specified for
schemes of arrangement and all accounting
standards (format attached as Annexure VI).

If as per the company, approval from the Public
shareholders through e-voting, as required
under Para (1)(A)(9)(a) of Annexure | of SEBI
Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March
10, 2017, is not applicable then as required
under Para (1)(A)(9)(c) of said SEBI circular,
submit the following:

a) An undertaking certified by the auditor clearly
stating the reasons for non applicability of Sub
Para 9(a)

b) Certified copy of Board of Director's resolution
approving the aforesaid auditor certificate.
Complaint report as per Annexure |ll of SEBI
Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March
10, 2017 (To be submitted within 7 days of
expiry of 21 days from the date of uploading of
Draft Scheme and related documents on
Exchange’s website). Format given in Annexure
VII)

Name of the Designated Stock Exchange (DSE)
for the purpose of coordinating with SEBI.
Certified true copy of the resolution passed by
the Board of Directors, in case BSE is DSE.
Brief details of the transferee/resulting and
transferor/demerged companies as per format
enclosed at Annexure VIII.

Networth certificate (excluding Revaluation
Reserve) together with related workings pre and
post scheme for the transferee and / or resulting
company.

Capital evolution details of the
transferee/resulting and transferor/demerged
companies as per format enclosed at Annexure
X.

Confirmation by the Managing Director/
Company Secretary as per format enclosed as
Annexure XI.

Statutory Auditor’s Certificate confirming the
compliance of the accounting treatment etc. as
specified in Para (I)(A) (5)(a) of Annexure | of
SEBI Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated
March 10, 2017, as per the format given in
Annexure |l of aforesaid SEBI circular. Format
given in Annexure V

Annual Reports of all the listed
transferee/resulting/demerged/etc. companies
involved and audited financial of all the unlisted
transferor/demerged/resulting/etc. companies for
the last financial year.

Processing fee (non-refundable) will be payable
to BSE as below, through Online Payment
Gateway (via Net Banking Facility) in Listing
Centre portal- Details given in Annexure XII
Rs.1,80,000/- plus GST as applicable, where
one entities/companies are Merged or one new
company formed due to De-merger
Rs.2,00,000/- plus GST as applicable, where
more than one entity/company is Merged or
more than one new company formed due to De-
merger.

https://listing.bseindia.com/stage24f.aspx?id=115107
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1. Kindly note that all pages of the documents are stamped and certified by the authorized signatory of the company.

2. In case BSE is Designated Stock Exchange, kindly provide one additional set of the documents at sr. nos. 3 to 11 separately in hard copy also for referring it to SEBI.

3. The Exchange reserves the right to modify and ask for additional documents / clarifications depending on a case to case basis. Approval for the proposed scheme will
be subject to compliance with the Statutory/ Regulatory requirements, norms of the Board of Directors of the Exchange and other Exchange requirements.

21
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Regulation 37

Processing fee (non-refundable) payable to
SEBI will be as below, through
RTGS/NEFT/IMPS as per details given in
Annexure XlI or through DD favoring ‘Securities
and Exchange Board of India” payable at
Mumbai' As per amendment in Regulation 37, No file chosen
the listed entity shall pay a fee to SEBI at the
rate of 0.1% of the paid-up share capital of the
listed / transferee / resulting company, whichever
is higher, post sanction of the proposed scheme,
subject to a cap of Rs.5,00,000.

In case NCRPS / NCDs are proposed to be
issued to the shareholders of the listed entity
and are to be listed, the company shall submit
an undertaking signed by CS / MD of the
company as per format attached in Annexure IV
confirming compliance with the requirements of
SEBI circular dated May 26, 2017.

In case a new unlisted company is seeking
listing pursuant to scheme of arrangement but at
least 25% of the post scheme paid up capital of
the unlisted company does not comprise of
shares allotted to the public shareholders in the
listed transferor / demerged entity, the company No file chosen
shall submit the compliance with the
requirements of SEBI circular Ref:
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/105 dated September 21,
2017 by CS/MD and statutory auditor of the
company.

Any other document(if required) Choose File | No file chosen

Choose File | No file chosen

Shareholding pattern of all the Companies pre
and post Amalgamation / Arrangement in Word Choose File | No file chosen
Format as given in Annexure |l

Pre and Post Amalgamation/ Arrangement No.
of Shareholders of all companies in the format Choose File | No file chosen
as provided in Annexure Il

Brief details of the Board of Directors and
Promoters of transferee/resulting and
transferor/demerged companies as per format
enclosed at Annexure IX

If there are any pending dues / fines / penalties
imposed by SEBI, Stock Exchanges and
Depositories, submit a ‘Report on the Unpaid
Dues’ which shall contain the details of such
unpaid dues in the format given in Annexure B of
SEBI circular, Choose File | No file chosen
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2019/192 dated

September 12, 2019 which is also attached as

Annexure XV [Note: In case there are no

pending dues as mentioned above, please

confirm the same]

Choose File | No file chosen

Note:

Contact Details

Name & Designation of the Contact SACHIN KUMAR

Person SRIVASTAVA

Telephone Nos. (landline & mobile) |7800008247 |
Email ID. |cs@yashpakka.com |

| save Draft || Submit |

© 2012 BSE. All rights reserved

https://listing.bseindia.com/stage24f.aspx?id=115107
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VRSH PAKKA

Packaging with a Soul

7/Govt/BSE
25" September, 2020

To,

BSE Limited,

Department of Corporate Sewlces
Floor 1, P. J. Towers,

Dalal Street

Mumbai 400 001

Kind Attn: Mr. Nitin Poojari (Senior Manager)

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the Scheme of Merger by
Absorption of Yash Compostables Limited (“the Transferor Company”) by
Yash Pakka Limited (“the Transferee Company”) as per Section 230-232 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Dear Sir,

With reference to the captioned subject, we would like to inform you that the Board of
Directors of Yash Pakka Limited at their Board Meeting held on 20™ June, 2020 has
considered and approved the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Yash Compostables
Limited (“the transferor company”/ “YCL"”) by Yash Pakka Limited (“the transferee
company”/ “YPL") pursuant to 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013,

in respect of the above, we are submitting herewith the following documents for
obtaining In-Principle Approval under Regulation 37 of SEBI (Lzstlng Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) (LODR), Regulations, 2015.

Sr. |Documents to be submitted along with Annexure No.
No. | application under Regulation 37 of the LODR
Regulations

1. Certified true copy of the resolution passed by the | Transferor  Company-
Board of Directors of the company approving the | Annexure 1A

scheme. | Transferee  Company-
| Annexure 1B

2. Certified copy of the draft Scheme of Amaigamation | Annexure 2

/| Arrangement, etc. proposed to be filed before the
NCLT.

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), India Reglstered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

+91-5278—258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P), Indfa
www.yashpaklu com CIN: L24231UP1981PLCOO5284
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VF\SH PAKKA

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com
www.yashpakka.com

Packaging with a Soul

Valuation report from

Annexure I of SEBI

Annexure |

Independent Chartered:
Accountant, as applicable, as per Para {A)(4) of
Circular  no..
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017. The:
valuation report shall be as per the format given in

Annexure 3 and
Annexure 1 to
Annexure 3

Report from the Audit Committee recommending'

the draft scheme taking into consideration, inter
alia, the valuation report at Sr. No.3 above

Annexure 4

Fairness opinion by Independent SEBI! Registered

Merchant Banker

Annexure 5

Shareholding pattern of all the Companies pre and
post Amalgamation / Arrangement as per the format
provided under Regulation 31 of the (LODR)
Regulations, 2015

Transferor  Company-
Annexure 6A and 6B

Transferee  Company-
Not Applicable as

Unlisted

Shareholding pattern of all the Companies pre and

post Amalgamation / Arrangement in Word Format.

as given in Annexure Il

Transferor
Annexure 7

Company-

Pre and Post Amalgamation/ Arrangement number

of Shareholders in all the companies in the format
as provided in Annexure (il

Transferor
Annexure 8A

Transferee
Annexure 8B

Company-

Company-

Audited financials of the transferee and transferor

companies for the last 3 financial years (financials

not being more than 6 months okl) as per

Annexure IV.

provide the last Annual Report and the audited /
unaudited financlals of the latest quarter (where
it is due) accompanied mandatorily by the
Limited Review Report of the auditor.

Transferor
Annexure %A

Transferee

Company-

Company-

| Annexure 9B
Please note that for existing Listed Company,

10.

Statutory Auditor's Certificate confirming

Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March

10, 2017, as per the format given in Annexure Il of

aforesaid SEBI
Annexure V

circular. Format given in

the
compliance of the accounting treatment efc. as
specified in Para (I(A) (5)(a) of Annexure | of SEBI

Transferor  Company-
Annexure 10A

Transferee = Company-
Annexure 10B

N —

Reglstared Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
Kanpur208002, (U.P.), India
CIN: L24231UP1981PLCOD5294
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Packaging with a Soul

11.

Detailed Compliance Report as per the format

specified in Annexure IV of SEBI circular dated
March 10, 2017 duly certified by the Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and the Managing
Director,

attached as Annexure VI).

confirming compliance . with various
regulatory requirements specified for schemes of
arrangement and ali accounting standards (format

Annexure 11

12.

Compiaint report as per Annexure Ill of SEBI
Circutar no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March

10, 2017 (To be submitted within 7 days of expiry of
21 days from the date of uploading of Draft Scheme
and related documents on Exchange's website).
Format given in Annexure VIl) .

Complaint Report will
be submitted within 7
days of expiry of 21
days from the date of
uploading of Draft
Scheme and related
documents on the

| Exchange’s website.

13.

If as per the company, approval from the Public.

shareholders through e-voting, as required under
Para (I)(A)(9)(a) of Annexure | of SEBI Circular no.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, is
not applicable then as required under Para
(DA)9)(c) of said SEBI circular,
following:

a) An undertaking certified by the auditor clearly

stating the reasons for non-applicability of

Sub Para 9(a)

b) Certified copy of Board of Director's

resolution approving the aforesaid auditor
certificate.

submit the .

Not Applicable

14.

If pursuant to scheme the allotment of shares is
proposed tc be made to a selected group of

shareholders or to the shareholders of unlisted.

companies, pricing certificate from the Statutory

Auditor of the listed company as per Provisions of-

SEBI (ICDR) Regulations is to be provided.

[Kindly refer Reg.158 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

The relevant date for determining the price shall be | -
the date of approval of the scheme by the BOD of |

the company.]

Annexure 12

15.

Name of the Desgignated Stock Exchange (DSE) for |

the purpose of coordinating with SEBI. Certified true

BSE
Annexure 1B

Limited-

or Yash

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), India
+91-5278-2581724 | connect@yashpakka.com
www.yashpakka.com

Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

Kanpur208002, (U.P.), India
CIN: 124231UP198IPLCO05294
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Packaging with a Soul

copy of the resolution passed by the Board of
Directors, in case BSE is DSE.

16.

Brief details of the ftransferee and transferor
companies as per format enclosed at Annexure
VIIL

Annexure 13

17.

Brief details of the Board of Directors and

Promoters of transferee and transferor companies.

as per format enclosed at Annexure IX

Transferor  Company-
Annexure 14A

Transferee  Company-
Annexure 14B

18.

Net-worth  certificate  (exciuding Revaluation
Reserve) together with related workings pre
scheme for the transferee company and transferor
company (pre and post).

Transferor  Company-
Annexure 15A

Transferee  Company-
Annexure 15B and 15C

18.

Capital evolution details of the transferee and
transferor companies as per format enclosed at
Annexure X.

Transferor  Company-
Annexure 16A

Transferee  Company-
Annexure 16B

20.

Confirmation by the Managing Director/ Company
Secretary as per format enclosed as Annexure XI.

Annexure 17

21.

Annual Reports of the listed transferee company
involved and audited financial of the unlisted
transferor company for the last financial year.

Transferor  Company-
Annexure 18A

Transferee = Company-
Annexure 18B

22.

a) Processing fee (non-refundable) will be payable

to BSE as below, through QOnline Payment.

Gateway (via Net Banking Fagcility) in Listing
Centre portal- Details given in Annexure XII

Rs.1,80,000/- plus GST as applicable, where one
entities/companies are Merged or one new
company formed due to De-merger

Rs.2,00,000/- plus GST as applicable, where more
than one entity/company is Merged or more than
one new company formed due to De-merger.

b) Processing fee (non-refundable) payable to
SEBI will be as below, through
RTGS/NEFT/IMPS as per details given in
Annexure XIt or through DD favoring

‘Securities and Exchange Board of India”

a) Processing fees of
Rs.1,98,800/- (including
18% GST and after
deducting 7.5% TDS) is
paid through e-pay order
No.CNABCGOTO3
dated 11th  August,
2020. Details given in
Annexure 19A.

b) Processing fees of
Rs.3,80,785/- is paid to
SEBI through e-pay
order No.CRB4267410

MYMK

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), India
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com
www.yashpakka.com

p*=mvivg Cpecior 8 CEQ

Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
Kanpur208002, (U.P), India
CIN: L24231UMS8IPLCO05294
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Packaging with a Sout

ayable at Mumbai’

As per amendment in Regulation 37, the listed

entity shall pay a fee to SEBI at the rate of 0.1% of
the paid-up share capital of the listed / transferee /.

resulting company, whichever is higher, post

sanction of the proposed scheme, subject to a cap

of Rs.5,00,000.

| CNABCGOTO3  dated

11th  August,  2020.
Details given in
Annexure 19B.

23.

In case of scheme of demerger, additional
documents as per Annexure Xill are to be
submitted

Not Applicable

24,

a) In case NCRPS / NCDs are proposed to be

issued to the shareholders of the listed entity
and are to be listed, the company shall submit
an undertaking signed by CS / MD of the

company as per format attached in Annexure

XV  confiming compliance with the

requirements of SEBI circular dated May 26,

2017.

b) In case a new unlisted company is seeking
listing pursuant to scheme of arrangement but

at least 25% of the post scheme paid up capital

of the unlisted company does not comprise of

shares allotted to the public shareholders in the

listed transferor / demerged entity, the company
shall submit the compliance with the
requirements of SEBI circular Ref:
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/105 dated September 21,
2017 by CS/MD and statutory auditor of the
company.

Not Applicable

25

If there are any pending dues / fines / penalties
imposed by SEBI, Stock Exchanges and

Depositories, submit a ‘Report on the Unpaid

Dues’ which shall contain the details of such unpaid

dues in the format given in Annexure B of SEBI.
circular, SEBIfHO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2019/192 dated
September 12, 2019 which is also attached as.

Annexure XV

[Note: In case there are no pending dues as

mentioned above, please confirm the same]

Annexure 20

26

Name & Designation of the Contact Person

| Srivastava

Name: Sachin Kumar

%

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakia Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakkacom
www.yashpakka.com

Limited

Fer Yﬂ\?
. Vi
Direckos.& CED

Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
Kanpur208002, (U.P), India
CIN: L24231UP1981PLCO05294
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Packaging with a Soul
Teiephoné Nos. (landline & mobite) | Designation: Company
Email ID. Secretary & Head Legal
Landline No.: 05278 -
258174
‘| Mobile No: 7800008247
Email ID:

cs@vashpakka.com

Kindly acknowledge the receipt of the same and further request you to issue the In

Principle Approval for the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Yash Compostables:
Limited by Yash Pakka Limited. '

Tr.ust you will find the above in the order and oblige.

for Yash Pakka Limited

Jagdeep Hira
Managing Director & CEQ

_ DIN: 07639849

Encl: As above s

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India Registered Office; Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P.), India
www.yashpakka.com CIN: L24231UP19BIPLC005294




Yash Compostables Limited 7
(Formerly Known as Yash Ecoenergy Limited)

ANNEXURE - 1A

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YASH COMPOSTABLES LIMITED HELD ON 20™
JUNE, 2020 AT THE CORPORATE OFFICE SITUATED AT YASH NAGAR,
AYODHYA - 224135, UTTAR PRADESH, INDIA, STARTED AT 03:00 PM AND
CONCLUDED AT 04:50 P.M.

APPROVAL OF SCHEME OF MERGER BY ABSORPTION OF YASH
COMPOSTABLES LIMITED BY YASH PAKKA LIMITED:

The Executive Director briefed the Board of Directors about the proposed Merger by
absorption of Yash Compostables Limited ("YCL' or "the Company" or “the
Transferor Company”) by Yash Pakka Limited ("YPL" or "Transferee Company’), a
BSE listed Company by way of a Scheme of Merger by Absorption under Section 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules and regulations made thereunder including any statutory modifications,
re-enactments or amendments made thereto from time to time (‘the Scheme”).

The Executive Director further informed the Board the aforesaid consolidation by Way of
Merger by Absorption of Yash Campostables Limited by Yash Pakka Limited will lead to
following benefits:

1. YCL and YPL, belonging to the same group of management, it would be
advantageous to combine the activities and operations in a single entity. The
amalgamation would create synergies between two acomplementmg companies
with similar objective and business line.

2. Both YPL and YCL has their independent B2B customer’s and dealer networks,
supply chain and logistic partners the amalgamation will also provide synergistic
linkages besides economies in costs by combining the total business functions in
all segments including sales, procurement, logistic: activities and the related
activities and operations and thus contribute to the profitability of the
amaigamated entity.

3. Economies of scale will play a bigger role as the consolidated entity’s operational
efficiency will increase, which will in turn allow the merged entity to compete on a
larger scale in the industry, thus benefiting the merged entity and the
sharehoiders,

4. The amalgamatlon will enable the merged entity to build up a diversified product
portfolio in YPL and will assist the merged entity with: faster and quicker decision
makmg as both manufacturtng and marketing actwltles are under the same

For Yash Cunpostaues

RedﬂaudOl’ﬂce:FldNo.ZO?.Wln.Amde ' m:usnmmamma
Kongur - 200002, UP. inciks - : - Ezmwwmm
Comorate Offica : C-2, Sector - 1, Nokia, 201301 india . £ +915278 208900, 208901

Warks Office: Yosh Nogar, Falzabad - 224135 waw.chulein




Yash Compostables Limited 8
(Formerly Known as Yash Ecoenergy Limited) |

management.

5. The amalgamation will enable the merged entity to get direct access to

customers which will give them a befter understanding of the market taste and

~ customer requirements. This will assist the merged enttty to produce right quality
required for different market segment

B. With YPL having a manufacturing experience of more than 40 years alongwith‘all
the requisite technical know-how to produce in house paper pulp which is a basic
input for compostable products gives YPL an edge gver other competitors and

" YCL a company involved in marketing will result in the merged entity to have all
the necessary functions under one roof. It is consideréd desirable and expedient
to consolidate and amalgamate the business of both YCL and YPL so as to bring
both the functions will be under the same management, production p!annlng
process will become more aligned fo the customer needs which will resuft in a
stronger asset base and skills to conduct the ttusiness in the emerging
environment and to rationalise the costs of bugsiness.

7. The amalgamation will increase the net worth of YPL which would enable it to
capitalise upon such improved net worth to enhance the stake holders’ value

8. The amalgamation will increase financial strength, erthance flexibility and ability
to raise larger resources, attract and retain better talent and undertake larger
support services related projects.

9. The amalgamation will result in integration and effective utilisation of resources,
which is likely to resutt in optimising overall shareholder value and improvement
in competitive position of YPL as a combined entity.

10. The amalgamation will result in economy of scalé reduction in overheads,
administrative and other expenditure, efficiency and optlmat utilisation of various
resources. : ,

11.  The amaigamation will bring both the entities under gne roof to portray one face
to all the parties with whom the Yash Group deals.”

12. The amalgamation will result in better leveraging of é?facilities, infrastructure and
resources. i

13.  Dupiication of administrative functlons together with the multiple record keeping
will be eliminated, resulting in over-all reduction i |n exnendlture

- For Yash Compostables Li _
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The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances which at present is required to be made separately by

" YCL as well as by the YPL.

This merger will provide an opportunity to leverage assets and build a stronger
sustainable business. It will provide an opportunity .to fully leverage stronger
asset capabilities, experience, expertise and infrastructure of both the companies
and thus increased ability for promotion of business activities as well as for fund
raising as may be required for business development. -

The merger would lead to synergic benefits, efficiency of operations and
management, rapid growth of the entity, optimum utilization of its resources and
minimization of the administrative and operative costs.

The merger will result in a value creation for the shaneholders and stakeholders
of YCL and YPL as the combined amalgamated company will have improved
efficiency, market share, financial structure, Iarger cash flows and stronger
consolidated revenue and profitability.

The merger of YCL with YPL would result in consolidation of business activities
of both the companies and will facilitate effective management of investments

- and synergies in operation.

There is no likelihood that any shareholder or creditor or employee of YCL and
YPL would be prejudiced as a result of the Scheme. Thus, the merger is in the
interest of the shareholders, creditors and all other stakeholders of the
companies and is not prejudicial to the interests of the concerned shareholders,
creditors or the public at large.

Thereafter, the Executive Director placed before the Board thé following:

(i) Draft Scheme of Merger by Absorption (“Scheme”);

(i) The Valuation Report dated 18" June, 2020 prepared by Ms. Sudha Bhushan,

(Registered Valuer- Securities or Financial Assets) in rélation to the shares to be
issued by YPL to the shareholders of the Company pursuant to the Scheme;

(iii).The Faimess Opinion issued by Mark Corporate Advisors Private Limited, Merchant

Banker on the said Valuation Report; and

(iv) Report explaining the effect of the scheme on each class of shareholders, Key

Managerial Personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders as required under
the Companies Act 2013. For Yash Compostables kit
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The Executive Director informed the Board that the Registered Valuer, Ms. Sudha
Bhushan has determined the share exchange ratio was 68.63: 1 i.e. (Sixty Eight point
Sixty three) equity shares of Rs.10 each credited as fully paid up in YPL for every 1
(One) equity share of Rs.10 each fully paid up held by them in the Company on basis of
the valuation of the assets and liabilities of the Companies carried out by them as
provided in their report. This was arrived at based on a 2 week / 26 weeks weekly
Volume Weighted Average Price on BSE (higher of 2 or 26 weeks). The Executive
Director further informed that Mr, Pradeep Vasant Dhobale, the Chairman and Director
of Yash Pakka Limited insisted that that it would be prudent to consider a simple
average price of last twelve months instead of 26 weeks asg a price base and this will
benefit the company and the public sharehoiders. Accordingly, the per share value of
YPL was revised upward to Rs.41.68 Per Share as against the value arrived by
Registered Valuer at Rs 34.48. Accordingly, the new share exchange ratio will be 56.77:
1 i.e. (Fifty Six point Seventy Seven) equity shares of Rs.10 each credited as fully paid
up in YPL for every 7 (One) equity share of Rs.10 each fully paid up held by them in
YCL.

The Board, after discussion, passed thé foliowing resolution in this regard:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules and regulations
issued thereunder, including any statutory modifications, re-enactments or amendments
made thereto from time to time, subject to the provisions in Memorandum of Association
and Articles of Association of the Company, approval from BSE Limited (“BSE"),
approval from Securities and Exchange Board of India (the “SEBI"), approval from the
Shareholders of the Company, approval from its Creditors and subject to the sanction of
the National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’) constituted under the companies Act,
2013, and subject to the approval of any other statutory or governmentai authorities, the
Draft Scheme of Merger by absorption of YCL by YPL, a company incorporated under
the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at 2™ Floor, 24/57, Birhana
Road, Kanpur — 208001, Uttar Pradesh, India (“YPL") and their respective shareholders
and credltors (“Scheme”) placed before the Board and |n|t|aled by the Chairman for the
purpose of identification be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company do take further steps for obtaining the
requisite approvals of the shareholders and the creditors of the Company and other
regulatory authorities and persons whose consent is required under law for the Scheme
and for that purpose to initiate all necessary actions including seeking appropriate-
directions from the NCLT for either dispensing with the requirement of convening
meetings of the shareholders and / or creditors of the Company and other concemed
persons / parties and to take all other consequential steps in that behalf, including the
preparation and circulation of the notices and explanatory statements, and filing of all
other documents required to be filed in this connection.

- For Yash Compostables Lity
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of the Scheme and for determining the
share exchange ratio, the Valuation Report prepared by Ms. Sudha Bhushan,
(Registered Valuer- Securities or Financial Assets) and Faimess Opinion issued by
Mark Corporate Advisors Private Limited, Merchant Banker; submitted to the meeting
and signed by the Chaiman of the meetmg be and is hereby approved subject to
modification as stated as hereinabove in respect to share exchange ratio.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon sanction of the said Scheme by the NCLT and
upon the Scheme becoming effective, without any further act or deed on the part of
YPL, YPL will, in aggregate, issue and allot 28,38,500 (Twenty Eight Lakhs Thirty Eight
Thousand Five Hundred only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to registered fully paid-up
equity shareholders of YCL on the Record Date, as decided by the Board of Directors of
YPL in the ratio of; Against 1 {One) Equity Share of the Face value of Rs.10/- each of
the YCL, 56.77 (Fifty Six Point Seventy Seven) Equity Shares of the Face value of
Rs.10/- each of the YPL shall be issued to the shareholders of YCL.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Amit Sharma, Executive: Director (DIN: 07587504)
and Mr. Sumant Pai, Director (DIN: 08405547) of the Company, be and are hereby
severally authorized to make such alterations and changes in the Scheme, as may be
expedient and necessary for satisfying the requirement(s) or.conditions. tmposed by the
NCLT or any other statutory authorities as may be required, provided that prior approval
of the Board shall be obtained for making any material changes in the said Draft
Scheme, as approved in this meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report of the Board of Directors explaining the effect
of the Scheme of Merger on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel,
Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders as required to ba annexed to the notice and
explanatory statement as per section 232(2) of Companies Act 2013, submitted before
the meeting, duly initialed by the Chairman of the Meetmg for the purpose of
identification, and signed on behalf of the Board of Dlrecto:s of the Company by Mr.
Sumant Pai, Director {(DIN: 08405547). .

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board do and hereby further authorize Mr. Amit
Sharma, Executive Director (DIN: 07587504) and Mr. Sumant Pai, Director (DIN:
08405547) of the Company severally, to take all such steps in connection with:

(a) To verify, sign, deal, swear, affirm, declare, deliver, execute, make, enter into,
acknowledge, undertake, record all deeds, declarations, instruments,
vakalatnamas, applications, petitions, affidavits, objections, notices and writings
whatsoever as may be usual, necessary, proper or expedite and all matter of
documents, petitions, affidavits and applications under the applicable laws

For Yash Compostables L o
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including Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956, as the case may be,
and other applicable laws in relation to the aforesaid matter;

(b) To make necessary applications, petitioné. appeals a|§|d judges summons to the
.competent authorities for the purpose for obtaining requisite approvals as and
when required before any Court, Tribunal, or statutory authorities;

(c) To file applications and / or petitions before the NCLT for the directions for
holding the meeting of the shareholders and credltors and for sanction of the
Scheme; :

(d) To send notices, explanatory statement and other feiated documents and to
conduct court convened meeting(s) and for meeting as per the applicable laws
~and / or as per direction of the NCLT;

(e) Filing of valuation report as prepared by Ms .Sudha Bhushan, (Registered
Valuer- Securities or Financial Assets) providing the share exchange ratio in
respect of the aforesaid Scheme and Fairness Oplmon issued by Mark Corporate
Advisors Private Limited;

(0 To file requisite undertaking, affidavit, certificates or .other documents and / or
liaise with SEBI, BSE, the regional Director, Regist;ar of Companies, Stamp
Authorities, sub Registrar of Assurances, Official Liguidator, income tax
authorities or any other govemmental authorities in connection with the proposed
Scheme during the process of sanction thereof and dunng the implementation of
the Scheme after sanction of the Scheme;

(g) To make necessary applications, petitions, appeals and judge summons to the
competent authorities for the purpose for obtaining requisite approvals including
in principle approvals as and when required before any Court, Tribunal, BSE,
SEBI or statutory authorities as may be required for the purpose of sanction and/
or implementation of the Scheme;

(h) To engage M/s. Rajani Associates, Solicitors. and a’hy counsel / advocate on
record appointed by them, and any other advisors, counsels, consultant firms to
advise and represent the Company before competent authorities etc;

~ For Yash Compostables Lirited:
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(i) To appoint and settle the terms of the appointment of rating agencies, Merchant
Bankers and other intermediaries as may be required for the purpose of
implementing the Scheme.

(i) To make application to BSE, the SEBI and other gdvernmenwl authorities for
listing of the equity shares issued pursuant to the aforesaid Scheme'

(k) To affix the common seal of the Company on such deeds, documents,
agreements, undertakings, letters, writings, etc. from time to time (including any
modifications thereto) or any such other documents in connection with the
purpose of above resolutions as may be required and in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company;

() To make such alterations and change and/ or modifications in the aforesaid
applications and/ or petitions as may be expedient and necessary for satisfying
the requirements and conditions imposed if any, by the court or any authority;

(m)And do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper
and expedient for effectuating and implementing the above decision, including
any directions for settling any question or doubt or difficulty whatsoever that may
arise to give effect to the aforesaid resolutions, incIQding the execution of any
documents(s) that may be deemed fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the copy of the aforesaid resolutions certified to be true
by any Director of the Company and the same be submitted to the concemed
authorities and they be requested to act thereon.”

CERTIFIED TO BE TRUE

Sumant Pai
Director
DIN: 084056547

Date: 25/09/2020
Place: Ayodhya
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF YASH PAKKA LIMITED AT ITS BOARD MEETING HELD ON
SATURDAY, 20™ JUNE, 2020 AT ITS CORPORATE OFFICE: YASH NAGAR,
AYODHYA - 224135, UTTAR PRADESH, INDIA STARTED AT 10:00 A.M. AND
CONCLUDED AT 02:30 P.M.

APPROVAL OF SCHEME OF MERGER _BY ABSORPTION OF YASH
COMPOSTABLES LIMITED BY YASH PAKKA LIMITED:

The Chairman briefed the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") about the
resolution passed on 1%th May, 2020 wherein the Board had considered the
consolidation of certain business activities of the group entities. The Board in principie
discussed and approved the proposal of Scheme of merger by Absomtion of Yash
Compostables Limited ("YCL"), a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013
and having its Registered Office at Flat No.202, 3A/172 Azad Nagar, Kanpur 208002,
Uttar Pradesh by the Company ("Scheme"), subject to the approval of the draft Scheme
by the Board. The Board also appointed various consultants and advisors to carry out the
aforesaid process of merger.

The Chairman further informed the Board that the aforesaid consolidation by way of
Merger by Absorption of Yash Compostables Limited (“the Transferor Company®/ “YCL")
by Yash Pakka Limited (“the Company” / “the Transferee Company” / “YPL") will lead to
following benefits:

1. YCL and YPL, belonging to the same group of management, it would be
advantageous to combine the activities and operations in a single entity. The
amalgamation would create synergies between two complementing companies
with similar objective and business line.

2. Both YPL and YCL has their independent B2B customer's and dealer networks,
supply chain and logistic partners, the amalgamation will also provide synergistic
linkages besides economies in costs by combining the total business functions in
all segments including sales, procurement, logistic activites and the related
activities and operations and thus contribute to the profitability of the amalgamated
entity. ]

3. Economies of scale will play a bigger role as the consolidated entity's operational
efficiency will increase, which will in tumn allow the merged entity to compete on a
larger scale in the industry, thus benefiting the merged entity and the
shareholders.
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The amalgamation will enable the merged entity to build up a diversified product
portfolic in YPL and will assist the merged entity with faster and quicker decision
making as both manufacturing and marketing activities are under the same
management.

The amalgamation will enable the merged entity to get direct access to customers
which will give them a better understanding of the market taste and customer
requirements. This will assist the merged entity to produce right quality required for
different market segment

With YPL having a manufacturing experience of more than 40 years alongwith all
the requisite technical know-how to produce in house paper pulp which is a basic
input for compostable products, gives YPL an edge over other competitors and
YCL a company involved in marketing wili result in the merged entity to have all
the necessary functions under one roof. it is considered desirable and expedient to
consolidate and amalgamate the business of both YCL and YPL so as to bring
both the functions will be under the same management, production planning
process will become more aligned to the customer needs which will result in a
stronger asset base and skills to conduct the business in the emerging
environment and to rationalise the costs of business.

The amaigamation will increase the net worth of YPL which would enable it to
capitalise upon such improved net worth to enhance the stake holders’ value.

The amalgamation will increase financial strength, enhance flexibility and ability to
raise larger resources, attract and retain better talent and undertake larger support

- services related projects.

The amalgamation will result in integration and effective utilisation of resources,

~ which is likely to result in optimising overall shareholder value and improvement in

competitive position of YPL as a combined entity.

The amaigamation will result in economy of scale, reduction in overheads,
administrative and other expenditure, efficiency and optimal utilisation of various
resources. '

The amalgamation wiil bring both the entities under one roof to portray one face to
all the parties with whom the Yash Group deals.

The amalgamation will result in better leveraging of facilities, infrastructure and
resources.

Duplication of administrative functions together with the multiple record keeping
will be eliminated, resuiting in over-all reduction in expenditure.

Fer Yash Pakka Limi
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14. The amalgai‘nation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances which at present is required to be made separately by YCL
as well as by the YPL.

15.  This merger wili provide an opportunity to leverage assets and build a stronger
sustainable business. It will provide an opportunity to fully leverage stronger asset
capabilities, experience, expertise and infrastructure of both the companies and
thus increased ability for promotion of business activities as well as for fund raising
as may be required for business development.

16. The merger would lead to synergic benefits, efficiency of operations and
management, rapid growth of the entity, optimum utilization of its resources and
rminimization of the administrative and operative costs.

- 17.  The merger will result in a value creation for the shareholders and stakeholders of
YCL and YPL as the combined amalgamated company will have improved
efficiency, market share, financial structure, larger cash flows and stronger
consolidated revenue and profitability.

18.  The merger of YCL with YPL would result in consolidation of business activities of
both the companies and will facilitate effective management of investments and
synergies in operation,

19. There is no likelihood that any shareholder or creditor or employee of YCL and
YPL would be prejudiced as a result of the Scheme. Thus, the merger is in the
interest of the shareholders, creditors and all other stakeholders of the companies
and is not prejudicial to the interests of the concerned shareholders, creditors or
the public at large.

Thereafter, the Chairman placed before the Board the (i) draft Scheme of Merger by
Absorption, prepared by M/s. Rajani Associates, Solicitors; (ii} the Valuation Report dated
18" June, 2020 prepared by Ms. Sudha Bhushan, (Registered Valuer- Securities or
Financia! Assets) in relation to the shares to be issued by the Company to the
shareholders of the YCL pursuant to the Scheme; (jii) the Faimess Opinion issued by
Mark Corporate Advisors Private Limited, Merchant Banker on the said Valuation Report;
and (iv) Report explaining the effect of the scheme on each class of shareholders, key
managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders as required under the
Companies Act 2013.

The Chairman further informed the Board that a meeting of the Audit Committee of the
Board was held on 19" June, 2020 in order to consider the draft Scheme. The members

For Yash Pakka Lifjited

\\( <
Voreoh Dinor £ CE0

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Mdhw 224135 (U.P), India Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

- -258174 | conne hpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.R.), India
m.::ghpsa?&ka.o:)m creves . CIN: L24231UP198IPLCO05294

- —



A 17
YASH PAKKA

Packaging with a Soul

of the Audit Committee found the proposed Scheme to be in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders and recommended the
draft Scheme to the Board of Directors of the Company. |

The Chairman informed the Board that the Registered Valugr, Ms. Sudha Bhushan has
determined the share exchange ratio was 68.63: 1 i.e. (Sixty Eight point Sixty three)
equity shares of Rs.10 each credited as fully paid up in the Company for every 1 (One)
equity share of Rs.10 each fully paid up held by them in YCL on basis of the valuation of
the assets and liabilities of the Company carried out by them as provided in their report.
This was arrived at based on a 2 week / 26 weeks weekly Volume Weighted Average
Price on BSE (higher of 2 or 26 weeks). The Chairman further informed that it would be
prudent to consider a simple average price of last twelve months instead of 26 weeks as
a price base and this will benefit the company and the sharehalders. Accordingly, the per
share value of YPL should be revised upward to Rs 41.68 Per Share as against the value
arrived by Registered Valuer at Rs 34.48. Accordingly, the new share exchange ratio will
be 56.77: 1 i.e. (Fifty Six point Seventy Seven) equity shares of Rs.10 each credited as
fully paid up in the Company for every 1 (One} equity share of Rs.10 each fully paid up
held by them in YCL. '

The Chairman placed before the Board, the Audit Commitiee Report dated 18" June,
2020 recommending the above proposal.

The Board, after discussion, passed the following resolution in this regard:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies-Act, 2013 along with the rules and regulations
issued thereunder, including any statutory modifications, re-enactments or amendments
made thereto from time to time, subject to the Memorandum of Association and Articles
of Association of the Company, approval from BSE Limited ("BSE"), approval from
Securities and Exchange Board of India (the "SEBY"'), approval from the members of the
Company (including approval from the members through Postal Ballot and E-voting),
approval from its creditors and subject to the sanction of the National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT") constituted under the Companies Act, 2013, and subject to the approval
of any other statutory or governmental authorities, the Draft Scheme of Merger by
Absorption of Yash Compostables Limited, a company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 2013 and having its registered office at Flat No0.202, 3A/172 Azad Nagar,
Kanpur 208002, Uttar Pradesh ("YCL") by the Company and their respective
shareholders and Creditors ("Scheme") placed before the Board and initialled by the
Chairman for the purpose of identification be and is hereby approved.

For Yash Pakka bimi
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company do take further steps for obtaining the
requisite approvals of the shareholders and the creditors of the Company and other
regulatory authorities and persons, whose consent is required under law for the Scheme
and for that purpose to initiate all necessary actions including seeking appropriate
directions from the NCLT for either dispensing with the requirement of convening
meetings of the creditors of the Company or convening the meeting of the shareholders
and/or creditors of the Company and other concerned persans / parties and to take all
other consequential steps in that behalf, including the preparation and circulation of the
notices and explanatory statements, and filing of all other documents required to be filed
in this connection.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of the Scheme and for determining the
share exchange ratio, the Valuation Report prepared by Ms. Sudha Bhushan (Registered
Valuer- Securities or Financial Assets) and Fairness Opinion issued by Mark Corporate
Advisors Private Limited, Merchant Banker on the said Valuation Report, submitted to
the meeting and signed by the Chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification,
be and is hereby approved subject to modification as stated as hereinabove in respect to
share exchange ratio.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Report of the Audit Committee dated 19" June, 2020
recommending the draft Scheme for favourable consideration and approval by the Board,
be and is hereby approved for submission to the BSE and SEBI in terms of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR") and circulars and
regulations issued by SEBI thereunder.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon sanction of the said Scheme by the NCLT and upon
the Scheme becoming effective, without any further act or deed on the part of the
Company, the Company will, in aggregate, issue and allot 28,38,500 (Twenty Eight Lakhs
Thirty Eight Thousand Five Hundred only) equity shares of Rs. 10 each (the "New
Shares") to registered fully paid-up equity sharehoiders of YCL, whose names are
recorded in the register of equity shareholders of YCL on the Record Date, as decided by
the Board in the ratio of [56.77]: [1] i.e. [56.77] ([Fifty Six Point Seveniy Seven] ) equity
shares of Rs.10 each credited as fully paid up in the Company for every [1] ((One]) equity
share of Rs.10 each fully paid up held by the shareholders in YCL and Clause 8.1 of the
draft Scheme shall be modified accordingly.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT that Mr Ved Krishna, Executive Vice-Chairman, Mr.
Jagdeep Hira, Managing Director & CEOQO, Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal, Director Works,
Mr. Jignesh Shah, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Sachin Kumar Srivastava, Company
Secretary & Head Legal of the Company, be and are hereby jointly/ or severally
authorised to make such alterations and changes in the Scheme, as may be expedient
and necessary for satisfying the requirement(s) or conditions imposed by the NCLT or
any other statutory authorities as may be required, provided that prior approval of the
Board shall be obtained for making any material changes in the said draft Scheme, as
approved in this meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report of the Board of Directors explaining the effect of
the scheme of amalgamation on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel,
promoters and non-promoter shareholders as required to be annexed to the notice and
explanatory statement as per section 232(2) of Companies Act 2013, submitted before
the meeting, duly initialed by the Chairman of the Meeting for the purpose of
identification, and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company by Mr.
Jagdeep Hira, the Managing Director & CEQ be and is hereby adopted.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT BSE Limited will be the designated stock exchange for co-

— - ordinating with SEBI in accordance with the SEB! Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21
dated March 10, 2017, SEBI Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/26 dated March 23, 2017,
the SEBI Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated Januaty 03, 2018 and the SEBI
Circular SEBIYHO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2019/192 dated September 12, 2019.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board do and hereby further authorize Mr Ved
Krishna, Executive Vice-Chairman, Mr. Jagdeep Hira, Managing Director & CEO, Mr.
Narendra Kumar Agrawal, Director Works, Mr. Jignesh Shah, Chief Financial Officer and
Mr. Sachin Kumar Srivastava, Company Secretary & Head Legal of the Company either
jointly/ or severally, to take all such steps in connection with:-

(a) To verify, sign, deal, swear, affirm, declare, deliver, execute, make, enter into,
acknowledge, undertake, record all deeds, declarations, instruments, vakalatnamas,
applications, petitions, affidavits, objections, notices and writings whatsoever as
may be usual, necessary, proper or expedite and all matter of documents, petitions,
affidavits and applications under the applicable laws including Companies Act, 2013
or Companies Act, 1956, as the case may be, and other applicable laws in relation
to the aforesaid matter, :
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(b) To make necessary applications, petitions, appeals and judges summons to the
competent authorities for the purpose for obtaining requisite approvals as and when
required before any Court, Tribunal, or statutory authorities;

(¢) To file applications and/ or petitions before the NCLT for the directions for holding
the meeting of the shareholders and creditors and for sanction of the Scheme;

(d) To send notices, explanatory statement and other related documents and to conduct
court convened meeting(s) and/or meeting through postal ballot and e-voting as per
the applicable laws and/or as per direction of the NCLT,;

(e) Filing of valuation report as prepared by Ms. Sudha Bhushan (Registered Valuer-
Securities or Financial Assets) providing the share exchange ratio in respect of the
aforesaid Scheme and Fairhess QOpinion issued by issued by Mark Corporate
Advisors Private Limited;

() File the Scheme of Amalgamation with the BSE and $SEB! and to obtain approval
under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Reguiations, 2015.

(@) To file requisite undertaking, affidavit, certificates or other documents and/or liaise
with SEBI, BSE, the Regional Director, Registrar of Companies, Stamp Authorities,
Sub Registrar of Assurances, Official Liquidator, Income Tax Authorities or. any
other governmental authorities in connection with the proposed Scheme during the
process of sanction thereof and during the implementation of the Scheme after
sanction of the Scheme;

(h) To make necessary applications, petitions, appeals and judges summons to the
competent authorities for the purpose for obtaining requisite approvals including in
principle approvals as and when required before any Court, Tribunal, BSE, SEBI or
statutory authorities as may be required for the purpose of sanction and/ or
implementation of the Scheme;

() To engage M/s. Rajani Associates, Solicitors and any counsel/advocate on record
appointed by them, and any other advisors, counsels, consulftant firms to advise and
represent the Company before competent authorities etc.;
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() To appoint and settie the terms of the appointment of rating agencies, merchant
bankers and other intermediaries as may be required for the purpose of
implementing the Scheme.

(k) To make application to BSE, the SEBI and other governmental authorities for listing
of the equity shares issued pursuant to the aforesaid Scheme;

() To affix the common seal of the Company on such deeds, documents, agreements,
undertakings, letters, writings, etc. from time to time (including any modifications
thereto) or any such other documents in connection with the purpose of above
resolutions as may be required and in accordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association of the Company;, |

(m) To make such alterations and changes and/ or modifications in the aforesaid
applications and/ or petitions as may be expedient and necessary for satisfying the
requirements and conditions imposed if any, by the court or any authority;

(n) And do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper and
expedient for effectuating and implementing the above decision, including any
directions for settling any question or doubt or difficulty whatsoever that may arise to
give effect to the aforesaid resolutions, including the execution of any document(s)
that may be deemed fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the copy of the aforesaid resolptions certified to be true by
any Director or Authorised Signatory of the Company and the same be submitted to the
concerned authorities and they be requested to act thereon.” '

Certified to be True Copy
‘or Yash Pakka Limited

" anaging Director & CEQ
DIN: 07639848

Res. Add.- H. No. 1177,
Sector 9,

» : Faridabad - 121006

Date: 25/09/2020
Place: Ayodhya

Note: The above resolution was passed unanimously.
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SCHEME OF MERGER BY ABSORPTION
OF
YASH COMPOSTABLES LIMITED
BY
YASH PAKKA LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

This Scheme of Merger is presented under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for merger by absorption of Yash
Compostables Limited ("¥CL" or "Transferor Company") withYash Pakka Limited
("YPL" or "Transferee Company"). This Scheme also provides for various other
matters consequential and otherwise integrally connected therewith. '

The Scheme is divided into the following parts:

A Part I deals with the Introduction and Rationale;

B Part II deals with the Definitions, Interpretations and Share Capltal
C.  Part Il deals with merger of Y_'CL with YPL;

D.  Part IV deals with the Accounting Treatment;

E Part V deals with the General Clauses; and

F Part VI deals with the General Terms and Conditions.

1. INTRODUCTION

Fet Yash Pakka
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YASH COMPOSTABLES LIMITED

YCL (CIN: U51100UP2014PLC062981) is a public unlisted company which
was originally incorporated under the name of "Yash Ecoenergy Limited" under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide Certificate of Incorporation
dated February 27, 2014 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Uttar Pradesh.
Thereafter, the name of the company was changed from "Yash Ecoenergy
Limited" to its present name i.e. "Yash Compostables Limited" vide fresh
Certificate of Incorporation pursuant to change of name dated July 3, 2018
issued by the Registrar of Companies (RoC), Kanpur.

The main object of YCL as set out in its Memorandum of Association are

reproduced below for ease of reference:

"To act as marketers, sellers, buyers, distributors, exporters, importers,
convertors, agents, stockists and agents for compostable and biodegradable

products used in product packaging and food services.

To act as an export house and to carry on any business in any way connected

therewith.

To act as export & import agents and purchase and sale representative to
stockists, products, processing unit and units engaged in village industries,
home industries, cottage industries, small, medium & large scale industries."

YCL is inter-alia engaged in the business of trading of compostable products.

YCL is also a marketing company and has played a major role in development
of the brand named 'Chuk' which is owned by YPL. YCL is expanding its

Fer Yash P imited
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business throughout the country. In view of the ban levied on plastic by quitea
few of the states in our country which has resulted in the rise in the demand for
compostable products. With the outbreak of Co-vid 19 pandemic, the demand
for disposable cutlery and plates has also increased instead of regular dineware.
YCL has established logistic and supply chain network which is a pre-requisite
for the growth of any FMCG product.

115, The shares of YCL are not listed on any stock exchange.
12. YASHPAKKA LIMITED

121, YPL (CIN: 1.24231UP1981PLC005294), was originally incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated May 5, 1981

under the name of "Yash Papers Limited" issued by Registrar of Compames,
U.P.

t22. The name of the company was changed from "Yash Papers Limited" to "Yash
Pakka Limited" vide fresh Certificate of Incorporation pursuant to change of
name dated November 8, 2019 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur.

123. The main object of YPL as set out in its Memorandum of Association are

reproduced below for ease of reference:

1. "To carry on the business of Paper, Board, Pulp of every description processed

from any suitable fibrous or other raw materials, natural or synthetic.

2. To carry on the business of manufactures of and dealers in all kinds and
classes of paper, board and pulp processed from any suitable raw material
including waste board, card board, strawboard, pulp board, leather board,

FOI'YMPW‘\
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mill board, corrugated board, liner board duplex and triple boards, hard
board, plywood board, writing paper, printing paper, newsprint paper,
absorbent paper, wrapping paper, tissue paper, blotting paper, filter paper, art
paper bank or bond paper, grease proof paper, gummed paper, parchment
paper, drawing paper, kraft paper, envelope paper, tracing paper, waterproof
paper, carbon paper, photographic paper, post card, visiting cards, soda pulp,
mechanical pulp, Sulphite pulp, semi-chemical pulp, and all kinds of articles in
the manufacture of which in any form, paper board or pulp is used, and also to
deal in or manufacture of which in any other articles or things of a character

similar or analogous to the foregoing or any of them or connected therewith.

3. To carry on business as consultants and advisers on various applications of the
products and by-products of the Company and to undertake designing,
servicing, erection, installation, execution and supply contracts for the same

clients and prospective clients.

4. To develop, cause to develop, produce and/or deal in the connected raw
materials, knowhow and facilities required for the production of the connected

raw material. "

124. YPL is mainly engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of
products like Pulp, Kraft Paper, Poster Paper, Mouldéd (Tableware) Products,
Bagasse Pith Pallets, and Egg Tray.

1.2.5.  YPL has more than 40 years of manufacturing experience in paper industry and
has all technical know-how into making of world class pulp which will ensure
world class compostable products from the machine. The new machines are
capable of producing right quality products required domestically and
internationally. In house production of pulp by YPL, which is a basic input for

(\’% L
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compostable products give YPL an edge over other competitors. With support
from trusted marketing partner like YCL brand Chuk has become a popular

name among the customers.
1.2.6. The shares of YPL are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange ("BSE"),
2. RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME
2.1.  The merger of YCL with YPL is based on the following rationale:

22.1. YCL and YPL, belonging to the same group of management, it would be
advantageous to combine the activities and operations in a single entity. The
amalgamation would create synergies between two complementing companies

with similar objective and business line.

212. Both YPL and YCL has their independent B2B customer’s and dealer
networks, supply chain and logistic partners, the amalgamation will also
provide synergistic linkages besides economies in costs by combining the total
business functions in aill segments including sales, procurement, logistic
activities and the related activities and operations and thus contribute to the
profitability of the amalgamated entity. |

2.1.3. Economies of scale will play a bigger role as the consolidated entity’s
operational efficiency will increase, which will in turn allow the merged entity
to compete on a larger scale in the industry, thus benefiting the merged entity

and the shareholders.

214 The amalgamation will enable the merged entity to build up a diversified
product portfolioc in YPL and will assist the merged entity with faster and
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quicker decision making as both manufacturing and marketing activities are

under the same management,

215 The amalgamation will enable the merged entity to get direct access 1o
customers which will give them a better understanding of the market taste and
customer requirements. This will assist the merged entity to produce right

quality required for different market segment

21.6.  With YPL having a manufacturing experience of more than 40 years alongwith
all the requisite technical know-how to produce in house paper pulp which is a -
basic input for compostable products, gives YPL an edge over other
competitors and YCL a company involved in marketing will result in the
merged entity to have all the necessary functions under one roof. It is
considered desirable and expedient to consolidate and amalgamate the business
of both YCL and YPL s0 as to bring both the functions will be under the same
management, production planning process will become more aligned to the
customer needs which will result in a stronger asset base and skills to conduct
the business in the emerging environment and to rationalise the costs of

business.

2.1.7. The amalgamation will increase the net worth of YPL which would enable it to
capitalise upon such improved net worth to enhance the stake holders’ value.

2.1.8. The amalgamation will increase financial strength, enhance flexibility and
ability to raise larger resources, attract and retain better talent and undertake

larger support services related projects.

2.1.9. The amalgamation will result in integration and effective utilisation of
resources, which is likely to result in optimising overall shareholder value and
improvement in competitive position of YPL as a combined entity.
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2.1.10. The amalgamation will result in economy of scale, reduction in overheads,
administrative and other expenditure, efficiency and optimal utilisation of

various resources,

2.1.11. The amalgamation will bring both the entities under one roof to portray one
face to all the parties with whom the Yash Group deals.

2.1.12. The amalgamation will result -in better leveraging of facilities, infrastructure

and resources.

2.1.13. Duplication of administrative functions together with the multiple record
keeping will be eliminated, resulting in over-all reduction in expenditure.

2.1.14. The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal
and regulatory compliances which at present is required to be made separately
by YCL as well as by the YPL. |

2.1.15. This merger will provide an opportunity to leverage assets and build a stfonger
sustainable business. It will provide an opportunity to fully leverage stronger
asset capabilities, experience, expertise and infrastructure of both the
companies and thus increased ability for promotion of business activities as-

well as for fund raising as may be required for business development.

~ 2.1.16. The merger would lead to synergic benefits, efficiency of operations and
management, rapid growth of the entity, optimum utilization of its resources

and minimization of the administrative and operative costs.

2.1.17. The merger will result in a value creation for the shareholders and stakeholders
of YCL and YPL as the combined amalgamated company will have improved
efficiency, market share, financial structure, larger cash flows and stronger
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consolidated revenue and profitability.

2..18. The merger of YCL with YPL would result in consolidation of business
activities of both the companies and will facilitate effective management of

investments and synergies in operation,

2.1.15. There is no likelihood that any shareholder or creditor or employee of YCL and
YPL would be prejudiced as a result of the Scheme. Thus, the merger is in the
interest of the shareholders, creditors and all other stakeholders of the
companies and is not prejudicial to the interests of the concerned shareholders,

creditors or the public at large.
3. OPERATION OF THE SCHEME

3.1. This Scheme is presented under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,
2013, and other applicable provisions of the relevant Act (as defined
hereinafier) for:

3.1.1.  merger of YCL with YPL; and

3.1.2. various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith.

4. DEFINITIONS

4.1. In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following

expression shall have the following meanings:

4.1.1. "Act" means the Companies Act, 2013, along with rules and regulations issued
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thereunder, including, any statutory modifications, re-enactments or
amendments made thereto from time to time. '

41.2. "Adjudicating Body(ies)" means the Hon’ble National Company Law Trib’unal,
Allahabad Bench and the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal as
constituted and authorised as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
approving any scheme of arrangement, compromise or reconstruction of
companies under section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other

authority having jurisdiction under the Act to sanction the scheme.

4.1.3. “Appointed Date" means April 01, 2020 or such other date as the Adjudicating
Body(ies) may direct or fix, for the purpose of amalgamation of YCL with YPL

under this Scheme.

414. "Board" or "Board of Directors" means the board of directors of YCL or YPL,
as the case may be, and shall, unless it is repugnant to the context or otherwise,
include a committee of directors or any person authorized by the board of

directors or such committee of directors.

4.1.5. "Effective Date" means the last of the dates on which the certified copies of the
Order(s) of the Adjudicating Body, are filed with the Registrar of Companies,
Allahabad.

All references in this Scheme to the date of "coming into effect of the/this -
Scheme” or "Effectiveness of the Scheme" or "Scheme taking effect” shall
mean the Effective Date.

4.16. "Governmental Authorities” means any applicable central, state or local

government, legislative body, regulatory or administrative éuthority, agency or
Fer Yash Pakka Limi
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commission or quasi-governmental or private body or agency lawfully
exercising, or entitled to exercise, any administrative, executive, judicial,
legislative, regulatory, licensing, competition, tax, importing or other
governmental or quasi-governmental authority or any court, tribunal, board,
bureau, instrumentality, judicial or arbitral body having jurisdiction over the
territory of India.

"LODR" means the SEBI (Listing Ob]igatiohs and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

. "Record Date" means the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of YPL for

the purpose of reckoning name of the equity shareholders of YCL, who shall be
entitled to receive the New Shares to be issued by YPL and for any other
purpose as provided in this Scheme.

"ROC" means the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur having jurisdiction in

relation to both the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

“Scheme" or "the Scheme" or "this Scheme" means this Scheme of Merger by
Absorption in it’s present form submitted to the relevant Adjudicating Body
with modification(s), approved or imposed or directed by the relevant
Adjudicating Body.

“SEBI Circulars" means the circulars issued by Securities and Exchange
Board of India in relation to the amalgamations and arrangements carried out
under the Act and shall infer-alia coliectively refer to SEBI Circular no.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI Circular no.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/26 dated March 23, 2017, the SEBI Circular no.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 03, 2018 and the SEBI Circular
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SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2019/192 dated September 12, 2019.
" Transferor Undertaking" means and includes:

All the assets and properties of YCL, whether real, tangible or intangible,
present or future, actual or contingent, or whether recorded in the books or not,
as on the commencement of the Appointed Date;

All debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of YCL, whether fixed, contingent

or absolute, as on the commencement of the Appointed Date;

Without prejudice to the generality of sub-clause 4.1.12.1 and 4.1.12.2 above,
the Transferor Undertaking shall mean and include:

all the assets and properties, whether movable or immovable, real or personal,
fixed assets, in possession or reversion, corporeal or incorporeal, tangible or
intangible, present or contingent assets including stock, investments, insurance
policies, claims, powers, authorities, allotments, approvals, registrations,
confracts, engagements, arrangements, rights, titles, interests, benefits,
advantages, lease-hold rights, tenancy rights, permits, authorisations, quota
rights, including reserves, provisions, funds, contributions (including to any
provident fund, employee state insurance, gratuity fund or any other schemes
or benefits for employees), utilities, electricity, telephone, data, water and other
service connections, books, records (including employee records and files;),
files, papers, engineering and process information, computer programmes
along with licenses, drawings, backup copics, websites, manuals, data,
catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising materials, lists of present and
former customers and suppliers, customer credit information, customer pricing

information, and other records, whether in physncal form or electronic form,
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benefits of agreements, contracts and arrangements, powers, authorities,
balances with all regulatory authorities, liberties, advantages, easements and all
the right, title, interest, goodwill, reserves, provisions, adi/ances, receivables,
funds, cash, bank balances, accounts, earnest moneys/ security deposits and all
other rights, claims and powers, of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated
belonging to or in the possession of or granted in favour of or enjoyed by YCL
as on the commencement of the Appointed Date and all earnest money and/or
deposits including security deposits paid by YCL as on the commencement of
the Appointed Date and all other rights, obligations, benefits available under
any rules, regulations, statutes including direct and indirect tax laws, central
goods and services tax, state goods and services tax and particularly Sales Tax
benefits, advance taxes, self-assessment tax, tax deducted at source, CENVAT
benefits, import and export benefits and custom duty bencﬁts, MAT credit, tax
deferrals, accumulated tax losses, unabsorbed tax depreciation of YCL;

41125, any license fee with any Governmental Authority that may have been paid by
YCL;

21126 all intellectual property rights including trademarks, brands, domain names,
trade names and the goodwill associated therewith, patent rights copyrights and:
other industrial designs and intellectual properties and rights of any nature -
whatsoever including know-how assignments and grants in respect thereof of
YCL;

4.1.12.7. all employees of YCL;
4.113. and in each case, as on the commencement of the Appointed Date and as

modified and altered from time to time till the Effective Date.
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5.1.

S.LL.

5.1.3.

Packaging with a Sout

"YCL" or "Transferor Company" means Yash Compostables Limited, a
company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 and having its
registered office situated at at Flat No.202, 3A/172 Azad Nagar, Kanpur
208002, Uttar Pradesh. The Permanent Account Number of YCL is
AAACY6672M.

"YPL" or "Transferee Company” means Yash Pakka Limited, incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered
offtce at 2nd Floor, 24/57, Birhana Road, Kanpur - 208001, Uttar Pradesh. The
Permanent Account Number of YPL is AAACY0482H.

All terms and expressions which are used in this Schefne but not defined herein
shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the
same meaning ascribed to them under the Act, the Income-tax Act, 1961, the
Securities Contracts (Regulation} Act, 1956, the Depositories Act, 1996 (as the
case may be) or other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case
may be, including any statutory amendment, modification or re-enactment

thereof, from time to time.

INTERPRETATION

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:
words denoting singular shall include plural and vice versa;

headings and bold typeface are only for convenience and shall be ignored for
the purposes of interpretation;

references to the word "include" or "including" shall be construed without

Fer Yash Pakkay.imi
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limitation;
5.4 a reference to an article, clause, section, paragraph or schedule is, unless
indicated to the contrary, a reference to an article, clause, section, paragraph or

schedule of this Scheme;

5.1.5. unless otherwise defined, the reference to the word "days" shall mean calendar

days;

5.1.6, references to dates and times shall be construed to be references to Indian dates
and times;

51.7. reference to a document includes an amendment or supplement to, or

replacement or novation of, that document;

5.1.8. word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined in the Scheme will have the

meaning(s) respectively ascribed to them; and
5.19. references to a person include any individual, firm, body corporate (whether
incorporated or not), government, state or agency of a state or any joint

venture, association, partnership, works council or employee representatives’

body (whether or not having separate legal personality).

6. SHARE CAPITAL

6.1. The Share Capital of YCL as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Authorised Share Capital
Fex Yash Pakka
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50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital: 5

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each ' 5,00,000
Total - 5,00,000

6.2.  The Share Capital of YPL as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Authorised Share Capital

Equity Shares

5,60,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each 56,00,00,000
Preference Shares

4,000,000 preference shares of Rs.100/- each 4,00,00,000
Total ' 60,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital:

3,52,40,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 35,24,00,000
Total 35,24,00,000

63. As on date of the approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors of YCL
and YPL, there is no change in the capital structure of YCL or YPL.

7. TRANSFER AND VESTING OF ASSETS AND LIABITIES OF YCL
INTO YPL
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7.1.  The entire assets, liabilities, business and undertaking (including, the
Transferor Undertaking) of YCL shall, with effect from the Appointed Date
and without any further act or deed, be and the same shall stand transferred to
and vested in or deemed to have been transferred to or vested in YPL, as a
going concern, pursuant to the provisiohs of Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the relevant Act and
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 2(1B) and 47 of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 and the provisions of this Scheme in relation to the mode of transfer
and vesting of assets. This Scheme is a '"Merger by Absorption' in terms of the
Explanation provided in Section 232 of the Act and shall be deemed to be
regarded as an ‘Amalgamation’ in terms of Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

7.2, This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to
"Amalgamation” as specified under Section 2(1B) and other relevant provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are
found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the said section
and other related provisions at a later date includihg resulting from a
retrospective amendment of law or for any other reason whatsoever, till the
time the Scheme becomes effective, the provisions of the said section and other
related provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 shall prevail and the Scheme
shall stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with Section
2(1B) and other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

7.3.  The assets of YCL, which are moveable in nature or incorporeal property or are
otherwise capable of transfer by manual delivery or by endorsement and
acknowledgement of possession, shall be so transferred by YCL and shall
become the property of YPL without any act or deed on the part of YCL

without requiring any separate deed or instrument or conveyance for the same
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74.

7.3.

7.6.

7.1.

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Packaging with a Soul

to the end and intent that the property and benefits therein passes to YPL.

The assets of YCL on the Appointed Date shall upon the Scheme coming into
effect, without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested
in and/or be deemed to be transferred and vested in YPL pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions of the Act and the vesting of all such assets shall take
place from the Effective Date. |

The assets of YCL, acquired by YCL on and from the Appointed Date up to the
Effective Date, shall also without any further act, instrument or deed stand
transferred to or be deemed to have been transferred to YPL upon the Scheme

coming into effect.

For avoidance of doubt, upon the Scheme coming into effect, all the rights,
title, interest and claims of YCL in any leasehold properties shall, pursuant to
Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of
Act, without any further act or deed, be transferred to and vested in or be
deemed to have been transferred to and vested in YPL.

For avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing, it is clarified that upon the Scheme coming into effect, all approvals,
permits, quotas, environmentﬁl approval and consents, consents, permissions
(municipal and any other statutory permission), licences, accreditations to trade
and industrial bodies, privileges, powers, facilities, certificates, clearances,
membership, subscriptions, entitlements, incentives, engagements, remissions,
remedies, powers, facilities, rehabilitation schemcé, authorities, subsidies,
concession, special status and other benefits or privileges (granted by any

Governmental Authorities or by any other person) any exemptions or waivers
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of every kind and description of whatsoever nature, powers of attorney given
by, issued to or executed in favour of YCL, shall stand transferred to YPL as if
the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of YPL and
YPL shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties fhereunder,
and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to YPL.

7.8.  As a consequence of the amalgamation of YCL with YPL in accordance with
this Scheme, the recording of change in name from YCL to YPL, whether for
the purposes of any licence, permit, approval or any other reason, or whether
for the purposes of any transfer, registration, mutation or any other reason,
shall be carmried out by the concerned statutory or regulatory or any other
authority without the requirement of payment of any transfer or registration fee

or any other charge or imposition whatsoever.

79. Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme, YPL may, at any
time after the Scheme becoming effective, in accordance with the provisions
hereof, if required by any applicable law or otherwise, take such actions or
execute such documents or deeds or make such applications to the
Governmental Authorities or any third person for the purposes of
transfer/vesting of the approvals, sanctions, consents, permits, rights,
entitlements, contracts or arrangements to which YCI, was entitled to or party
to, as the case may be and such authority or third party shall pursuant to
sanction of this Scheme by Adjudicating Body, deem to take on record in the
name of YPL. YPL shall make applications to any Governmental Authorities or
any third persons (as the case may be) as may be necessary in this behalf.

7.10. Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding
the fact that the vesting of YCL occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, YPL

may, at any time after the Scheme coming into effect in accordance with the
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provisions hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise, execute deeds (not
limited to deeds of adherence), confirmations or other writings or tripartite
arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangements to which YCL
was a party or any writing as may be necessary to be executed in order to give
formal effect to the above provisions. YPL shall, under the provisions of this
Scheme, be deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings on behalf of
YCL and to carry out or perform all such formalities and compliances as
required by YCL.

" 7.11. ' YPL shall be entitled to the benefit of all insurance policies which have been
issued in respect of YCL and the name of YPL shall be substituted as "Insured"
in the policies as if YPL was initially a party.

7.12. With effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities and obligations,
whether or not provided for in the books of accounts and whether disclosed or
undisclosed in the balance sheet of YCL, as on the close of the business on the
day immediately preceding the Appointed Date, shall become the debts
liabilities, duties and obligations of YPL. Upon the Scheme coming into effect,
YPL shall, in relation to all debts, liabilities and obligations provided for and
disclosed in the books of accounts and/ or balance sheet of YCL meet,
discharge and satisfy the same to the exclusion of YCL.

7.13. With effect from the Appointed Date, and subject to the provisions of this
Scheme, the liabilities of YCL including, but not limited to all secured and
unsecured debts, sundry creditors, liabilities (including contingent liabilities),
and all duties and obligations (including any guarantees, indemnities, letter of
credit or any other instrument or arrangement which may give rise to a
contingent liability in whatever form) of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or incurred ar utilized for its business
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activities and operations, shall, pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the
Adjudicating Body and under fhe provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act, instrument or
deed or matter or thing be transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have
been transferred to and vested in YPL, along with any charge, encumbrance,
lien or security thereon, and the same shall be assumed by YPL to the extent
they are outstanding on the Effective Date .so as to become as and from the
Appointed Date, the liabilities of YPL on the same terms and conditions as
were applicable to YCL, without any consent of any third party or other person
who is a party to the contract or arrangements by virtue of which such
liabilities have arisen, in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clausé.
Further, any existing credit facilities which have been sanctioned to YCL by
the bankers, financial institutions and any third party and which is standing as
on the Appointed Date but before the. Effective Date shall upon the Scheme
coming into effect ipso facto extend to YPL.

Where any such debts, loans raised, liabilities, duties and obligations of YCL
as on the Appointed Date have been discharged or satisfied by YCL after the
Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge or satisfaction
shall be deemed to be for and on account of YPL.

With effect from the Appointed Date, all guarantees, indemnities and
contingent liabilities of YCL shall also, without any further act or deed, be
transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to YPL so as to become as and
from the Appointed Date, as the guarantees, indemnities and contingent
liabilities of YPL and it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third
party or other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of
which such guarantees, indemnities and contingent liabilities have arisen or

given, in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause.
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The transfer and vesting of YCL as aforesaid, shall be subject to the existing
securities, charges, hypothecation and mortgages, if any, subsisting over or in
respect of the property and assets or any part thereof of YCL, provided
however, any refetence in any security documents or arrangements, to which
YCL is a party, wherein the assets of YCL have been or are offered or agreed
to be offered as security for ahy financial assistance or obligations, shall be
construed as reference only to the assets pertaining to YCL as are vested in
YPL by virtue of this Scheme, to the end and intent that such security, charges,
hypothecation and mortgage shall not extend or be deemed to extend, to any of
the other assets of YPL, provided further that the securities, charges,
hypothecation and mortgages (if any subsisting) over and in respect of the
assets or any part thereof of YPL shall continue with respect to such assets or
part thereof and this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge such securities,
charges, hypothecation or mortgages to the end and intent that such securities,
charges, hypothecation and mortgages shall not extend or be deemed to extend,
to any of other assets of YCL vested in YPL. Notwithstanding anything
contrary provided in this Scheme, it is clarified that this Scheme shall not
operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or facility created by YCL
which shall vest in YPL by virtue of the vesting of YCL with YPL and YPL
shall not be obliged to create any further or additional security therefore after
the amalgamation has become operative.

Without prejudice to the foregoing provisions, YCL and YPL may execute any
instruments or documents or do all the acts and deeds as may be considered
appropriate, including the filing of necessary particulars and/or modification(s)
of charge(s), with the respective ROC, Sub Registrar of Assurances and any
other Governmental Authorities to give formal effect to the above provisions, if

required.
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7.18. All inter party transactions between YCL and YPL as may be outstanding on
the Appointed Date or which may take place subsequent to the Appointed Date
and prior to the Effective Date, shall be considered as intra party transactions
for all purposes from the Appointed Date. Any loans or other obligations, if
any, due inter-se i.e. between YCL and YPL as on the Appointed Date, and
thereafter till the Effective Date, shall stand automatically extinguished.

7.19. All the loans, advances, credit, overdraft and other facilities sanctioned to YCL
by its bankers and financial institutions and any third party as on the Appointed
Date, whether utilised, partly drawn or unutilised shall be deemed to be the
loans and advances sanctioned to YPL and the said loans, advances and other
facilities can be drawn and utilised either partly or fully by YCL from the
Appointed Date till the Effective Date and all the loans, advances and other
facilities so drawn by any of YCL (within the overall limits sanctioned by their
bankers and financial institutions) shall on the Effective Date be treated as
loans, advances and other facilities made available to YPL and all the
obligations of YCL under any loan agreement shall be construed and shall
become the obligation of YPL without any further act or deed on the part of
YPL. Further, any existing credit facilities which have been sanctioned to YCL
by the bankers and financial institutions prior to or after the Appointed Date
but before the Effective Date éhall, upon the Scheme coming into effect ipso
facto extend to YPL.

720. All existing and future incentives, benefits, brought forward losses (if any),
book unabsorbed depreciation, tax unabsorbed depreciation, un-availed credits
and exemptions and other statutory benefits, including in respect of income tax,
excise (including cenvat), customs, central goods and services tax, state goods

and services tax, integrated goods and services tax, value added tax, sales tax,
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service tax etc. to which YCL is entitled to in terms of the various statutes /
schemes / policies, etc. of Union and State Governments shall be available to
and shall vest in YPL upon this Scheme becoming effective. Accordingly, upon
the Scheme becoming effective, YPL is expressly permitted to revise, if it
becomes necessary, its Income tax returns, Sales tax returns, Excise & Cenvat
returns, service tax returns, other tax returns, and to claim refunds/ credits,
pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme. YPL is also expressly permitted to
claim refunds and credits in respect of any transaction between or amongst
YCL and YPL.

All taxes, including, income-tax, tax on book profits, service tax, value added
tax, central goods and service tax, state goods and service tax, integrated goods
and services tax etc. paid or payable by YCL in respect of the operations and/
or the profits of YCL before the Appointed Date, shall be on account of YCL
and, in so far as it relates to the tax payment (including, without limitation,
income-tax, tax on book profits, value added tax, etc.) whether by way of
deduction at source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by YCL in respect of
the profits or activities or operation of YCL after the Appointed Date, the same
shall be deemed to be the corresponding item paid by YPL and shall, in all
proceedings, be dealt with accordingly. Any tax deducted at source by YCL/
YPL on payables to YCL/ YPL on account of inter corporate loans or balances
between YCL and YPL which has been deemed not to be accrued, shall be
deemed to be advance taxes paid by YPL and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt
with accordingly.

Any refund, under the Income-tax Act, 1961, central goods and services tax,
state goods and services tax, integrated goods and services tax, service tax
laws, excise duty laws, central sales tax, applicable state value added tax laws

or other applicable laws/ regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies due to
Fer Yash P, Limited
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YCL consequent to the assessment made on YCL (including any refund for
which no credit is taken in the accounts of YCL) as on the date immediately
preceding the Appointed Date shall also belong to and be received by YPL,

upon this Scheme becoming effective.

7.23. Any tax liabilities under the Income-tax Act, 1961, central goods and services
tax, state goods and services tax, integrated goods and services tax, service tax
laws, excise duty laws, central sales tax, applicable state value added tax laws
or other applicable laws/regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies of YCL
to the extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the accounts made
as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to
YPL.

7.24. All cheques and other negotiable instruments, payment orders received or
presented for encashment which are in the name of YCL after the Effective
Date shall be accepted by the bankers of YPL and credited to the account of
YPL, if presented by YPL. Similarly, the banker of YPL shall honour all
cheques issued by YCL for payment after the Effective Date. If required, YCL
shall allow maintaining of banks accounts in the name of YCL by YPL for such
time as may be determined to be necessary by YCL and YPL for presentation
and deposition of cheques and pay orders that have been issued in the name of
YCL. It is hereby expressly clarified that any legal proceedings by or against
YCL in relation to cheques and other negotiable instruments, payment orders
received or presented for encashment which are in the name of YCL shall be
instituted, or as the case may be, cohtinued, by or against, YPL after the
coming into effect of the Scheme.

7.25. Pursuant to the order of the Adjudicating Body, YPL shall file the relevant

notifications and communications in relation to assignment, transfer,
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canbellatitm, modification, or encumbrance of any license/ certificate and any
other registration including but not limited to central goods and services tax,
state goods and services tax, integrated goods and services tax, value added tax,
excise, service tax, income tax, [EC Code, ESI, company registration number,
PF, etc. if any, for the record of the appropriate authorities, which shall take

them on record.
ISSUE OF NEW SHARES

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and without any further act or deed on the
part of YPL, YPL will, in consideration of transfer:_and vesting of YCL into
YPL in terms of this Scheme, issuc 28,38,500 (Twenty eight lakhs thirty eight
thousand five hundred only) equity shares of Rs.10 each (the "New Shares") to
the registered fully paid-up equity shareholders of YCL in the ratio of 1:56.77,
ie. 56.77 (Fifty six point seventy seven only) equity share of Rs.10 each
credited as fully paid up in YPL for every 1 equity share of Rs.10 each fully
paid up held by them in YCL (the "New Shares Entitlement Ratio"). The New
Shares will be issued in the New Shares Entitlemen;é Ratio to registered fully
paid-up equity shareholders of YCL whose names are recorded in the register
of equity shareholders of YCL on the Record Date.

M/S Sudha Bhushan, Registered Valuer has issued the report dated June 19,
2020 on the aforesaid New Shares Entitlement Ratio adopted under this
Scheme. Mark Capital Advisory Services, Merchant Banker, has provided its
fairness opinion on the aforesaid New Shares Entitleﬁnent Ratio. The aforesaid
reports on New Shares Entitlement Ratio and Fairnegs Opinion have been duly
considered by the Audit Committee of YPL and the Boards of Directors of

- YCL and YPL, respectively.
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YPL, shall, increase its authorised share capital, to the extent required, in order

to issue the New Shares under this Scheme in accordance with the procedure

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

prescribed under Section 61 of the Companies Act, 2013, without prejudice to
the right of YPL to avail set off for the fees paid by YCL as per Clause 8.4 in
terms of Section 232(3)(i) of the Act.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the fees paid by YCL on the authorised
share capital of YCL shall, without any act or deed, be available as a set off to
YPL in terms of Section 232(3)(i) of the Act. It is hereby clarified that YPL
availing any set off of fees in relation to increase of its authorised share capital
shall be effected as an integral part of this Scheme without any further act or
deed on the part of YPL and the consent of the shareholders to the Scheme
shall be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting this amendment.
YPL shall not be obliged to follow the procedure or filing as required under
Sections 13, 61, 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other applicable
provisions of the relevant Act. It is further clarified that no registration fee/
ROC fees, stamp duty etc., shall be payable by YPL to such extent.

The aforesaid quantum of merging of authorised share capital of YCL with
YPL and consequent amendment to the Memorandum of Association of YPL is
indicative in nature and the same shall be subject to change due to any increase
in authorised share capital of YCL or YPL pursvant to the Appointed Date till
the Scheme coming into effect. Any such increase in the authorised share
capital of YCL or YPL pursuant to the Appointed Date till the Scheme coming
into effect shall stand ipso facto added or clubbed to aggregate authorised share
capital of YPL.

The New Shares, to be issued by YPL pursuant to Clause 8, shall be issued and
allotted in dematerialised form by YPL.
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In the event of there being any pending and valid share transfers, whether
lodged or outstanding, of any shareholder of YCL, the Board of Directors, or
any committee thereof, of YCL shall be empowered in appropriate cases, even
subsequent to the Record Date, as the case may be, to effectuate such a transfer
in YCL, as if such changes in registered holder were aperative as on the Record

Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to YCL or YPL, as the case

may be, in respect of such shares,

8.8.

8.9.

8.10.

8.11.

Feor Yash P:«ka Limited
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In the event the New Shares are required to be issued and allotted to such
shareholders of YCL, being non-resident, the issue of such shares shall be in
accordance with the provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act,
1999 and the applicable rules and regulations made thereunder (for the time
being in force, including, any statutory modifications, re-enactments or

amendments made thereto from time to time).

The New Shares, to be issued and allotted by YPL, in terms of this Scheme,
shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Association of YPL. The New Shares, to be issued and allotted,
shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the existing shares of YPL, including
in respect of dividends, if any, that may be declared by YPL, on or after the
Effective Date.

If, after applying the New Shares Entitlement Ratio, a person eligible to receive
equity shares of YPL pursuant to Clause 8, becomes entitled to receive any
fractional equity shares of YPL, such person shall be entitled to receive one

fully paid share instead of any such fractional entitlement.

Pursuant to Clause 8.10 above, the total number of shares that will be issued to

B
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equity shareholders of YCL, may vary from the total number of shares of YPL
to be issued as set forth in the first sentence of Clause 8.1

The issue and allotment of the New Shares in YPL to the relevant shareholders
of YCL as provided in the Scheme shall be carried out and the same would not
require following of the procedure laid down under Section 42 and 62 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable provisions of the relevant Act.

The New Shares to be issued by YPL under this Scheme pursuant to Clause §
in respect of any equity shares of YCL which are held in abeyance under the

- provisions of Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable

provisions of the relevant Act shall, pending allotment or settlement of dispute
by the order of court or otherwise, also be held in abeyance by YCL and YPL.

For the purpose of issue of the New Shares to the equity shareholders of YCL,
YPL inay, if and to the extent required, apply for and obtain the required
statutory approvals from the Governmental Authorities for the issue and
allotment by YPL of such New Shares.

Subsequent to the sanction of the Scheme, YPL will make an application for
1isting‘ of the New Shares, in which the shares of YPL are listed, in pursuance
to the relevant regulations including, Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read
with the SEBI Circulars.

The shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the
depositories system until listing/ trading permission is given by the designated

ror Yash Pakkx\' i
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The New Shares, to be issued by YPL under this Scheme to shareholders of
YCL, in lieu of the locked in shares of YCL, if any, shall be subject to lock-in
requirement for the remaining period in terms of the LODR read with the SEBI

Circulars,

8.18. There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern ar control in YPL between

| the Record Date and the listing of the shares of YPL by the stock exchange —
BSE Limited in terms of this Scheme.

8.19. YPL and YCL shall duly comply with various provisions of the LODR read
with the SEBI Circulars. ‘

9. CANCELLATION OF LOANS AND ADVANCES

9.1.  Upon the Scheme coming into effect, all the loans, inter-corporate deposits,
advances or any kind of debts, as the case may be, paid or subscribed by YCL
in YPL and vice versa shall, without any further act or deed, get cancelled at
their respective face value.

9.2. Upon the Scheme coming into effect, any instrument either issued by YPL or
YCL in relation to any outstanding loans, advances and/or any kind of debts, as
the case may be, as set out in Clause 9.1 shall also, without any further act or
deed, get cancelled.

9.3. The obligations in respect of aforesaid loans, advances or any kind of debts, as
the case may be, shall come to an end and a corresponding suitable effect shall
be given in the books of accounts and records of YPL. If required reduction/
cancellation of such loans, advances or any kind of debts shall be reflected in
For Yash Pa
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the books of accounts and récords of YPL.
DISSOLUTION OF YCL

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, YCL shall, without any further act or
deed, stand dissolved without winding up. The name of YCL shall be struck off
from the records of the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur and YPL shall make
necessary filings in this regard.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN BOOKS OF YPL

The merger of YCL with YPL is a Business combinations of entities under
common confrol' within the meaning of Indian Accounting Standard ("Ind
AS") 103 issued by the Central Government w’s 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 or any applicable standard prevailing. Upon the Scheme coming into
effect:

YPL shall recognize the accbunting treatment for this Scheme, upon the
Scheme becoming effective, in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 103
as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

To the extent that there are inter-corporate loans/trade deposits, debentures,
debt securities or balances between YCL and YPL, the obligation in respect
thereof shall come to an end and corresponding effect shall be given in the
books of account and the records of YPL for the reduction / netting of any

assets or liabilities, as the case may be.
Fer Yash Pakka Limj
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12.

12.1.

12.2.

STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

On the Scheme coming into effect, all the employees of YCL in service on
such date shall be deemed to have become employees of YPL with effect from
the Effective Date without any break in their service and on the basis of
continuity of service and the terms and conditions of their employment with
YPL shall not be less favourable than those applicable to them with reference
to YCL on the Effective Date. The position, rank and designation of the
employees would however be decided by YPL. Any salary, compensation,
fringe benefits, perquisites and other kind of consideration given by YCL from
the Appointed Date till the Effective Date will be deemed to have been paid by
YPL.

In so far as the Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund or any other Special Fund
created or existing for the benefit of the employees of YCL are concerned,
upon the Scheme coming into effect, YPL shall, stand substituted for YCL for
all purposes whatsoever in relation to the administration or operation of such
Fund or Funds or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said
Fund or Funds in accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms
provided in the respective Trust Deeds, if any, to the end and intent that all
rights, duties, powers and obligations of YCL in relation to such Fund or Funds
shall become those of YPL and all the rights, duties and benefits of the
employees employed in YCL under such Funds and Trusts shall be protected,
subject to the provisions of law for the time being in force. The contributions

made by YCL in respect of 1ts employees to such Fund or Funds for any period
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subsequent to the Appointed Date shall be deemed to be contributions made by
YPL. 1t is clarified that the services of the employees of YCL will be treated as
having been continuous for the purpose of the said Fund or Funds.

13. CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND STATUTORY CONSENTS

13.1. Subject to the provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds,
agreements, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature of YCL
which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the Effective Date
shall be in full force against or.in favour of YPL, and may be enforced as fully
and effectively as if, instead of YCL, YPL has been a party or beneficiary
thereto. YPL shall, if necessary, to give formal effect to this Clause, enter into
and/or issue and/or execute deeds, writings or confirmations or enter into a

tripartite arrangement, confirmation or novation to which YCL is a party.

13.2. YPL may, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance
k with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise, enter
into, or issue or execute deeds, writings, confirmations, novations, declarations,
or other documents with, or in favour of any party to any contract or
arrangement to which YCL is a party or any writings as may be necessary to be
executed in order to give formal effect to the above proviéions. YPL shall be
deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings on behalf and in the
name of YCL and to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances

required for the purposes referred to above on the part of YCL.

13.3. YPL shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the
relevant Governmental Authorities (including, the Court, Tribunal, Debt
Recovery Tribunal, as the case may be or any other agency, department or

other authorities concerned as may be necessary under law), for such consents, -
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approvals and sanctions which YPL, respectively, may require to own and
operate all or any party of YCL.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the resolutions of YCL including the
approvals that may have been obtained by YCL from its sharcholders and
which are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, as are considered
necessary by the Board of Directors of YPL shall be considered as resolutions
of YPL. If any such resolutions have any monetary limits approved under the
provisions of the Act or of any other applicable statutory provisions, then the
said limits, as are considered necessary by the Board of Directors of YPL, shall
be added to the limits, if any, under the like resolutions passed by YPL.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Any suit, petition, appeal or other proceeding of whatsoever nature and any
orders of court, judicial or quasi-judicial tribunal or other Governmental
Authorities enforceable by or against YCL including without limitation any
restraining orders (including order under section 281B of the Income-tax Act,
1961) pending before any court, judicial or quasi-judicial tribunal or any other
forum, relating to YCL, whether by or against YCL, pending as on the
Effective Date, shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way prejudicially
affected by reason of the amalgamation of YCL or of any order of or direction
passed or issued in the amalgalhation proceedings or anything contained in this
Scheme, but by virtue of the order sanctioning the Scheme, such legal
proceedings shall be continued and any prosecution shall be enforced by or

against YPL in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have -

For Yash Pakka, Limied
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been continued, prosecuted and/or enforced by or against YCL, as if this
Scheme had not been implemented.

After the Appointed Date and until the Effective Date, YCL shall defend all
legal proceedings, other than in the ordinary course of business, with the advice
and instructions of YPL.

The transfer and vesting of the assets and liabilities under the Scheme and the
continuance of the proceedings by or against YPL shall not affect any
transaction or proceeding already completed by YCL between the Appointed
Date and the Effective Date to the end and intent that YPL accepts all acts,

- deeds and things done and executed by and/or on behalf of YCL as acts, deeds

16.

16.1.

16.1.1.

16.1.2.

and things done and executed by and on behalf of YPL.
CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL THE EFFECTIVE DATE
With effect from the Appointed Date and up to the Effective Date:

YCL shall carry on its business and activities in the normal course of business
till the vesting of the Transferor Undertaking and amalgamation of YCL with
YPL on the Effective Date and shali be deemed to have held or stood possessed
of and shall hold and stand possessed of all the assets of YCL for and on
account of and in trust for YPL;

all the profits or income accruing or arising to YCL in relation to the Transferor
Undertaking or the expenditure or losses arising or incurred by YCL shall for
all purposes be treated and be deemed to be and accrued as the profits and

income or expenditure or losses of YPL.

ror Yash P a Limited
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YCL shall carry on their business activities with general prudence and shall
not, without prior written consent of YPL, alienate, charge or otherwise deal
with or dispose off any of its business undertaking or any part thereof (except
in the ordinary course of business or pursuant to any pre-existing obligations
undertaken by YCL prior to the Appointed Date).

YCL shall also be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the
Central Government, State Government, and all other agencies, departments
and statutory authorities concerned, including Securities & Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) and BSE Ltd. wherever necessary for such consents, approval and
sanctions which YPL may require including the registration, approvals,
exemptions, reliefs, etc., as may be required to be granted under any law for

time being in force for carrying on business by YPL.

YCL shall not make any modification to its capital structure, either by increase,
decrease, reclassification, sub-division or reorganisation or in any other
manner, whatsoever, except by mutual consent of the Boards of Directors of
YCL and of YPL.

all the taxes of YCL in relation to the Transferor Undertaking paid or payable
by YCL, including Income Tax Refunds receivable, Tax Credits such as TDS
Deducted by Customers/Banks, CENVAT Credit Balances, Goods and
Services Tax Credit Balances, Goods and Services Tax Refunds due and
Service Tax Refunds due, etc. shall be deemed to be taxes paid or payable by
or Credits available (as the case may be) for YPL; and

YCL shall, with simultaneous intimation to YPL, take major policy decisions
in respect of its assets and liabilities and its present capital structure.
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RATIFICATION

Except as provided in the Clauses above, YPL shall accept all acts, deeds and
things relating to the Transferor Undertaking, done and executed by and/or on
behalf of YCL on and after the Appointed Date as acts, deeds and things done
and executed by and/or on behalf of YPL, as the case may be.

DIVIDEND, PRO¥IT, BONUS, RIGHT SHARES

At any time upto the Effective Date, YCL shall not declare dividend, distribute
profits, or issue or allot any right shares or bonus shares or any other security
converting into equity shares or other share capital or obtain any other financial
assistance converting into equity shares or other share capital, unless agreed to
by the Board of Directors of YPL.

APPLICATION TO ADJUDICATING BODY

YCL and YPL shall, with all reasonable despatch, make applications/petitions
(jointly, if permissible) under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable provisions of the Act to the relevant Adjudicating Body,

for sanctioning of this Scheme and all matters ancillary or incidental thereto.
MODIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

Upon prior approval from the Adjudicating Body, YCL and YPL (by their

3 &>
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respective Board of Directors) may assent from time to time on behaif of
persons concerned to any modifications/amendments to this Scheme (including
but not limited to the terms and conditions thereof) or any conditions or
limitations which the relevant Adjudicating Body, or any authorities under the
law may deem fit to approve or impose and to resolve any doubt or difficulties
that may arise for carrying out this Scheme and to do and execute all such acts,
deeds, matters and things necessary for putting the Scheme into eﬁ"ect.

For the purpose of giving effect of this Scheme or to any modifications or
amendments, thereof, the Directors of YCL and YPL, or any person authorised
in that behalf by the concerned Board of Directors, may give and is/are
authorised to give all such directions that are necessary or are desirable

including directions for settling any doubts or difficultics that may arise,
CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME

Unless otherwise decided by the Board of YCL and YPL, this Scheme is
specifically conditional upon and subject to:

the approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of the respective members
and such class of persons of YCL and YPL, as required in terms of the
applicable provisions of the relevant Act as well as any requirements that may

be stipulated by the relevant Adjudicating Body in this respect;

in addition to the requirement stipulated under Clause 21.1.1 of this Scheme, in
case of YPL, the requisite resolution with respect to this Scheme, shall be
passed through e-voting, after disclosure of all material facts in the explanatory
statement (including the applicable information pertaining to YCL in the

format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part D of Schedule VIII
Fer Yash Pakkakimi
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of the ICDR Regulations), in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal
accompanying resolution to be passed sent to the shareholders while seeking
approval of the scheme whereby the votes cast by the public shareholders of
YPL in favour of the proposal relating to the Scheme are more than the number
of votes cast by the public shareholders of YPL against it as per the
requirement under the SEBI Circulars.

sanction of the relevant Adjudicating Body, being obtained under Sections 230
to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the Act,
if so required on behalf of YCL and YPL;

the necessary certified copies of the order under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act,
and other applicable provisions of the Act are duly filed with the Registrar of

Companies;

approval of the Government of India and/ or Reserve Bank of India and/ or
Securities and Exchange Board of India, if required and the consent of the BSE

Limited where such approval or consent is necessary; and

all other sanctions and approvals as may be required by law in respect of this
Scheme being obtained.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or-with any modification(s)
approved or imposed or directed by the Adjudicating Body and/or by the Board
of Directors in terms of Clause 21 shall although be operative from the
Effective Date but shall be deemed to be rel:rospeétively effective from the
Appointed Date in accordance with the provisions of Section 232 (6) of the

For Yash Pakka W ,
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REVOCATION OF THE SCHEME

In the event of any of the said sanction and approval referred to in the
preceding Clauses 21 above not being obtained and/or the Scheme not being
sanctioned by applicable Adjudicating Body and/or the Order(s) not being
passed as aforesaid within twenty four (24) months from the date of filing of
the Company Application with the relevant Adjudicating Body, or within such
further period(s) as may be agreed upon from time to time between YCL and
YPL (through their respective Board of Directors), this Scheme shall stand
revoked, cancelled and be of no effect and in that event, no rights and liabilities
whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se between YCL and YPL, or
their respective shareholders or employees or any other persons, save and
except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated
hereunder or as to any right, obligation and/or liabilities which might have
arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be
preserved or worked out as is specifically provided in this Scheme and or
otherwise arise as per law. For the purpose of giving full effect to this Scheme,
the respective Board of Directors of YCL and YPL, aré hereby empowered and
authorised to agree to and extend the aforesaid period from time to time
without any limitations in exercise of their power through and by their
respective delegates.

The Board of Directors of YCL and YPL, shall be entitled to revoke, cancel
and declare the Scheme of no effect if such Boards of Directors of YCL and
YPL are of the view that the coming into effect of the Scheme in terms of the
provisions of this Scheme or filing of the drawn up/ certified/ authenticated

orders with any authority could have adverse implication on both/ any of the

For Yash Pakka Limited
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companies or in case any condition or alteration imposed by the relevant

Adjudicating Body or any other authority is not on terms acceptable to them.

If any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, ruled illegal by any court of
competent jurisdiction or unenforceable under present or future laws, then it is
the intention of the parties that such part shall be severable from the remainder
of the Scheme and the Scheme shall not be affected thereby, unless the deletion
of such part shall cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to any party,
in which case the parties shall attempt to bring about a modification in the
Scheme, as will best preserve for the parties the benefits and obligations of the
Scheme, including but not limited to such part.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES CONNECTED WITH THE
SCHEME '

All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses of YCL
and YPL in relation to or in connection with or incidental to this Scheme shall
be borne by YPL.
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+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P), india

www.yashpakka.com

CIN: L24231UP1981PLC005294
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ANNEXURE-3
Valuation Opinion

Recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio
For Amalgamation of Yash Compostables Limited with Yash Pakka Limited
Date: 18" June, 2020

Sudha Bhushan ]| Registered Valuer (Securities or Financial Assets)
Registration No: IBBI/RV/07/2019/12234
Address: 701, B Wing, Julian Alps, Bhakti Park, Wadala

Sudhag999@gmail.com || +91 009765033172
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The Board of Directors M/s. Yash Compostables Limited
M/s. Yash Pakka Limited Flat No.202, 3A/172 Azad Nagar,
2nd Floor, 24/57,Birhana Road, Kanpur - 208002, Uttar Pradesh.

Kanpur - 208001, Uttar Pradesh

Date: 18% June, 2020
Dear Sir,

I, Sudha Bhushan, have been appointed by the Board of Directors on 19% May 2020 (Transferee Company) (“Appointment Date”} for recommendation of
share entitlement ratio for the proposed merger of M/s. Yash Compostables Limited ("Transferor Company” or “YCL”) with M/s. Yash Pakka Limited
("the Transferee Company” or “YPL") as on 1st April, 2020 (“Valuation Date”) (“Proposed Transaction”) pursuant to a Composite Scheme of Arrangement
under Section 230 to Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Scheme”). The Appointed date
for the Scheme is 15t April, 2020.

[ am a Registered Valuer registered for the asset class - Securities or Financial Assets with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India pursuant to which [
am recognized to issue this opinion / report.

All information in this report with respect to the valuation subject has been obtained by me from the various officials of Transferor and the Transferee
company. I am responsible only to the Companies engaging me and nobody else. We understand that the contents of my report have been reviewed in detail
by the Management and that you agree with the contents of this report (especially fact based).

[ do not have any conflict of interest in issuing this opinion.
Thanking You,

Yours Sincerely,

"

Sudha Bhushan

Registered Valuer (Securities or Financial Assets)
Registration No: IBBI/RV/07/2019/12234

Date: 18t June, 2020 || Place: Mumbal

Address : 701, B Wing, Julian Alps, Bhakti Park, Wadala

)
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Background

» Yash Compostables Limited

o Yash Compostables Limited was incorporated as a public limited Company under the Companies Act, 2013 on February 27, 2014 and having its
registered office at Flat No.202, 3A/172 Azad Nagar, Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh-208002.

o The Company is primarily engaged in the business of trading of food containers, bowls, plates from the agricultural residues.

o Capital structure of the Company as on 31st May, 2020 is as follows:

Share Capital Amount
Authorized Share Capital ,
50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 13/- each 5,00,000
TOTAL : 5,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up Shar ital
50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each Fuily Paid 5,00,000
TOTAL 5,00,000

« YashPakka Limited

O Yash Pakka Limited was incorporated as a public limited company on May 5, 1981 under the Companies Act, 1956 and having registered office at
2nd Floor, 24/57,Birhana Road, Kanpur - 208001, Uttar Pradesh.

0 The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of pulp, kraft paper, poster paper, pith pallets, eggs tray and Sustainable
packaging materials mainly serves to Food packaging companies.

o Capital structure as on 31st May, 2020 is as foliows:

)
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Share Capital Amount

Authorized Share Capital

5,60,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 56,00,00,000
4,00,000 Preference shares of Rs. 100/- each 4,00,00,000
TOTAL 60,00,00,000
Tssued. subscribed and paid-up Share Capital

3,52,40,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each Fully Paid 35,24,00,000
TOTAL 35,24,00,000

Proposed Transaction ‘
» We understand that the management of the Companies are contemplating a Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) whereby:
o The Scheme provides for the merger of YCL (Transferor Company) with YPL {Transferee Company)

o Asa consideration for the Proposed Transaction, shares of YPL would be issued to the shareholders of YCL.
» The scope of our services is to conduct valuation in accordance with generally accepted valuation standards for the purpose of Proposed Transaction.

)

| |Sudha G. Bhushan | | Registered Valuer| |}




&7

Salient Features of the Scheme

* The Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) is presented under Sections 230 to 232, other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & the Rules
framed thereunder and in compliance with the conditions relating to “Amalgamation” as specified u/s 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

¢ With effect from the Appointed Date, the entire Undertakings of the Transferor Company including the assets and liabilities as on the Appointed Date,
shall pursuant to Section 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and shall stand transferred
toand vested in and/or deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company as a going concern.

» With effect from the Appointed Date, all the debts, unsecured debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of every kind, nature and description of the
Transferor Company shall also under the applicable provisions of the Act, without any further act or deed be transferred to or be deemed to be
transferred to the Transferee Company.

Information Sources
For the purposes of undertaking this Valuation exercise, we have relied on the following sources of information and documents:

+ Audited Financial statements of YCL for 31t March, 2019 & Un Audited Certified Financial Statement for 31st March 2020:

* Audited Financial statement of YPL 31st March, 2019. Unaudited Financial results alongwith Limited review results up to Q3 of 2019-20 of Yash
Pakka Limited

Projected financial statements of YCL FY 2020-21, FY 2021-22 & FY 2022-23 of YCL

Draft Scheme of Amalgamation;

Write up on brief overview of the Transferor Company, Transferee Company and its operations; and

Discussion with management of the Companies regarding its business operations.

)]
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Applicable Regulations & Valuation Methodologies

Section 247 of the Companies Act, 2013 prescribes that "where a valuation is required to be made in respect of any property, stocks, shares, debentures,
securities or goodwill or any other assets (herein referred to as the assets) or net worth of a company or its liabilities under the provision of this Act, it
shall be valued by person having such qualifications and experience and registered as a valuer in such manner, on such terms and conditions as may be
prescribed and appointed by the audit committee or in its absence by the Board of Directors of that company”.

Sub-section 2 of Section 247 further states that “the valuer appointed under sub-section (1) shall,

- make an impartial, true and fair valuation of any assets which may be required to be valued;

- exercise due diligence while performing the functions as valuer;

- make the valuation in accordance with such rules as may be prescribed; and

- not undertake valuation of any assets in which he has a direct or indirect interest or becomes so interested at any time during a period of three
years prior to his appointment as valuer or three years after the valuation of assets was conducted by him.

Further, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) have prescribed Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 ("Valuation Rules”)
which prescribe the conditions of registration and conduct of valuation.

Rule 8 of the Valuation Rules, which deals with the conduct of valuations, prescribe that the registered valuer shall, while conducting a valuation,
comply with the valuation standards as notified or medified under rule 18. Provided that until the valuation standards are notified or modified by the
Central Government, a valuer shall make valuations as per:

- Internationally accepted valuation standards;

- Valuation standards adopted by any registered valuers’ organization.

Since the Central Government has yet not notified any valuation standards, I have carried out the valuation on the basis of Internationai Vaiuation
Standards 2017 (“IVS”)1 along with and Indian Valuation Standards 2018 issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India, a registered
valuer’s organization, to the extent applicable.

Valuation Bases

ICAI Valuation standard 102 defines the Valuation Bases and prescribes the corresponding fundamental assumptions on which valuation will be based
and provides the premises of values.

)
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¢ There are three valuation bases which are required to be chosen by the Valuer considering the terms and purpose of the valuation engagement.

o [Fair vajue: Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the valuation date.

o Participant specific value: Participant specific value is the estimated value of an asset or liability considering specific advantages or
disadvantages of either of the owner or identified acquirer or identified participants.

o Liqujdation Value: Liquidation value is the amount that will be realised on sale of an asset or a group of assets when an actual /hypothetical
termination of the business is contemplated /assumed.

b) Valuation Methodologies

Valuation is a looking forward exercise. There are three broad approach through which the valuation can be done. The approach depends on the method
that is being followed to value the asset. The approaches are divided into three types being :

1. The Asset based valuation

2. Earnings based valuation

3. Market based valuation

Market Approach

Market approach is a valuation approach that uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or
comparable (i.e, similar) assets, liabilities or a group of assets and liabilities, such as a business.

o Market Price Method

Under this method, the market price of an equity share of the company as quoted on a recognized stock exchange is normally considered as the fair
value of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising from the shares being regularly and freely traded. The market value
generally reflects the investor’s perception about the true worth of the company.

o Comparable Companies Multiples (CCM) Method
The value is determined on the basis of the multiples derived from valuations of comparable companies, as manifest in the stock market valuations of

listed companies. This valuation is based on principle that market valuations, taking place between informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate
all factors relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for differences between the circumstances.

o Comparable Transactions Multipies {CTM) Method

)
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Under CTM Method, the value is determined on the basis of multiples derived from valuations of similar transactions in the industry. Relevant
muitiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for differences between circumstances.

e Income Approach
Discounted Cash flow Approach (“DCF’

o DCF Approach is widely used for valuation under ‘Going Concern’ basis. It focuses on the income generated by the company in the past as well as
its future earning capability.

o Under the DCF method, the business is valued by discounting its free cash flows for the explicit forecast period and the perpetuity value thereafter.
The free cash flows in the explicit period and those in perpetuity are discounted by Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC). The WACC, based
on an optimal vis-a-vis actual capital structure, is an appropriate rate of discount to calculate the present value of future cash flows as it considers
debt-equity risk by incorporating debt-equity ratio of the firm.

o The perpetuity (terminal value) is calculated based on the business potential for further growth beyond the explicit forecast period. The "Constant
Growth Model” is applied, which implies an expected constant level of growth for perpetuity in the cash flows over the last year of forecast period.

o The discounting factor reflects not only the time value of money, but also the risk associated with the future business operations. The Enterprise
Value (aggregate of present value of explicit period and terminal period cash flows) so derived, is further reduced by value of debt, if any, {net of
cash and cash equivalents) to arrive at value to the owners of business.

)

» Cost Approach
Cost approach is a valuation approach that reflects the amount that would be required currently to replace the service capacity of an asset (often referred
to as current replacement cost}.

o Replacement Cost Method

Replacement Cost Method, also known as ‘Depreciated Replacement Cost Method’ involves valuing an asset based on the cost that a market
participant shall have to incur to recreate an asset with substantially the same utility (comparable utility) as that of the asset to be valued, adjusted
for obsolescence.

| ISudha G. Bhushan | | Registered Valuer| |




mn

o Reproduction Cost Method

Reproduction Cost Method involves valuing an asset based on the cost that a market participant shall have to incur to recreate a repiica of the
asset to be valued, adjusted for obsolescence,

»
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Valuation Analysis and Conclusion

The valuation exercise involves selecting a method suitable for the purpose of valuation, by exercise of judgment, based on the facts and circumstances as
applicable to the business of the Companies to be valued. By its very nature, valuation waork cannot be regarded as an exact science and given the same set of
facts and using the same assumptions, expert opinions may differ owing to the number of subjective decisions that have to be made. There can therefore, be
no standard formulae to establish an indisputable value, although certain appropriate formulae are useful in establishing reasonableness.

As mentioned earlier, the present valuation exercise is being undertaken in order to derive the Share Entitlement Ratio for the Proposed Transaction.

— In the case on hand, the engagement includes valuation of YPL which is a listed company on a Recognized Stock Exchange in India, hence we
have adopted the ‘Market Price Method under the Market Approach’.
« For Valuation of Equity shares of YPL, we have considered average market price of last 26 weeks preceding the date of Valuation by calculating
the weekly average of High Price & Low Price for each traded week.
*  As per this method, the fair value of YPL is 121,50,61,646 which is Rs.34.48/- per equity share

— For the purpase of valuation of YCL,
¢ We have used the Discounted Cash Flow method for valuation of YCL.
¢ As mentioned above, The Income approach derives an estimation of value based on the sum of present value of expected benefits estimated to be
derived from assets or business. Economic benefits may be in the nature of dividends and capital appreciation. Valuation is a forward looking exercise.
An asset is mostly purchased for the value it may be able to derive in the future. Income approach is the most scientific approach as it considers the
time value of money and the cash outflows including working capital & capital expenditure that are required for the increased levels of business
forecasted. Also, YCL being an unlisted company the comparable data is not readily available.

As per DCF method, value of YCL is arrived at Rs.11,83,22,614/- And this converted into per equity share of YCL at Rs.2,366.45/-

Based on the forgoing, and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as discussed and outlined hereinabove, we have arrived at the
values per share as follows:

Company Amount (in Rs.)

Based on the ahove, and on the consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as discussed and outlined herein above, we recommend the
following Share Exchange Ratio

* 68.63 equity shares of face value Rs.10/- each of YPL for every 1 equity shares held in YCL.

)
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Limiting Conditions

[ ]

Valuation analysis and results are specific to the purpose of valuation mentioned in this report as per agreed terms of our engagement. It may not be valid
for any other purpose or as at any other date. Also, it may not be valid if done on behalf of any other entity.

The determination of Share Entitlement Ratio is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in many cases will, of necessity, be subjective and
dependent on exercise of individual judgment. While, we have provided our recommendation of the Share Entitlement Ratio based on the information
available to us, others may have a different opinion. The final responsibility for the determination of the Share Entitlement Ratio is with the Board of
Directors who should take into account other factors and input of other advisors.

This Report does not look into the business/ commercial reasons behind the Proposed Transacticn nior the likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly,
it does not address the relative merits of the Proposed Transaction as compared with any other alternative business transaction or other alternatives or
whether or not such alternatives could be achieved or are available,

No investigation / inspection of the Companies claim to title of assets has been made for the purpose of this Report and the Companies claim to such rights
has been assumed to be valid.

We owe responsibility to only the Client that has retained us and nobody else. We do not accept any liability to any third party in relation to the issue of
this valuation report.

We have relied on information as provided to us. We assume no responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of information and will not be held
liable for it under any circumstances. We have not conducted an audit, or due diligence, or reviewed / validated the projections / financial data provided
by the Management.

We assume that the Management has brought to our attention all material transactions, events or any other factors having an impact on the valuations.

Our analysis is based on the market conditions and the regulatory environment that currently exists. However, changes to the same in the future could
impact the company and the industry it operates in, which may impact our valuation analysis.

Neither we nor any of our affiliates are responsible for updating this report because of events or transactions occurring subsequent to the date of this
report.

The valuation analysis and result relies upon the information substantively contained herein and which inter alia has been provided by you.

[t is our understanding that the results of our valuation will be used by Management for Proposed Transaction only. Our valuation report cannot be used
for any other purpose.

13
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Annexures

Fair Valuation of Equity Share of Yash Pakka Limited
Annexure-1
Relevant Date: 19th June, 2020,
Board Meeting date is 20th June, 2020. Since it's a weekend, 19th June, 2020 is considered as relevant date.

Weeks From To Volume W;iél;ltg:, :;]erage Price Volume W:.iil;te{é AA;;:rage Price Average Price
1 20-Dec-19 26-Dec-19 40.68 39.93 40.31
2 27-Dec-19 2-fan-20 42.64 40.35 41.50
3 3-Jan-20 9-Jan-20 _ 42.65 40.65 41.65
4 10-Jan-20 16-Jan-20 42.75 4196 4235
5 17-Jan-20 23-Jan-20 45.40 43.46 44.43
6 24-Jan-20 30-Jan-20 44.85 43.50 4418
7 31-Jan-20 6-Feb-20 4294 40.64 4179
8 7-Feb-20 13-Feb-20 44.18 40.09 4213
9 14-Feb-20 20-Feb-20 39.59 37.72 38.65
10 21-Feb-20 27-Feb-20 37.85 35.99 36.92
11 28-Feb-20 S-Mar-20 36.19 31.85 34,02
12 6-Mar-20 12-Mar-20 29.95 25.73 27.84
13 13-Mar-20 19-Mar-20 23.42 21.38 2240
14 20-Mar-20 26-Mar-20 22.61 17.96 20.28
15 27-Mar-20 2-Apr-20 21.90 21.16 21.53
16 3-Apr-20 9-Apr-20 26.75 20.37 2356
17 10-Apr-20 16-Apr-20 28.77 27.28 28.03

)

| |Sudha G. Bhushan } {Registered Valuer| [t




5

18 17-Apr-20 23-Apr-20 3538 30.03 32.71
19 24-Apr-20 30-Apr-20 37.33 35.05 36.19
20 1-May-20 7-May-20 32.10 2977 3093
21 8-May-20 14-May-20 3435 31.42 3289
22 15-May-20 21-May-20 37.27 33.74 35.51
23 22-May-20 28-May-20 35.76 3416 3496
24 29-May-20 4-Jun-20 36,37 35.27 35.82
25 5-Jun-20 11-Jun-20 36.10 3233 34.21
26 12-Jun-2Q 18-Jun-20 32.21 3118 3168
Average Price 34.48
Adopted or
Sr.No Approach-Method ll:o t Reason
1 Income Approach-Discounted Cash No Since YPL is a listed entity, Market price is the best approach for determination
Flow Method of fair value of equity.
5 Market Approach-Market Price Yes YPL is a listed entity on a recognized stock exchange & hence the Market Price
Method determined above represents fair value of its equity share.
Since the best Method for YPL is Market Price method, we have not considered
3 Net Asset Value Method No

NAV Approach

N
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Fair Valuation of Equity Share of Yash Compostables Limited

Annexure-Il

Income Statement

Particulars (INR in millions) FY2019 FY2020 FY2021(P) FYZ022(P) FY2023(P)
Historical ' '  Projected
Revenue from operations 112.4 212.5 344.0 5160 670.7
Sale of tableware goods 112.4 212.5 344.0 516.0 670.7
Total Revenue 1124 212.5 344.0 $16.0 670.7
Expenses 127.0 211.2 3298 501.2 645.3
Purchases 103.6 184.3 2983 443.7 576.8
Change in Inventory -0.3 - -0.5 -15.5 -8.0 -7.3
Employee Cost 83 122 325 46.5 51.2
5G&A 15.4 15.2 14.5 18.9 24.6
EBIDTA .- -14.5 BEE T 148 254
Less: Depreciation and amortization expense 0.0 1 0.3 0.5 08
Add: Other income 0.3 0.6 - - -
Less: Finance Cost 0.8 35 24 3.6
Profithefore tax’ . 150, 17 118 106
.. Less: 'I’ax. . | -39 -04 — 26 ] 24—
Current tax - - 26 24 48
Deferred tax -39 -0.4 - - -
Taxes of earlier year - - - - -
Tax Rate - - - - -

»
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Balance Sheet
Particulars (INR in millions) T FY2020(P) FY2021(P) FY2022(P) FY2023(P)
Historical Projections
Shareholders’ funds -10.8 -12.1 -3.2 4.9 211
Share capital 0.5 05 0.5 0.5 0.5
Existing Capital 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
New Equity Infusicn - - : - -
Conversion of debt into equity . - . - -
Reserves and surplus -11.3 -12.6 -3.7 44 20.6
Profit & Loss -11.3 -12.6 -3.7 44 20.6
Securities Premium - - - . -
Borrowings - - 24.2 36.2 36.2
Long-term borrowings - - 24.2 36.2 36.2
Short Term Borrowing - - - -
Current Liabilities 40.8 422 43.2 64.4 82.8
Payables 36.5 380 36.8 54.7 71.1
Short Term Provision 0.6 11 2.8 39 4.3
Other Current Liabilities 37 3.1 5.8 7.4
“Total Liabilities 1056 [~
ASSETS
Non-current assets 4.6 5.8 6.4 6.8 7.0

77
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Net Income
Add: Depreciation
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets

(Increase) / Decrease in inventory

{increase) / Decrease in receivables

-11.1
0.0

-13

<03
-21.5

-13
0.1

0.9

-0.5
1.4

88
0.3

-15.5
-12.9

Projected

Gross Block 0.3 0.6 15 2.4 3.3

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 0.0 0.2 0.4 1.0 1.8

Net Block 0.3 0.4 1.0 14 1.6
Intangibles Assets under development 0.4 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9
Other Non-Current Asset -Sec.depaosit 01 0.1 0.1 01 0.1
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 39 44 4.4 4.4 44
Current Assets 254 244 57.8 98.8 133.3
Inventaries 0.3 0.9 16.3 24.3 31.6
Receivables 21.5 20.1 33.0 49.5 64.3
Cash & Cash Equivalents 23 30 8.0 24.6 369
Short-term Loan and Advances 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.3 03
Other Current Assets 08 01 0.1 0.1 01
. 'I‘otalAsSets 30.0 302 105.6 1402

Cash Flow Statement
Particulars (INR in millions) FYZ0ZO(P) FY2021(P) FY2022(P) FY2023{F)

8.2
0s

-8.0
-16.5

16.2
0.8

-7.3
-14.8
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Increase / (Decrease) in payables 36.5 15 -1.2 17.9 16.4
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current liability 43 -01 22 33 2.0
Total Cash flow from operations after WC 6.6 2.1 -18.3 5.5 13.2
Add: New equity capital infusion - - - - -
Add: Change in borrowings - - 24.2 120 -
Total Cash flow from financing - - 24.2 12.0 ' .
Total Sources 6.6 2.1 59§ 17.5 - 132
(Increase} / Decrease in non-current assets 4.0 0.5 - - -
Less: Capital expenditure 0.7 08 09 09 09
Total Uses ‘ . ' 4,7 13 : 0.9 09. . - 09
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 19 08 5.0 16.6 12.3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 0.4 2.3 30 8.0 24.6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period o 23 30 80 246 369 | | ow

Discounted Cash Flow Valuation

Assiruptions: Vartable Comments

Risk Free Rate Average of India 10-Year G-sec from 1st June 2019 to 31st May 2020.
Beta 1.0 | Assumed as risk profile to be higher than market risk

Market Return 13.9% | Measured by price return on Nifty 100 since its inception.

Terminal Growth Rate 4.0%
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Cost of Equity

13.9%

CAPM---->Re=Rf+B(Rm-Rf)

Particulars/Period (INR in illion)

Profit after Tax

Add: Depreciation

Add: Change in Working Capital
Operating cash Flow

Less: Capital Expenditure

Less: Repayment of Borrowings
Free Cash Flow to the Equity (FCFE)
Time Period / Year Fraction
Discounting Factor @ Cost of euity (Ke)
Discounted Cash Flow

Sum of Discounted Cash Flow (A}
Terminal Value

Present Value of Terminal Value (B)
Enterprise Value

Add: Cash

Equity Value

Equty shares Ofs (of FV INR 10)

Mar-21
8.83
0.28

(27.45)

(18.35)
093

(24.24)

Mar-22

8.17

0.54

(3.20)

5.51

0.93

(12.00)
1658
1.83

0.79

13.06

Mar-23

0.79
(3.75)
13.25

0.93

12.32
2.83
0.69
8.52

As on 15t june, 2020

)
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In other words,
Sr.No Approach-Method Adogﬁd or Reason

income Approach-Discounted YCL is an unlisted entity & continuing its aperation on going concern basis, ths.arefore

1 Cash Flow Method Yes Management has forecasted company’s future earning capability. Based on this, we

have followed DCF Method which gives more appropriate Fair Value of equity.

Market Approach-Market . , , . ) .

2 Price Method No YCL being an unlisted Company, Market Price Approach is not applicable to it.

3 Net Asset Value Method No Since YCL don't have any short term/long term borrowings in its capital base, we have

not considered NAV Method.

)
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Computation of Fair Exchange Ratio

YPL YCL

value Value

Per Per

Share Weight | Share Weight
Asset Approach NA 0 MA 0
Income Approach NA 0 2366.45 1
Market Approach 34.48 1 NA o
Relative Value per Share 34.48 2.366.45

Exchange Ratio 68.63

Ratio:

68.63 (Sixty eight point sixty three) Equity Share of Yash Pakka Limited of INR 10 each fully paid for every 1 (One) Share of Yash Compostable Limited (YCL)
of INR 10 each fully paid up

Reason for Not Using Certain Methods in Valuation - YPL

Yash Pakka Limited (YPL) is a listed company on a Recognized Stock Exchange in [ndia, and the price determined by market forces is the most
appropriate and relevant price for the Company and hence we have adopted the ‘Market Price Methed under the Market Approach’. The other methods
like Income Approach and Asset Approach is not considered here because they are not representative of the valuation of YPL.

For Valuation of Equity shares of YPL, we have considered average market price of last 26 weeks preceding the date of Valuation by calculating the
weekly average of High Price & Low Price for each traded week. As per this method, the fair value of YPL is 121,50,61,646 which is Rs.34.48/- per

equity share

»

| [Sudha G. Bhushan | |Registered valuer| |
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Reason for Not Using Certain Methods in Valuation - YCL

We have only considered the Discounted Cash Flow method for valuation of YCL because the entity is a relatively new company and in the growing
pattern. The Asset approach is not appropriate here as the company will take time to establish sales and market network and the benefit of the current
set up established will be derived in the coming period. The Market approach is also not appropriate for the valuation due to the fact that the company
is a Pvt Ltd and not listed and there is no data from comparable deals is available for similar companies. in this situation we are constrained to use only
DCF method under the Income Approach as the most reliable valuation of YCL

An asset is mostly purchased for the value it may be able to derive in the future. Income approach is the most scientific approach as it considers the
time value of money and the cash outflows including working capital & capital expenditure that are required for the increased levels of business
forecasted. Also, YCL being an unlisted company the comparable data is not readily available. As per DCF method, value of YCL is arrived at
Rs.11,83,22,614/- And this converted into per equity share of YCL at Rs.2,366.45/-

),

| |Sudha G. Bhushan |jRegistered Valuer| |
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF YASH PAKKA LIMITED
RECOMMENDING THE DRAFT SCHEME OF MERGER BY ABSORPTION OF YASH
COMPOSTABLES LIMITED BY YASH PAKKA LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
SHAREHOLDERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISONS OF SECTION 230 TO
232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

To,

The Board of Directors

Yash Pakka Limited ”
2" Floor, 24/57,

Birhana Road,

Kanpur — 208001, Uttar Pradesh

Members Present Physically:

Mr. Jagdeep Hira - Member
Members Present through Video Conferencing:
Mr. Atul Kumar Gupta - Member
Mr. Basant Kumar Khaitan - Member
Mr. Ved Krishna - Member
= Mr. ShrinivasVishnubhatla - Member
Special invitee Present through Video Conferencing:
Mr. Pradeep Vasant Dhobale - Chairman of Company
Ms. Prapti Acharya B Special Invitee
Mr. Jignesh Shah - Special Invitee
Mr. Amit Sharma - Executive Director of YCL
Statutory Auditor Present through Video Conferencing:
Mr. Himanshu Kishnadwala - Chartered Accountant
Ms. Shraddha Kishnadwala - Chartered Accountant
Ms. Gauri Kotasthane - Chartered Accountant

Internal Auditor through Video Conferencing:
Mr. D. S. Mathur - Chartered Accountant

Financial Consultant through Video Conferencing:
Mr. Himanshu Kapoor - Chartered Accountant

Key Managerial Personnel Physically
Mr. Sachin Kumar Srivastava - Company Secretary & Head Legal

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P.), India
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Company Officials Present Physically

Mr. Manoj Kumar Maurya - Commercial Head

Ms. Navina John - Admin Head

Mr. Krishna Agarwal - Head of IT Strategy

Mr. Lokesh Agarwal - Head of MIS

Mr. SumantPai - Moulded Products Sales Head

1. Background

A draft Scheme of Merger by absorption under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, as may
be applicable, of Yash Compostables Limited (“Transferor Company” or “YCL”") by Yash
Pakka Limited (“Transferee Company” or “YPL" or “the Company”) and their respective
Shareholders (“Scheme”) has been placed before the Audit Committee at its meeting
held on 19" June, 2020 by the management to consider and recommend the said draft
scheme to the Board of Directors.

The Scheme inter-alia provides for merger by absorption of YCL by YPL. The Equity
Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (“‘BSE”). The Company will be filing
the Scheme of Merger by Absorption along with necessary information / documents with
aforementioned exchange.

The report of the Audit Committee is made in order to comply with the requirements of
the SEBI circular No.CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10" March, 2017 as amended from
time to time read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 after considering the following:

a. Draft scheme of Merger by Absorption,

b. Valuation report 18" June, 2020 issued by Ms Sudha Bhushan, (Registered Valuer -
Securities or Financial Assets);

c. Fairness Opinion Report dated 19" June, 2020 issued by Mark Corporate Advisors
Private Limited, a SEBI registered Merchant Banker providing the Fairness Opinion
on the shares entitlement recommended in the Valuation Report prepared by Ms.
Sudha Bhushan, (Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets); and

2. Proposed Scheme

2.1The Audit Committee noted the rationale and the benefits of the Scheme which,
inter-alia, are as follows:

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India Registered Office: Flat Nq. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
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a. The Appointed Date of this Scheme is 1%'April, 2020. Effective Date is the date on
which the authenticated copies or certified copies of orders of National Company
Law Tribunal (NCLT), sanctioning this Scheme of Merger, is filed by YCL, the
Transferor Company and YPL, the Transferee Company with Registrar of
Companies, Allahabad.

b. Under the proposed Scheme, all assets & liabilities, pertaining to YCL, of
whatsoever nature and where so ever situated, shall without any further act or deed
be transferred to and vested in the Company (YPL) with effect from the Appointed
Date.

c. In consideration of transfer and vesting of YCL into YPL in terms of the Scheme,
YPL will issue fully paid up equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each to the
registered fully paid up equity shareholders of YCL as on the record date defined in
the scheme. As per the Valuation Report prepared by Ms. Sudha Bhushan,
Registered Valuer- Securities or Financial Assets) the share exchange ratio
determined was 68.63: 1 i.e. (Sixty Eight point Sixty three) equity shares of Rs.10
each credited as fully paid up in the Company for every 7 (One) equity share of
Rs.10 each fully paid up held by them in YCL on basis of the valuation of the assets
and liabilities of the Company carried out by them as provided in their report. This
was arrived at based on a 2 week / 26 weeks weekly Volume Weighted Average

E Price on BSE (higher of 2 or 26 weeks).

d. An upward revision of the share price of YPL from Rs.34.48 to Rs.41.68, agreed to
by the Audit Committee as a consequence of taking into account the 12 month
average instead of 26 weeks average to absorb the impact of extra-ordinary event of
Covid-19 pandemic, falling within the 26 week duration, on the stocks in general
over the longer duration of 12 months. YPL will issue and allot an aggregate of
28,38,500 (No. Of shares) fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of Rs.10/-
(Rupees ten only) each to the equity shareholders of the Transferor Company as on
the Record Date as defined in the Draft Scheme, in proportion of their holding in
YCL.

e. YCL and YPL, belonging to the same group of management, it would be
advantageous to combine the activities and operations in a single entity. The
amalgamation would create synergies between two complementing companies with
similar objective and business line.

f. Both YPL and YCL has their independent B2B customer’'s and dealer networks,

supply chain and logistic partners, the amalgamation will also provide synergistic
linkages besides economies in costs by combining the total business functions in all

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
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segments including sales, procurement, logistic activities and the related activities
and operations and thus contribute to the profitability of the amalgamated entity.

g. Economies of scale will play a bigger role as the consolidated entity's operational
efficiency will increase, which will in turn allow the merged entity to compete on a
larger scale in the industry, thus benefiting the merged entity and the shareholders.

h. The amalgamation will enable the merged entity to build up a diversified product
portfolio in YPL and will assist the merged entity with faster and quicker decision
making as both manufacturing and marketing activities are under the same
management.

I. The amalgamation will enable the merged entity to get direct access to customers
which will give them a better understanding of the market taste and customer
requirements. This will assist the merged entity to produce right quality required for
different market segment

J. - With YPL having a manufacturing experience of more than 40 years alongwith all the
requisite technical know-how to produce in house paper pulp which is a basic input
for compostable products, gives YPL an edge over other competitors and YCL a
company involved in marketing will result in the merged entity to have all the
necessary functions under one roof. It is considered desirable and expedient to
consolidate and amalgamate the business of both YCL and YPL so as to bring both
the functions will be under the same management, production planning process will
become more aligned to the customer needs which will result in a stronger asset
base and skills to conduct the business in the emerging environment and to
rationalise the costs of business.

K. The amalgamation will increase the net worth of YPL which would enable it to
capitalise upon such improved net worth to enhance the stake holders’ value.

I The amalgamation will increase financial strength, enhance flexibility and ability to
raise larger resources, attract and retain better talent and undertake larger support
services related projects.

m. The amalgamation will result in integration and effective utilisation of resources,
which is likely to result in optimising overall shareholder value and improvement in
competitive position of YPL as a combined entity.

n. The amalgamation will result in economy of scale, reduction in overheads,
administrative and other expenditure, efficiency and optimal utilisation of various

resources.

Formerly Yash Papers Limited
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0. The amalgamation will bring both the entities under one roof to portray one face to
all the parties with whom the Yash Group deals.

p. The amalgamation will result in better leveraging of facilities, infrastructure and
resources.

g. Duplication of administrative functions together with the multiple record keeping will
be eliminated, resulting in over-all reduction in expenditure.

r. The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances which at present is required to be made separately by YCL
as well as by the YPL.

s. This merger will provide an opportunity to leverage assets and build a stronger
sustainable business. It will provide an opportunity to fully leverage stronger asset
capabilities, experience, expertise and infrastructure of both the companies and thus
increased ability for promotion of business activities as well as for fund raising as
may be required for business development.

t. The merger would lead to synergic benefits, efficiency of operations and
management, rapid growth of the entity, optimum utilization of its resources and
minimization of the administrative and operative costs.

u. The merger will result in a value creation for the shareholders and stakeholders of
YCL and YPL as the combined amalgamated company will have improved
efficiency, market share, financial structure, larger cash flows and stronger
consolidated revenue and profitability.

v. The merger of YCL with YPL would result in consolidation of business activities of
both the companies and will facilitate effective management of investments and
synergies in operation.

w. There is no likelihood that any shareholder or creditor or employee of YCL and YPL
would be prejudiced as a result of the Scheme. Thus, the merger is in the interest of
the shareholders, creditors and all other stakeholders of the companies and is not
prejudicial to the interests of the concerned shareholders, creditors or the public at
large.

2 2The Audit Committee reviewed the Valuation Report, the Fairness Opinion and noted
the recommendations made therein. Further, the Fairness Opinion confirmed that
the Scheme is fair and reasonable to the Company, YCL and their respective
shareholders.
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2.3 The Equity Shares of YPL to be issued and allotted to the equity shareholders of
YCL pursuant to the Schemeof Merger by Absorption shall also be listed on BSE
Limited (subject to trading permission being granted by BSE Limited).

3. Recommendation of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee after due deliberations and due consideration of all the terms of
the draft Scheme, Valuation Report, Fairness Opinion Report and the specific points
mentioned above, recommends the draft scheme for favourable considerations by the

Board of Directors of the Company, the BSE and the Securities and Exchange Board of
India.

By Order of the Audit Committee
sAki, For and on behalf of Yash Pakka Limited

[ e “ ,
[ =
| S _/_
ar Gupta

¥ AtulKu
Independent Director and Chairperson of Audit Committee
Fa% S DIN: 01734070
Res. Add.- 1/73, Vipul Khand,
Gomti Nagar,
Lucknow - 226010

Date: 25" September, 2020
Place: Lucknow
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June 19, 2620
MCAPL: MUM: 2020-21: 06003

To,

The Board of Directors
Yash Pakka Limfted
24/57, Birhana Rosd,
Kanpur-208 001

Uttar Pradesh.

Sub ; Fairncss Opinion Certificate on the Valuation of shares in the matter of proposed merger of ¥ask

compostable Limited (hereinafter veferved to as “YCL) with Yash Pakks Limited (b
referred to as “YPL"™)

Dear 8ir,

The Board of Directors of Yash Pakka Limited (hereinafier referred to as “YPL”) has appointed us on May 21,
2020 and has requested us to issue Fairness Opinion Certificate in connection with the valuation exercise being
carried out by Ms. Sudha Bhushan, Registered Valuer (Securities & Financial Assets) having Wm\ Nusiaber
{BRVRVA7/2019/12234 {hereinafter referred to as “ibe Valuer™). B

1. PURPOSE OF VALUATION

1.1 The Board of Direciors of both the Companics have considercd proposal for the Merger of YCL
(“Transferor™) with YPL (“Transferee™). :

1.2 In this regard, Ms. Sudha Bhushan, Registered Valuer (Securities & Financial Assets) having Registration
Number IBBURVAY7/2019/12234 (hereinafier referred to us “the Valuer”) was eppointed to carry out the
valuation with & view to recommend an exchange ratio of shares in the event of Merger of YCL with YPL
and to detemaine the Equity Shares to be issued by YPL to the Shareholders of YCL.

1.3 The information contained herein and our certificate is confidential. It is intended only for the sole use of
captioned purpose including for the purpose of obtaining requisite approvals as per SEBI (LODR)
Regudations, 2015.

2. SOURCE OF INFORMATION

For the purpose of the valuation, we have relied upon the following seurce of information provided by the
management of the YCL and YPL.

() Memorandum and Articles of Association of YPL & YCL;
(i} Audited Annual Accounts for FY 2018-2019 for YPL and YCL;
(iii) Unaudited but Certified Annual Accounts for FY 2019-2020 for YCL;

(iv) Cestified Limited Review Report on Unandited Financials for the period ended Decembes 31, 2019 for
YPL;
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(vi) Copy of Valuation Report dated June 18, 2020 issued by Ms. Sudha Bhushan, Registered Vialuer

(Securities & Financial Assets) having Registration Number IBBI/RV/A07/2019/12234 (hercinafier referred
10 as “the Valuer™);

(vii)Draft Scheme of Arrangement;
(viii) Brief overview and the operations of the Companies; and
{ix) Discussion with the management of the Companies regarding its business.
3. EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS

3.1

32

Conclusions reached by us are dependent on the information provided to us being complete & acourate in-all
material respects. Our scope of work does not ensble us to meﬁrespmwibnnyhrwemmnd
completeness of the information provided to us. The scope of our assigrment did not invelve us

audit tests for the purpose of expressing an opinion.on the faimess or accurscy of any finsncisl or analytical
information used during the course of our work. Wehwmtpmwmmwm
of any of the historical or prospective information used aind, therefore, do f10t express any .opiriian
regard to the same. In addition, wdommmwmryfomywmmw@wm
any reason, which may ocour subsequent (o the date of our certificate.

This certificate is prepared with a limited purpose/scope as identified/stated earlier and will be confidential
being for use only to whom it is issued. 1t must not be copied, disclosed or circulatad in any correspondence
or discussions with any person, except to whom it is issued and to those who are involved in this transaction
and for various approvals for this transaction.

4. VALUATION METHODOLOGY ADOPTED BY THE VALUER

4.1

In amiving at the exchangcraﬂooftheequﬂishawsforthewui‘i’% with YPL. The Valuer has
determined the values independently but on & relative basis. She has considered the methods relevant snd
applicable, which included:

Discounted Cashk Flow (DCF)} Method:

DCF methodology expresses the present value of a business as a function of its future cash earnings
capacity. This methodology works on the premise thet the value of & business is measured in tevws of
future cash flow streams, discounted to the present time at an appropriate discount rate, i recognizes that
roney has a time value by discounting fiture cash flows at an appropriate discoint factor. This method is
used to determine the present valuc of a business on a going concern assumption. The DCF methodology
depends on the projection of the futwre cash flows and the selection of an appropriste discount fautor.

When valuing a business on a DCF basis, the objective is to deternine a et present value of the cash flows
("CF") arising from the business over a future seloct period of time (say 3 years), which periodis called the
explicit forecast period .Free cash flows are defived to include all inflows and outflows associated with the
project prior to debt service, such as taxes, amount invested in working capital and capital expenditure,
Under the DCF methodology, value must be placed both on the explicit cash flows as stated above, and the
ongeing cash flows a company will generate after the explicit forecast period. The latter value, also known
as teyminal vaiue, is also 0 be estimated,
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The longer the period covered by the projection, the loss reliable the. projections are likely to be. For this
reason, this approach is used to value businesses, where the futore cash flows can be projected with a
reasonable degree of reliabilicy.

The discount rate applied to estimate the present value of explicit foumtpmdﬁumhﬂowsua!so
continning value, is taken at the *Weighted Average Cost of Capital® (WACC). One of the advaint
the DCF approach is that it permits the various elements that make up the discount factor 0 be conside
separately, and thus, the effect of the variations in the sssumptions can be modelled more easily. "lbe
principal elements of WACC are cost of equity (which is the desired rate of return for an equity investor
gwenthenskpmﬁleot‘thempmyandmmdashﬂows).ﬂmmmmnofdebtndﬂnw
capital structure of the company (a fimction of debt to equity ratio). In tur, cost of equity is derived, on the
basis of capitel asset pricing model (CAPM), as a function of risk-free rate, Beta:(an estimato of risk profile
of the company reiative to-equity market} and equity risk premium assigned to the subject squity market.

In case company holds any asset, which is surplus to its business and exparision plans, and they are material
in quantum, then such assets are to be valued at-its estimated net realizable value instead of book value..

Market Price (MF)Method:

Market Value of Shares quoted on Stock Exchanges-The Market Value of a lited stock carries significant
weightage in the analysis of the Equity Value of the Company. The Price at which the shares of & listed
company are quoted on & recognized Stock Exchange, is an indicator of the value of the Company. This
mmdkeMvemvm;MmuwmmwvﬂydumﬁnhpﬁanQnﬂn

exchanges.mnwketvﬂmwmouwomofwhmml&cquﬁ!ywdmmofﬁe
Managemeat, present and. prospective competition, yield on comparable securitiés, market sentiment, i,
Since the shares of YPL (Transferse Company} are listed on the Stock Exchange, this methad is consigesred
while on the other hand since YCL (Transferor Company) s unlisted company 80 Matket Value Method is
not considered. The average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price of the
related equity shares quoted on the recognised stock exchange duringithe twenty six weeks preceding the
relevant date or the average of the weekly high and low of the volimie weighted average prices of the
related equity shares quoted on a recognised stock exchange during the two. weeks preceding the relevant
date has been considered by the Valuer,

Accordingly, Fair Valuation of shares of the Transferor Company hes been determined on the basis of
Discounted Cash Fiow Method and the Transferee Company has been determined on the basis of Market
Price Method for the purpose of working out of share exchange swap ratio for amalgamation/merger,
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$. CONCLUSION

We have reviewed the methodology as mentioned above adapted by the Valuer for arriving at the fair valuation
of the equity shares omenpaniesandﬂwmwedﬂaeworﬁngandundulﬁﬁng:mm;i‘;ms adopied to arrive
atci::nvaluesundcroachoflheabovc approaches, forﬂ:emrposesofmmmdingamﬁoot‘m
exchange,

On the basis of the fmeqoingpoizm, we are of the opinion that the valuation done by Ms. Sudha Rhushan,
Registered Valuer (Securities & Financial Assets) having Registration Number IBBIRV/07/2019/12234 is fair
& reasonable for the proposed Share Exchange Ratio of 68.63 Equity Shares of face value €10 each of YPL for
every | Equity Share of face value of ¥10 each held in YCL.

Thanking you,
For Mark Corporate Advisors Private Limited
l—1—
Rajeadra Kanoongo
Jt. Managing Director
M

Place; Mumbai
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" B/24i2020 Shareholding Pattemn 20.08.2020 (Pre).dsm html
General information about compauny ANNE“” - 6A
Scrip code 516030
NSE Symbol
MSEE Symbol
ISIN INES51DO1018
Naume of the company YASH PAKKA LIMITED
Whether company is SME No
Class of Security Equity Shares
Type of report Capital Restructuring
Quarter Ended / Half year ended/Date of Report (For Prelisting / Allotment) 20-06-2020
Dite of sllotment / extinguishment (in case Capital Restructuring selected) / Listing Date 20-06-2020
Shareholding pattern filed under Regulation 31 (1} (¢)

Fer Yash Pakka Lirnited
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Managing Dieclor & CEO
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Shargholding Pattern 20.06.2020 (Pre),xism.htmi

Declaration

Particular

Yes/No

Promoter Group

Promoter and Public

shareholder Non Public

Non Promoter-

Whether the Listed Entity has issued any partly paid up shares?

Neo

No

No

No

Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Convertible Securities
?

Ne

No

No

No

Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Warrants ?

No

No

No

No

Whether the Listed Esttity has any shares against which
depository receipts are issued?

No

No

No

Whether the Listexi Entity has any shares in locked-in?

Yes

Yes

No

No

Whether any sheres held by promoters are pledge or otherwise
encumberex?

Yes

Yes

‘Whether compeny has equity shares with differential voting
rights?

No

No

No

Whether the listed entity has any significant beneficial owner?

Yes

For Yash Pakka Limited

Jagdeep\:%
Nanaging Dinecix &
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Table I - Summary Statement holding of specified securities
No. Of N Number of Voting Rights held in each
c Noof |Party |N0OF | Totalnos |Sharcholdingues | o, o securities (D)
Catsgory | of Moo OF | fully puid |pwidwp | oopsing |09 | (harns (caloviated - )
o sharehold shareholders | up aquity | equity itory hetd (VII) a5 per SCRR No of Voting (X1V) Rights Total 25 2
@ o shares (shwres | pooioes | 2IVYY | 1osmy (Vi) Asa % of
held (IV) | held | (VPO | o or(asBecy) |SM88 18 | p) | (a4Be)
W) X egy
Promoter ,
@A) b 5 15880156 15880156 | 45.06 15880156 15880156 | 45.06
Group
®) Public | 15521 19359844 19359844 | 54.94 19359844 19359844 | 34.94
Non
© Promoter-
Nou Public
Shares
€) | underlying
DRs
Shares beld
by
€ | Employee
Trusts
Total 15526 35240000 35240000 | 100 35240000 35240000 | 100
Fer Yash Pakni Limited
, Jagde\w%
Managing Director & CEQ
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* 2472020 Shareholding Pattem 20.06.2020 (Pre).xism.hmi!
Table I - Summary Statement hoiding of specified secrrities
Shareholding , Numbet of Shares
No. Of asa% Number of pledged or
: 0. O ] conversion of | (XII) encumbered

Category [Sra®S = |Shares | UPCOB | opyerible (xm) Smber of
Category | of Oty | Underlying | 50 08 | securities (as a gu‘?"’““”
) shareholder | -~ S 78 | Outstanding | o0 percentage of Asa Asa | lined

an converivie | warrants mdm"N“”of diluted share % of % of m"“""

S 5 Wacranis O [No@ (g [No. |G o
a
FD®  fegof held held
(A+B+C2) ®) )

Promoter

&
(A) Promoter 4506 2930000 | 18.45 [ 15880156 | 100 | 15880156

Group
®) Public 54.94 18864116

Non
© Promoter-

Non Public

Shares )
CH underlying

DRs

Shares neld

by
€ |Enpioyee

Trusts

Total 100 2930000 831 (15880156 |45.06 [34744272

For Yash Pakka Limited

2% M

Managing Diractor & CEO

file://C Users/E00260/Deskiop/Merger Application BSE Limited - Regulaltion 37 of SEBI (LODR)/Shareholding Pattern/Sharshoiding Pattem 20,..  4/17
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* 972472020 Shareholding Pattem 20.06.2020 (Pre).xism.htmi
Table II - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Pramoter and Promoter Group
No. Sharcholding | Number of Voting Rights held in each
of ae%of | clay of securities (X
No. Of Total nos. [ iotal no. of
N N 2:. of |Penly hares shares "
Category os. OF ly paid | paid- No of Voting (XTV) Rights | Total
Sr. Name of the shareholdars | up equity |up m:’ g‘g)_ ﬁ"wlm wa
Sharcholders (T) | (T} w equity Rm”""’“w” avp sc?;;, of
M) T |0 |+ vp |10V [Classeg: | Cliss [y |1t
™ Asa% of X gy .
(A+B+C2) rights
A Table [ - Statemnent showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group
1)) Indign
Tndividoals/Hindu
@) iivided Family | 1 16000 16000 |0.05 16000 16000 {0.05
Any Other
@ (specify) 4 15864156 15864156 | 45.02 15864156 15854156 [ 45.02
(s:;f)““ s 15880156 15880156 | 45.06 15880156 15880156 | 45.06
2) Foreign
Totad
Shareholding
of Promoter
and
- 5 15880156 15880156 | 45.06 15880156 15880156 | 45.06
Croup (A=
(AX1YA)
@
B Table 71 - Statement showing sharcholding pattern of the Public shareholder
Q) Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds 1 1000 1000 ] 1000 1000 0
Financial
® Institutions/ 1 2000 2000 0.01 2000 2000 0.01
Banks
Sub-Total
®X) 2 3000 3000 001 3000 | 3000 0.01
(3} Notrinstitutions
Indtividuals -
LIndividual
, shareholders
(') bokding nominal 14558 8706246 8706246 |24.71 8706246 8706246 [24.71
share capital up
to Rs. 2 lakhs.
Individuals - i,
Individual
shareholders
(aii)) bolding nominal |67 5778862 5778862 |16.4 5778862 5778862 | 164
share capital in
excess of Rs. 2
lakhs.
Any Other
) (speciy) 894 4871736 4871736 |13.82 4871736 4871736 |13.82
fg;;)“” 15519 19356844 19356844 | 54.93 19356844 19356844 | 54.93
Total Public
Shareholding
(B)}=(BX1)* 15521 19359844 19355844 [ 54.94 19359844 19359844 | 54,94
(BX2y+(B)
3)
c Thble IV - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Non Promoter- Non Public shareholder
Total {
AFBC2) 15526 35240000 35240000 | 100 35240000 35240000 | 100
Total
(A*B+C) 15826 35240000 35240000 | 100 35240000 35240000 | 100
For Yash pakkg |

13

SNz




3

" 5/24/2020 Shaneholding Pattern 20.06.2020 (Pre) xism.htm}
Table II - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group
Nurnber of Shares
. Number of pledged oc

No. Of No. Of Shares | Shareholding ,a38 | Locked in sheres | otherwise

Sha No. of Undertying % assuming full (X1 encumbered Number of

Undextyi Shares Outstarkling | conversion of o uity shares
s ety | yertying |convertibie | convertible securities gw"?

T mem‘.d“lf Outstanding | securities and | ( as a percentage of Asa Asa o
e | Warrants | No. Of dituted share capital) mf mf w
Xi) Warrants (Xi) | (XD=(VIIH{X)Asa
) @) % of (A+B+C2) No.(®) | Shares | N0 ) | Shares
held held
{b) )]
A Table II - Statement showing sharcholding pattern of the Promoter and Promotar Group
') Indian
(&) 0.05 0 0 16000 100 |16000
@ 45.02 2930000 | 18.47 | 15864156 | 100 15864156
?l“)”“‘“' A 45.06 2930000 | 18.45 | 15880156 [ 100 | 15880156
2} Foreign
Total
Shareholding
of Promoter
and Promoter 4506 2930000 | 18.45 | 15880156 | 100 15880156
Group (A)=
(AX1YHA)
2}
B Table I - Staterent showing sharcholding pattern of the Public shareholder
0] Institutions
@ 0 0
® 0.01 2000
Sub-Total (B} 001 2000
)
(3) Notrinstitutions
(a() 24.71 8220305
(aii)) 164 5778862
© 13.82 4862749
f‘;)"‘“"" (B) 5493 18862116
Total Public
Shareholding 2864116
@PEX1) . taset
(BX2)YH{BX3)
C Table 1V - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Non Promoter- Non Public shareholder
Total (
A+BHC2) 100 2930000 | 8.31 347442712
Total
(AHB+C) 100 2930000 | 8.31 | 15880156 | 45.06 | 34744272
For Yash Pakka Limited
Jagdeep
Managing CE0

file:/ifC:Usera/E00260/Deakiap/Merger Application BSE Limiled - Regulaltion 37 of SEBI (LODR)Y/Shareholding PattervShareholding Pattern 20...  6/17



" Q2412020

Shareholding Pattem 20.06.2020 (Pre}.dem.htm

Individuals/Hindu undivided Family

Searial No.

Name of the
Shareholders (I)

K. K. JHUNJHUNWALA HUF

Click here to go back

PAN (ID)

AAEHK4888A

Total

No. of fully paid
up equity shares
held (TV)

16000

16000

No. Of Partly paid-
up equity shares
held (V)

No. Of shares
mderl]_;ing

Depository
Recsipts (VD)

Total nos. shares
held (VII) = (TV)+
(Vr (V1)

16000

16000

Sharcholding as
% of total no. of
shares (calculated
3 per SCRR,
1957) (VI Asa
% of (A+B+C2)

0.05

005

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of securities (IX)

Class egX

16000

16000

Class eg'y

Total

16000

16000

Total as a % of
Total Voting rights

0.05

005

No. Of Shares
Undeslying
Outstanding

securities and No.
Of Warrants (Xi)
o)

Feor Yash Palo~a\Litnited
Jagdegp

Shareholding , as »
% assumning full
conversion of
convertible
securities (as s

percentage of
diluted share
capital) (XIy=
(VID+(Xi}a) As a
% of (A+B+C2)

0.05

v

0.05

Number of Locked

in shareg (XTI)

No. (a)

0

As 2 % of total
Shares held (b)

0

Number of Shares pledged or otherwise encumbered (X1I1)

No. (8)

16000

16000

Asa % of total
Shares held (b)

100

100

Number of equity
shares held in
A ali

16000

form (XIV)

16000

Reason for not providing PAN

160

fie:///C:MUsers/E0D260/Desktop/Merger Application BSE Limited - Regulaition 37 of SEBI (LODR)/Shareholding Pattem/Shareholding Pattern 20... 7/17
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' 9/24/2020

Reason for not
providing PAN

Sharsholding Pattern 20.06.2020 (Pre) dsm.htmi

Promoter Group

Fer Yash Pa

d

Managing Di

Limited

Ka
& CEO

194
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' 82472020 Sharaholding Pattam 20.08.2020 (Pre).dsm.hitmi

Any Other (specify)

Searial No.

1

2

3

4

Category

Director or Director's
Relatives

Director or Director's
Relatives

Bodies Corporate

Bodies Corparate

Click here to

Name of the
Shareholders (1)

VED KRISHNA

MANJULA
JHUNTHUNWALA

SATORI GLOBAL
UIMITED

YASH AGRO PRODUCTS
LIMITED

PAN ()

AJRPK1S51C

ABSPJ4695H

AAJCS90R2A

AAACMI315R

Total

No. of the
Sharcholders (1)

1

1

1

1

No. of fully peid
up equity shares
held IV)

11009950

551066

3334500

968640

15864156

No. OF Partly peid-
up oquity shares
held (V)

No. Of shares
udertying

Depository
Reocipts (V1)

Total nos, shares
held (VD) = TV)+
V+(VIy

11009950

551066

3334500

15864156

Shareholding as a
% of tatal no. of
shares (calculated
a3 per SCRR,
1957) (VI As a
% of (A+B+C2)

324

1.56

9.46

2.75

45.02

Number of Voting Rights held in each class

of securities (IX)

Class eg: X

11009950

551066

3334500

15864156

Class eg'y

Tl

11009950

551066

3334500

268640

15864156

Total a1 2 % of
Total Voting rights

3l1.24

1.56

946

275

4502

No. Of Sharea
Underlying
Outstanding

convertible
securities {X)

No. of Shares
Underlying

‘Warmnts (Xi)

No. Of Sharea
Underlying

oonvertible
securities and No.
Of Warrants (i)
(8

Fer Yash Pa

Limited

Shereholding , a5 a
% assuming full
convession of
cotrvertible
securities (asa
percentage of
difuted share
capital) (XI)~
(VIHX) Asa %
of (A+B+C2)

3124

L56

9.46

275

45.02

Number of Locked

in shares (X11)

No. (a)

2930000

]

2930000

As n % of total
Shares held (b)

26.61

0

18.47

Nuraber of Shares pledged or otherwise encumbered (XIIT)

No. (a)

11009950

551066

3334500

963640

15864156

Ay % of total
Shares held (b}

100

100

100

100

100

D

file.///C:/Users/EC0260/Deskiop/Merger Application BSE Limited - Regulaltion 37 of SEBI (LODR)/Shareholding PatiarrvShareholding Pattern 20...  9/17



Number of equity
shares held in
dematerialized
Form (XIV)

11009950

551066

Shareholding Patiam 20.06.2020 (Pre}.dsm.html

3334500

968640

15864156

03

Reason for not providing PAN

Reazon for not
providing PAN

Shareholder type

Promoter Promoter Group

Promater Group

Fer Yash Pa

J
Managing

Limited

eepHia
ﬁfm

file:///C/Users/E00200/Daskiop/Merger Application BSE Limited - Reguiallion 37 of SEBI {LODR)VShareholding PatlenvShareholding Paltern 2... 10417




Sharehokding Paltern 20.08.2020 (Pre)adsm.bimi

Individuals - ii. Individual shareholders holding wominal share capital in excess of Ra. 2 lakbs.

Searial No.

2

3

Name of the
Shareholdets (1)

SANGEETHA §

VIJAY KISHANLAL KEDIA

KISOR KUMAR NADHANI

Click here to go back

PAN()

AlJPSIT39F

AANFB4239R

ACUPN9938Q

Total

No. of fully peid
up equity shares
held AV)

1612169

452243

416775

2481187

No. Of Partly paid-
up equity shares
held (V)

No. Of shares
undeslying
Depository
Receipts (V)

Total nos. shares
held {VII) = (IV)+
V- (VD)

1612169

452243

416775

2481187

Sharcholding as
% of total no. of
sharey {calculated
as per SCRR,
1957) (VI Asa
% of (A+B+(2)

4.57

LI8

7.04

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of securities (IX)

Classeg X

1612169

452243

416775

2481187

Class egy

Total

1612169

452243

416775

2481187

Total s 2 % of
Total Voting rights

457

1.28

7.04

No. Of Sharea
Underlying
Outstanding
convertible

securities (X)

No. of Shares
Underlying

Outstanding
Warrants (Xi)

No. Of Shares
Underlying
Outstanding

457

1.28

1.18

7.04

in shares (XI1)

1612169

452243

416775

2481187

Reason for not providing PAN

Reazon for not
providing PAN

.

164

lelted

Dlrech‘ 8 CEO

flle:///C:/UservENIZE0/DeskiopMerger Application BSE Limited - Regulaltion 37 of SEBI (LODR)/Shareholding Pattern/Shareholding Paltom 2. 1n7




2472020 Shareholding Patiem 20,08.2020 (Pre}.xism.himi

Any Other (specify)

Searial No. 1

3

4

Catsgory

Bodies
Corporate

Baodies Corporate

Bodies Corporate

Bodies Corporate

Resident
Indian
(NRI)

Clearing
Members

Category / More
than 1 percentage

Category

More than |

perceniage
shareholding

More than 1
shareholding

More than 1

percentage of
shareholding

Category

Category

Category

Name of the
Shareholders (1)

CHATURVEDA
ADVISORY
SERVICES LLP

SATVICHAR
CONSULTANCY
SERVICES LLP

ITHOUGHTWEALTH
ANALYTICS LLP

PAN (Il)

AAIFCA810G

ADDFS2555A

AAFFI8518)

No. of the

Sharcholdess (I)

17

1

354

362

58

beld (TV)

No. of fully paid
up equity shares

2962139

1008796

480355

387085

974358

636928

200721

held (V)

No. Of Partly paid-
up equity shares

No. Of shares
urderlying
Depasitory
Receipts (V)

Total nos.
held (VID)
V(WD)

shares

=¥y |2962139

1008796

480355

387085

974358

686928

200721

% of total

Shareholding as a

shares (caiculnted
83 per SCRR,
1957) (VI) As s
% of (A+B+C2)

. of

286

1.36

27

1.95

0.57

Number of Voting Rights held in sach class of securitie:

Classeg X

2962139

1008796

480355

387085

974358

686928

200721

Classegy

Tota}

2962139

1008796

480355

387085

974358

686928

200721

Total as 3 % of
Total Voting rights

841

2.86

136

1.1

2.76

1.95

0.57

No. Of Sharex
Underlying
Outstanding
convertible
securities (X)

No. of Shareg
Unda'lyh‘lz

Outstanding
Wamants (X3)

)

No. Of Shares
Undertying
Outstand(ng
convertible
securities and No.
Of Warrants (Xi)

841

286

L.36

1.1

2.76

or )

0.57

in shares (XID)

\ X

\l

fash Ppkka Limited,

p Hira
iy Divecor 8 OEC™

file:/11CMsers/E00260/Deskiop/Merper Application BSE Limited - Reguiallion 37 of SEBI (LODR)Shareholding Patterry'Sharehokding Pattern 2...  12/17
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' ©/24/2020

Number of equity
shares hakl in
demmterialized
form (XIV)

2956738

1008796

Shareholding Patiem 20.08.2020 {Pra).xism.htmi

480355

387085

973758

684442

200721

Reason for not providing PAN

Regson for not
peoviding PAN

file//C:/Users/E00260/DaskiopMerger Application BSE Limited - Regulallion 37 of SEBI (LODR)Shareholding Patiern/Sharehokding Patien 2.

Fer Yash Pakk

Limited
J;ep

106

Managing Director 8 CEQ
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8/24/2020

Shareholding Pattern 20.08.2020 (Pre)dsm.hitmi

Any Other (specify)

Searial No,

Category

Director or Director’s Relatives

Category / Mors
than | percentage

Category

Name of the
Sharsholders ()

Click here to go back

PAN ()

Totat

No. of the
Sharcholders (I}

8954

No. of fully paid
up equity shares
beld (IV)

47590

4871736

No. Of Parily paid-
up equily shares
beld (V)

No. Of shares
underlying
Depo;siwry
Receipts (V)

Total nos. shares
beld (VIl) = (1V)+
(vt (VD)

47590

4B71736

Sharcholding as a
% of total no. of
shares (calculated
a5 per SCRR,
1957) (VI As a
% of (A+B+C2)

0.14

13.83

Number of Voting Riglts held in each class of securities (IX)

Class eg: X

47590

4371736

Class eg'y

Total

47590

4871736

Total a3 & % of
Total Voting rights

0.14

13.83

No. Of Shares
Underlying

cotwertible
securities (X)

No. of Shares
Underlying
Outsanding
Warrants (Xi)

No. Of Shares
Underlying
Outstanding
cotvertible
securities and No.
Of Warrants (Xi)
(a)

Shareholding , as s
% sanuming full
conversion of
convertible
securities (s a
percemtage of
diluted share
capital) (XT)y=

Ane%
of (A+B+CD)

0.14

13.83

Number of Locked in shares (XIT}

No. {8)

As 8% of total
Shares beld (b)

Fer Yasp Pa

Number of equity
shares beld in

I atized
form {XIV)

47090

4862749

vy

{07

.

\ p Hira
Director & CEQ

fle:///C:/Users/E00280/DeskiopMerger Application BSE Limited - Regulattion 37 of SEBI (LODR)/Sharsholding Patiern/Shareholding Paltem 2...
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" S/24/2020 Shargholding Patiem 20.06.2020 (Pre) xism.htmi
Reason for not providing PAN

Reason for not
providing PAN

{o8

For Yash Pakka Limited

Managing Di

Me.///C ) sare/E00260/Deskiop/Merger Applicallon BSE Limited - Regulaltion 37 of SEBI (LODR)/Sharehclding Patterr/Sharsholding Pattern 2...
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812412020 Sharshoiding Patiern 20.06.2020 (Pre}.xsm. htmi
Details of Skares which remain unclaimed for Public
Seariat | Number of Outxtanding shares held in demat or voting rights Disclosure of notes on shares which remsin
No. shareholders | unclaimed suspense account which are frozen | unclaimed for public shareholders
1 18 11965 11965

Ble:///C./Isers/EQD280/Desktop/Merger Application BSE Limited - Regulaition 37 of SEBI (LODR)/Shareholding Patiern/Sharaholding Paftern 2...

For Yash Pakka Limited

Jagdeep H
Wanaging Divector &

1817
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W24/2020 Sharenokling Pattem 20,08.2020 (Pre).dsm himi
significant beneficial owners
. Details of holding/ exercise of right of the SBO in
if the SBQ Detail3 of the registered owner the ting . whether direct or indirect®. | Dato of
Whether by virtue of s
Pessport Nationality oy Nationality e e scquisition
(Applicable ' (Applicable ights on Exerci o

AN [$%°°F | Nationality |incase of | Name | PAN [ %% °F | Nationality | in case of Voting | distributable [ Exercise [  £7“/%° | significant
foreign Any other forei Any othey | Shares rights dividend or |of significant beneficial
national s selected) mtio;.:l is selected) any 0;1;' control i oo |

distril on

For Yash Pakk: Limited
J
Managing mE&o

flle:///C./Users/ED0260/Dasktop/Merger Application BSE Limited - Regulallion 37 of SEBI (LODR)Shareholding Pattern/Shareholding Pattern 2... 17117
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fle:///C:MUsers/ECO260/Deskiop/Merger Application BSE Limited - Regulaition 37 of SEBI {LODR)/Sharehoiding Pattern/Sharehalding Pattern 20...

Shareholding Pattem 20.08.2020 (Post).xiam.itmi

General information abont company

ANNEXY

Scrip code 516030

NSE Symbol

MSEl Symbol

ISIN INESS1DOI018

Name of the company YASH PAKKA LIMITED

Whether company is SME No

Class of Security Equity Shares

Type of report Capital Restructuring

Quartey Ended / Half year ended/Date of Report {For Prelisting / Allotment) 20-06-2020

Date of allotment / extinguishment (in case Capita! Restructuring selected) / Listing Date 20-06-2020

Sharebolding pattem filed under Regulation 31 (1) (¢}
ior Yash Pak

i
-68

mnv



9/24/2020 Shareholding Pattemn 20.08.2020 (Post).xism.html
Declaration

Sr. . Promoter and Public Non Promoter-
No. Particular YeNo | promoter Group | sharcholder | Non Public
1 Whether the Listed Entity has issued any partly paid up shares? | No No Ne No
2 ?Wheﬁm the Listed Entity has issued any Convertible Securities No No No No
3 Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Warrants ? No No No No

Whether the Listed Entity has any shareg against which
4 Japository receipts are issned? No No No No
5 Whether the Listed Entity has any thares in locked-in? Yes Yes No No
p Whether any shares held by promoters are pledge or otherwise Yes Yes

encumbered?
7 Whether company has equity shares with differential voting No No No No

8 Whether the listed entity has any significant beneficial owner?

Yes

ile.//1C Users/E00260/Deskiop/Merger Application BSE Limited - Regulaltion 37 of SEBI (LODR)/Shareholding Pattern/Shareholding Pattern 20...

or Yash Pakka\Limi
Jagdeep H
Managing Dicector &

na

an7



8/24/2020 Sharehokding Pattern 20.06.2020 (Post).xlsm.htmi
Table I - Summary Statement holding of specified securities
) No. Of . Number of Voting Rights held in each
B No.of [Party [NOOF  [Tominos, |SharcheldiBgass ), orocurities 1)
Category | of Nos. Of | Gudly paid | paidup | oy ino | 3DaT®8 | hores (calculated . -
@ sharcholder shareholders | up equity | equity D itory held (VII) as per SCRR, No of Voting (XTV) Righs Totalasa
@® @ eaqv) [neig [R50 H19SD (VDA [ Tor A b
™) oD %of (A+B+C2) |y o (A+B+C)
Promoter
(A) "1, wr |? 18690271 18690271 | 49.08 18690271 18650271 | 45.08
Group
®) Public 15525 19388229 19388229 | 50.92 19388229 19388229 | 50.92
Nea
©) Promoder-
Non Public
Shares
Cl) indextying
DRs
Shares held
€D | Pptoye
Trusts
Totl 15530 38078500 38078500 | 100 38078500 38078500 | 100
For Yash Pakka Limited
T8 Jagdel&é

Managing Directas & CE

113
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$/24/2020 Sharsholding Pattem 20.06.2020 (Post).xlsm.htm
Table I - Summary Statement holding of specified securities
Shareholding . Mumber of Shares
No. Of asa% Number of pledged or
No. OF Shares assuming full | Locked in shares | otherwise
Shéru No. of Undetiying conversion of | (XIT) encumbered Number of
Corego®y | Underlying |TI%8 | Outstanding convertible OdIn equity shares
B | arholder | Ousanding | FEEVRE | convertibie (S0 % 8 Asa Aga |PeMdin
0 | convertible 8| securities | PEocctage 0 Frge? ooy | domatericlized
aw sccuriies | "ETES | g No, Of | diluted share b ot | form vy
o &xD Wamas | SRRDOOF INo.(a) [0 N0 @) f e
D@ 1eof held held
(AHBHC2) ®) (b)
Promoter
1@ i?mmater 49.08 2930000 | 15.68 | 15880156 | 84.96 |18650271
Group
®) Public 50.92 18892501
Non
) Promoter-
Non Public
Shares
€1)  |underying
DRs
Shares held
by
© | Employee
Trusts
Total 100 2930000 | .69 | 15880156 (417 |37582772
Fer Yash Pakky Limited

Aive
Managing Dveckr &

14
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1)

8r24/2020 Shareholding Pattern 20.06.2020 (Post).xism.himé
Table I - Statement showing sharcholding pattern of the Promeoter and Promoter Group
No. Shareholding | Number of Voting Rights held in each
of asa% ol |class of securities (IX)
No. of Partly No. Of Total nos. | totsl no. of
Cugory & [Now.OF [fully pid | paid wiorying neio - |Goutoctssea | Neof voting Garvy Rights [ Toal
8 Nume of the shareholders | up equity |up D ying V= |asper asa%
Shareholders (T) | (IT) stares [ equity [ o PR 10" (SRR, of
MO ol | 1SS VI |Clessop: [class [T
o ’ Asa%of X egy rights
(A+B+C2)
A Table IT - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group
m Indian
Individuais/Hindu
@ Nrvided Famity |1 16000 16000 [0.04 16000 16000 |0.04
Any Other
e (specif) 4 18674271 18674271 [ 49.04 1867427 18674271 | 49.04
&“%““‘ 5 18690271 18690271 | 45.08 18690271 18690271 |45.08
2) Foreign
Total
Shareholding
of Promoter
“"’P 5 18690271 18690271 | 49,08 18690271 18690271 | 49.08
Group (A=
(AXDHA)
)
B Table I - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Public shareholder
m Institutions
® Mutual Funds 1 1000 1000 0 1000 1000 0
Financial
) Institutions/ 1 2000 2000 0.01 2000 2000 0.01
Banks
Sub-Total
®X1) 2 3000 3000 0.01 3000 3000 0.01
(3) Non-institutions
Individuals -
individol
@) ho”"‘ldm‘?""'m w | 14562 [873a631 8734631 | 2294 8734631 734631 2294
ahare capital np
to Rs. 2 lakhs,
Individual - ii.
individun)
shareholders
(a(ii) holding nomina) |67 5778862 5778862 |15.18 5778862 5778862 |15.18
share capital in
excess of Rs, 2
lakhs.
Any Other
(® (spacify) 894 4871736 4871736 (1279 4871736 4871736 |12.79
[SB"';;)‘“‘ 15523 19385229 19385229 | 50.91 19385229 19385229 | 50.91
Total Public
Sharcholding
BFBXir 15525 19388229 19388229 | s0.92 19388229 19388229 | 50.92
®X2r(B)
3
C Table IV - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Non Promoter- Non Public shareholder
;{% , 15530 38078500 38078500 | 100 38078500 38078500 | 100
(T:‘:; +C) 18530 38078500 38078500 { 100 38078500 38078500 | 100

Fer Yash P%ka imited
Jagdeep\Hira
Wanaging Director & CEQ
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012412020 Ehareholding Pattem 20.06.2020 (Post)odsm.himi
Table II - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group
Number of Shares
. Number of pledged or
No. Of No. Of Shares | Shareholding,as8 | Locked in shares | otherwize
Shares No. of Underlying % asswming full X1 encumbered Number of
Shares Ouistanding | conversion of (XHT)
Underlying . ’ h .. equity shares
Underlying | convertible convertible securities )

St. Outstanding - - held in

convertible | Outstanding | securities and | (as a percentage of Asa Asa dematerialized

ities (\;f(nr)rum No. Of o0 diluted (;1;13 eup;lil) ::]f ?:‘:!f form (XTV)
} Warrants (Xi (XIF H‘(X) 8 | No. )
0 ® % of (A+B+CR) ° ) | Shares| N @ 1 shores
held held
) ®)
A Table II - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Prometer Group
1)) Indian
(a} 0.04 0 0 16000 100 16000
{d) 49.04 2930000 | 15.69 | 15864156 | 84.95 | 18674271
(s]“)""r“" @) 49.08 2930000 | 15.68 | 15880156 | 84.96 [ 18690271
@ Foreign
Total
Sharcholding
of Promoter
and Promoter 49.08 2930000 | 15.68 | 15880156 | 84.96 | 18690271
Group (A)~
(AXDHA)
¢)]
B Table ITT - Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Public sharehalder
) Institutions
(a) 0 0
3] 0.01 2000
Sub-Total (B) 0.01 2000
1¢))
(3) Notinstitutions
{a(D) 2294 8243890
(ati) 15.18 5778862
(® 12.79 4862749
’(53‘;"'7"“' ®) 5091 18890501
Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(BX1 )+ 50.92 18892501
(BX2YHBX3)
Cc Table [V - Stalement showing shareholding pattern of the Non Promoter- Non Public shareholder
Total (
A+B+C2) 100 2930000 | 7.69 37582772
Total - 100 2930000 | 7.69 | 15880156 |41.7 | 37582772
(A+Bt(C) ’ :
Limited

P
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Shareholding Pattemn 20.06.2020 (Post). dsm.himi

Individuals/Hindu undivided Family

Searial No.

Name of the
Shareholders (I)

K K. JHUNJHUNWALA HUF

Click here to go back

PAN (1)

AAEHK4883A

Total

No. of fully paid
up equity shares
beld (TV)

16000

16660

No. Of Parily paid-
up equity shares
beld (V)

No. Of shares
mdedying

Depository
Receipts (V1)

Totel nos. shares
held (VIT) = V)t
(V3 (VD)

16000

| 16000

Shareholding as a
% of total no. of
shares (calculnted
a3 per SCRR,
1957) (VIK) Asa
% of (A+B+C2)

0.04

0.04

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of securities (IX)

Class eg:X

16000

16000

Class eg:y

Total

16000

16000

Total 83 8 % of
Tota) Voting rights

0.04

0.04

No. Of Shares
Underlying
Cutstanding
convertible
securities (X)

No. of Shares
Underlying

Ownndmg‘
Warrants (Xi)

No. Of Shares
Underlying

Outstanding
convertible
securities and No,
Of Warrants (Xi)
@

Sharcholding , 2s a
% assuming full
conversion of
convertible
securities (as a
percentage of
dituted share
capital) (XD
(VID+(Xi)n) Az a
% of (A+B+C2)

0.04

Number of Locked

in shares (XII)}

No. (a)

0

As a % of total
Shares held (b}

0

Number of Shares pledged or otherwise encumbered (XIII)

No. (s)

16000

As a % of total
Shares held (b}

100

Number of equity
shares held in
dematerialized
form (XIV)

16000

Reason for not providing PAN

W7
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Reason foe not
providing PAN

Shareholding Pattem 20.06.2020 (Post) xism.bimi

113

Shareholder type

Promoter Group

For Yash P, Limited

Hira
Managing Dizedor & CEO
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Shareholding Pattemn 20.06.2020 (Pos).xIsm.html

Any Other (specify)

Searial No.

2

3

4

Casegory

Director or Directoc's
Relatives

Director or Director's
Relatives

Bodies Corporate

Bodies Corporste

Click here to

Name of the
Sharcholders (I)

VED KRISHNA

MANIULA
JHUNJHUNWALA

SATORI GLOBAL
LIMITED

YASH AGRO PRODUCTS

LIMITED

PAN (U}

AJRPKI551C

ABSPI469SH

AAJCS9092A

AAACM9O3ISR

Total

No. of the
Sharehokiers (T)

1

1

1

No. of fully peid
up equity shares
held (1V)

13814388

556743

3334500

568640

18674271

No. OF Partly paid-
up equity shares
held {V)

No. Ofghwea
wda'lymg

Deposiiory
Receipts (VI)

Total nos. shares
held (VID) = V)
(V3 (VD)

13814388

556743

3334500

968640

18674271

Shareholding as
% of totak no. of
shares (calculnted
as per SCRR,
1857 (VI As a
% of (A+B+C2)

36.28

1.46

876

2.54

49.04

Number of Voting Rights heid in each class

of securities (IX}

Classeg: X

13814388

556743

3334500

968640

18674274

Class eg'y

Total

13814388

556743

3334500

18674271

Total as 2 % of
Total Voting rights

36.28

1.46

876

2.54

4904

(XI)=
Asa%
of (A+B+C2)

36.28

878

2.54

49.04

Number of Locked

in shares (XII)

No. (a)

2930000

0

2930000

As a % of total
Shares held (b)

2121

0

15.69

Number of Shares pledged or otherwise encumbered (XIII)

No. (2)

11009950

§51066

3334500

968640

15864156

As 2% of total
Shares heid (b)

79.7

98.98

100

100

84.95

D

V9
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B724/2020
Number of equity | 13814388

Sharshoiding Pattem 20.06.2020 (Post).xism.html

556743

3334500

$68640

18674271

120

Promoter Group

Promuter Group

-
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Sharshoiding Pattemn 20.06.2020 (Post) xdsm,htw

Individuals - ji. Individual shareholders holding nominsl share capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs.

Searial No.

1

2

3

Name of the
Sharcholders (T)

SANGEETHA §

VDAY KISHANLAL KEDIA

KISOR KUMAR NADHANI

Click here to go back

PAN (I}

ALIPS3739F

AANFBA4239R

ACUPN9938Q

Total

No. of fully paid
Up equity shares
held IV}

1612169

452243

416775

2481187

No. Of Partly paid-
up equity shares
held (V)

mdaigmg

Depositary
Receipts {(VI)

Total nos. shares
held (VI) = AV)+
(Yy-(VD)

1612169

452243

416775

2481187

Sharebokling as a
% of tofal o, of
shares (calculated
as per SCRR,
1957)(VID Asa
% of (A+B+C2}

423

119

1.09

6.52

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of securities (ITX)

Clnss og: X

1612169

452243

418775

2481187

Class eg:y

Total

1612165

452243

416775

2481187

Total as a % of
Totat Voting rights

423

119

1.09

6.52

Fer Yash

P Limited

of (A+B+C2)

119

1.09

6.52

Number of Locked

in shares (XIT)

No. (a)

Asa¥% of totat
Shares held (b)

Number of equity
ghares held in
dematerinlized
form (XIV)

1612169

452243

416775

2481187

Reason for not providing PAN

Reason for not

providing PAN

7>

121
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Sharsholding Pattem 20.08.2020 {Post).dsm.him)

Any Other (specify)

Searial No. 1

3

4

Category

Bodies

Bodies Corporate

Baodies Corporate

Bodies Corporale

Non-
Resident
Indian

Clearing
Members

Category / More
than 1 peroentage

Category

More than 1
percentage of
shareholding

More than |
peroentage of
shareholding

More than |

percentage of
shareholding

Category

Category

Category

Name of the
Sharehotders (T)

CHATURVEDA
ADVISORY
SERVICES LLP

SATVICHAR
CONSULTANCY
SERVICES LLP

ITHOUGHTWEALTH
ANALYTICS LLP

PAN (ID)

AAIFCAS10G

ADDFS2555A

AAFFI8518]

No. of the

Sharcholders (1) 117

1

1

354

362

38

No. of fully paid
up equity shares
held V)

2962139

1008796

480355

387085

974358

686928

200721

No. Of Partly paid-
up squity shares
held (V)

No. Of shares

Depository
Receipts (V1)

Total nos, shares
held (VI) = (IV)+
(VD)

2962139

1008796

480355

387085

974358

686928

200721

Shareholding as a
% of total no. of
shares (calculated
as per SCRR,
1957y (VIID Asa
% of (A+B+C2)

778

265

126

1.02

2.56

1.8

053

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of securities (00

Clagseg: X

2962139

1008796

480355

387085

974358

686528

200721

Classegy

Total

2962139

1008796

480355

387085

974358

686928

200721

Total as a Ye of

Total Voting rights | 775

2,65

126

1.02

256

0.53

No. Of Shares

Underlying
Outstanding
convertible
securities {X)

No. of Shares
Undertying
Outstucdi
Warraats (Xi)

No. Of Shases
Underlying

convertible
securities and No.
?;'annts()(i)
a

Sharcholding , asa
% assuming €ull
cotversion of
convertible
securities (ss 2
percentage of
diluted share

of (A+B+C2)

268

126

2.56

L8

053

Number of Locked in shares CI)

No. {a)

As a % of total
Shares held (b)

122
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82412020 Shareholding Patiern 20.00.2020 (Post).xism.himl

Number of equity | 2956738 | 1008796 480355
yored 387085 973758 634442 | 200721

form (XIV)
Resagon for not providing PAN

Reason for not
providing PAN

For Yash Pakka Limited

> Jaglep

WenagRg
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Shareholding Pattem 20.08.2020 (Post).xdem.him|

124

Any Other (specify)

Searial No.

Category

Director or Director’s Relatives

Category / More
than 1 percentage

Category

Name of the
Sharcholders (T)

Click here to go back

FAN (1)

Total

No. of the
Shareholders (T}

894

Mo. of Fully paid
vp equity shares
keld (TV)

47590

4871736

No, Of Purtly paid-
up equily shares
hekd (V)

No. Of shares
underlying
Depository
Receipts (V1)

Total nos. shares
held (VIT) = (TV)+
V) (VD)

47590

4871736

Sharehoiding as &
% of tota! 00, of
shares (calculated
a8 per SCRR,
1957) (VI Asa
% of (A+B+C2)

0.12

1279

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of securities (IX)

Class og: X

47590

4871736

Class og:y

Total

47590

4871736

Total as a % of
Total Voting rights

0.12

12.7%

No. Of Shares
Undertying
Outztanding
convertible

ities ()

No. of Shares
Undealying

securities (as
percentage of
diluted share
capital) (XD
(VIHX)Asa %
of (A+B+C2)

0.12

For Yash

1279

Managing

Limited

Number of Lockex

in shares (XII}

No. (a}

As 2% of total
Shares held (b)

Number of equity
shares beld in
i alized

47090

form (XIV)

4862749

<

a7
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"0124/2020 Shareholding Pattem 20.06.2020 (Post) xism.htmi
Reason for not providing PAN

Reason for mot
peoviding PAN

Fer Yash p Limited

D Nanaging Dvecldr & CED
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Shareholding Pattem 20.08.2020 (Post).xdsm.htmi

Details of Shares which remain anclaimed for Public

Seerial | Numberof | Qutstanding shares held in demat or voting rights Disclosure of notes on shares which remain
No. sharcholders | unclaimed suapense account which are frozen | unclaimed for public shareholders
1 18 11965 11965

Far Yash Pakka Limited

Jagdeep
Managkig Cuacar

(qa
1.

126
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7'9/2412020 Shareholding Pattern 20.06.2020 (Post). xism.htmi
significant beneficial owners
. , Detaila of hoiding/ exercise of right of the SBO in
»f the SBO Details of the registered owner the reparting company, irect or indirect®: | Date of
: Whether by virtue of: ceation
regort Nationality g Nationality ! scquisition
o (Applicable o in (Applicable Rights on | of
AN | % | Nasionality [in case of | Name | PAN | % °F | Nationality | in case of . | distributable | Exercise | EX*°%° | significant
a [} Yoting | ... of sial
foreign Any other foreign Any other | Shares rights dividend or |of significant benefi
national s selected) nationsl is selected) :lgus:::ou control |- interest
Fer Yash Pakka Limiteo

2 e
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OasHPAKKA

Pre and post Amalgamation / Arrangement shareholding pattern in for all companies

involved in the scheme

Packaging with a Soul

128
ANNEXURE -7

Annexure Il

Sr. Description Name of _ YASH
No. Sharcholder | COMPOSTABLES YASH PAKKA LIMITED
LIMITED .
Pre-arrangement Pre-arrangement Post-arrangement
No. of % No. of % No. of shares %
shares shares
(A) | Shareholding
of Promoter
and Promoter
Group
1 Indian
Individuais/ Names of
Hindu Promoter
Undivided KX,
Family Jhunjhunwala . .
HUF 16000 0.05 16000 0.
T (b) | Central -
Government/
State 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.0
Government(s)
(<) Bodies .
Corporate if;f;;d Global 0 000 | 3334500 | 9.46 3334500 8.7
Yash Agro
Products 0 0.00 963640 2.75 968640 25
Limited
{(d) | Financial -
Institutions/ 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.0
Banks
(¢) | Any Others Ved Krishna 49400 98.80 | 11009950 |31.24 13814388 36.2
(Directors and Manjuia ‘
their Relatives) Yhunjhunwala - 100 0.20 551066 1.56 556743 1.4
Sub -
Total(A)(1) 49500 99.00 | 15880156 | 45.06 18690271 49.0
2 Foreign
of Yash W
Oirecor &
Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
Kanpur208002, (U.£), india
CIN: L24231UP1981PLCO05294

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.£), India
+91-5278-258174 | connect@vashpakkacom
www.yashpakka.corm

e ——— i —
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VQSH PAKKA

Packaging with a Soul

@ Individuals -
{Non-Residents
Individuals/
Foreign
Individuals)

0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(b) } Bodies - 0 0.00 0 .| 0.00 0
Corporate

(c) | Institutions - 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

(d) | Any Others - 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

Sub - 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
Total(A)(2)

Total -
Shareholding
of Promoter
and Promoter
Group (A)=
(AHANK2)

49300 99.00 | 15880156 | 45.06 18690271

Public
.._(,]2 shareholding

1 Institutions

Mutual Funds/ - 0 0.00

(@) UTI 1000 0.00 1000

Financial -
(6) | Institutions’ 0 0.00 2000 | 0.01 2000
Banks

Central -

(© Government/ 0 0.00 U ¢.00 [
State :

Government(s)

@ Venture Capital - 0 000 |. 0 0.00 0
Funds

Insurance - 0 0.00 0 0.00 0
(¢ Compani
panies

Fareiga -
() Institutional 0 0.00 0 0.00 ¢

Investors

Foreign Venture - _ |
® Capital 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

Investors

- ¢ 0.00 0 0.00 0

(h) Any Other

Fer Yash Pakka

Jagdeep ks
Managing Disector & CEO

Formerly Yash Papers Limited P
: 72, Az agar.
akka v, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), india Registered Office: Flat Nq. 202, 3 A
b Lirited, esh Noga v Kanpur208002, (U.P), India

- nnect@yashpakka.com
rxx:hﬁiwoln? P CIN: L24231UP1SBIPLCO05294
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YASHPAKKA

Packaging with a Soul"

Sub-Total - 0 0.00 — _
B)(1) 3000 | 0.01 3000

Non-
institutions

Bodies . -
(a) Corporate 0 0.00 2962139_ 841 2962139 17

(b) Individuals -

Individuals -i. -
Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital up
to Rs 2 lacs

500 1.00 8753836 | 24.84 8782221

ii. Individual -
shareholders
holding nominal 0 0.00
share capital in
excess of Rs. 2
lacs

il 5778862 | 16.40 5778862

(¢} Any Other

I Non Resident - 0 0.00

, 974358 - | 2.76 974358
Indian

Resident Indian - 0 0.00

HUF 686928 1.95 686928

Clearing -
Members/ 0 0.00

200721 0.57 200721
House '

Sub-Total - |
500 1.00 | 19356844 | 54.93 19385229
(B)2) .

Total -
Public
(B) Shareholding 500 1.00 19359844 | 54.94 19388229
(B

(B)(1)+(B)(2)

TOTAL -

50000 100 | 35240000 | 100 38078500
(A)y+(B) r

(C) | Shares held by -
Custodians and
against which
DRs have been
issued

0 0.00 0 | 000 0

- Fer Yash Pakka L
.
Managing Direclor & CEO ' L :

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), india Registerad Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P.), india
www.yashpakika.com CIN: L24231UP198IPLCO05204
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YASHPAKKA

Packaging with a Soul
GRAND - '
TOTAL 50000 160 35240000 100 38078500
(AHBYHO)

E 7

Managing Directyr & CEQ
DIN: 07639849

Date: 25" September, 2020
Place: Ayodhya

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), India Registared Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (V.R), India
www.yashpakka.com CIN: L24231UP1981PLCOD5294




Yash Compostables Limited 3%
(Formerly Known as Yash Ecoeneroy Limited) mvﬂﬁ 8A

ANNEXURE Il

Pre and Post Shareholding of Yash Compostabies Limited
As on 20" June, 2020

Pre-Merger Post-Merger -
Category ~ No.of | % j No. of %
~_shares j shares ~
Promoter . 49,500 99% Nil | N.A.
Public : 500 1% Nil N.A.
Total | . ~ 50,000 | 100.00% Nil | NA.
‘ rY(g)sh Compostables Limited |
%":" o =)
Sumant Pai
Director
DIN: 08405547
Date: 25/09/2020
Place: Ayodhya
Regisiored Office : Fiat No. 202, 3A/172, AmdNoour _ CIN : U51100UP2014PLCD62981
Kanpur - 208002, UP india . - Econneck@yashcomposiobies.com
Comparaie Office : C-2, Sector - 1, Noida, 201301 Indic P: +915278 208900, 208901
Works Office: Yosh Nagae. Fakeabad - 224135 www.chukin
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ANNEXURE Ill

Pre and Post Shareholding of Yash Pakka Limited
As on 20" June, 2020

Pre-Merger ’ Post-Merger
Category No. of % No. of %
~_ghares shares

Promoter 1,58,80,156 | 45.06| 1,86,90,271| 49.08
Public 1,93,69,844 (| 5494 | 1,93,88,229 | 50.92
Total 3,52,40,000 | 100.00 | 3,80,78,500 | 100.00

(RS Nor Yash Pakka Limited , ‘

& & '

SR »

= Jagdeep Hi

Managing Director & CEQ '
DIN: 07639849

Date: 25/09/2020
Place: Ayodhya

Formerly Yash Papaers Limited

Yash Palda Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India Registerad Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P), India
wwwyashpakka.com CIN: L24231JP1981PLC0O0S5294
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Yash Compostables Limited \34
(Formerly Known as Yash Ecoenergy Limited) ANNEX URE-SA
| Annexure IV

The financial detalis and capital evolution of the transfereeofresulting and
transferor/demerged companies for the previous 3 years as per the audited

statoment of Accounts:
Name of the Company: Yash Compostables Limited
. ‘ (Rs. in Lakhs)
As per last 1 year priof to the | 2 years prior to the
Audited Financial last Audited last Audited
Year Financial ?Year Financial Year
2019-20 2018£ 2017-18

Equity Paid up Capital 5.00 - 500 5.00

Reserves and surplus -129.95 -112.80 -1.90

Carry forward losses -129.95 -112.80 -1.90

Net Worth -124.95 -107.80 3.10

Miscellaneous - . -

Expenditure

Secured Loans : 0.00 . 0.00 0.00

Unsecured Loans 0.00 _ 0.00 . 0.00

Fixed Assets _ 3.84 281 0.00

Income from Operations 12,124.85 1,124.25 0.00

Total Income 2,131.01 1,;127.36 0.00
i | Total Expenditure 2,154.09 1,277.68 ‘-0.17 _
i | Profit before Tax | -23.08 -150.32 -0.17
‘ Profit after Tax -17.14 -110.91 -0.17
L Cash profit -15.64 11068 -0.17
' EPS (in Rs) -34.28 -221.82 0.00
| | Book value Per Share (In -249.90 -215.60 . 82

Rs) ;

for Yash Compostables Limited

§".¢/ -z
umant Pai

Director

Date: 25/09/2020

Place: Ayodhya

Registered Office : Flat No. 202, 34/172, Azxi Nogar, CIN:: U51100UP201 4PLCDS298
- Kongw - 208002, UP india - B connmeciyashcompotabies.com
Comporaie Office : C-2, Secior - 1, Nolda, 201301 iniic P +915278 208500, 200901

Works Ofice: Yosh Noges, Falzabaodd - 224135 www.chuicin
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Annexure IV

The financial details and capital evolution of the transferee/resuiting and
transferor/demerged companies for the previous 3 yaars as per the audited

statament of Accounts:

Name of the Company: Yash Pakka Limited

(Rs. in Crores)

As per last 1 year prioﬁ to the | 2 years prior to the
Audited Financial last Audited last Audited
Year Financial Year - Financial Year
2019-20 2018-19 '2017-18
Equity Paid up Capital 35.24 - 35.24 35.24
Reserves and surplus 81.39 58.468 37.88
Carry forward losses - | - -
Net Worth 11663 93.70 73.12
Miscellaneous | - - -
Expenditure '
Secured Loans 92.59 113.62 133.08
Unsecured Loans 8.06 855 8.05
Fixed Assets 171.46 167.32 163.46
Income from Operations 252.38 250.26 201.75
Total Income 261.11 255.43 205.24
Total Expenditure 221.57 230.60 183.08
Profit before Tax 39.54 24.83 22.16
Profit after Tax 27.61 - 20.71 12.48
Cash profit 37.88 29.41 18.87
EPS (In INR Rs) 7.84 _ 5.88 3.62
Book value Per Share (In 33.13 26.62 20.77
iNR Rs)
for Yash Pakka Limited
Lretan >
ignesh Shah

Chief Financial Officer

Date: 25-09-2020
Place: Ayodhya

Formaerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayochya 224135 (U.P.), india
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com
wwwyashpakka.com

Registerad Office; Flat No, 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar.
Kanpur208002, (U.P), india
CIN: L24231UP1981PLCO05294
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Off. : 05612 - 2302412

RAJEEV PREM & ASSOCIATES Of. - 0512 - 2302612
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Qfﬂce:216.KalpanaP[aza
24/147-B, Birhana Rcad

Kanpur-208 001

E-mail : carajeevkapoor@gmail.com

To,

The Board of Directors
Yash Compostables Limited
Flat No.202, 3A/172,

Azad Nagar,

Kanpur - 208002

We, the statutory auditors of Yash Compostables Limited, (hereinafter
referred to as “the Company”™), have examined the proposed accounting
treatment specified in clause 11 of the Draft Scheme of Merger by Absorption
of Yash Compostables Limited (“the Transferor Company”) by Yash Pakka
Limited (“the Transferee Company™) in terms of the provisions of sections 230
to 232 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with
reference to its compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified
under Companies Act, 2013 and Other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.

The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations, including the applicable Accounting
Standards as aforesaid, is that of the Board of Directors of the Companies
involved. Qur responsibility is only to examine and report whether the Draft
Scheme complies with the. applicable Accounting Standards and Other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Nothing contained in this
Certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of, or in connection with the
services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend any duty of care that we
may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of
the Company. We carried out our examination in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit Reports and Certificates for Special Purposes, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations
given 10 us, we confirm that the accounting treatment contained in the aforesaid
scheme is in compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and circulars issued there under and all the
applicable Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with rules made there under, and other generally accepted
accounting principles, as applicable. e
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This Certificate is issued at the request of the Yash Compostable Limited
pursuant to the requirements of circulars issued under SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for onward submission to the
BSE Limited. This Certificate should not be used for any other purpose without
our prior written consent.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 008905C
e~

Rajeev Kapoor

Partner

Membership Number: 077827

sRIN L, 20077827 Maa FE 3347
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CNK & Associates LLP  Yarin Chambers, Sth Floor, M. G. Road, Wie Farle (E) M“mbyﬁo 051,

Chartered Accountants Mistry Bhavan, 3rd Floor, Dinshaw Vachha Read, Churchgate, Mumbai « 400 020,
Tel.: +91-22-6623 0600 -

REF/CERT/VLP/200/20-21

To,

The Board of Directors,
Yash Pakka Limited
2" Floor, 24/57,
Birhana Road,

Kanpur — 208001

Sub: Certificate confirming the Accounting Treatment as mentioned in the proposed scheme
of Merger of Yash Compostables Limited with Yash Pakka Limited.

This certificate is issued in accordance with your email dated 18® September 2020, which requires us
to confirm the accounting treatment as specified in clause 11 of the Draft scheme of merger of Yash
Compostables Limited (“YCL”) by Yash Pakka Limited (“YPL”) in terms of the provisions of
section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 with reference to its compliance with the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and
other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

The responsibility of the preparation of the draft scheme of merger as aforesaid and its compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations; including the applicable Indian Accounting Standards as
aforesaid, is that of the Board of Directors of the Companies involved, including the preparation and
maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records and documents. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Scheme, and applying an appropriate basis of preparation, and
making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is only to examine and report whether the accounting treatment proposed in the
Draft Scheme of merger complies with Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations” prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act and other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

We conducted our examination of the statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes (revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India {(ICAI). The said Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the
Code of Ethics issued by ICAIL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and other assurance and Related Services Engagements issued by ICAL

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanation given to us, we confirm
that the accounting treatment contained in the clause |1 of the aforesatd Draft scheme of merger is in
compliance with Indian Accounting Standard-103 “Business Combinations™ prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013,




This certificate is addressed to and provided to the Company solely for the purpose of submission to
National Company Law Tribunal and other regulators along with the Draft Scheme of merger for its
approval and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other person or to any other person to
whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without prior consent in writing.

For CN K & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regigtration No_: 101961 W/W-100036

Himenshu Kishnadwala’

Partner

Membership No.: 037391 .
UDIN: 20037391 AAAAFZ4500

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 19" September 2020
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ANNEXURE Vi
COMPLIANCE REPORT TO BE SUBMITTED ALONG WITH THE DRAFT SCHEME

It is hereby certified that the draft scheme of arrangement involving Yash Pakka
Limited (“Transferee Company’) and Yash Compostables Limited (“Transferor
Company”) does not, in any way violate, override or limit the pravisions of securities
laws or requirements of the Stock Exchange(s) and the same is in compliance with
the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 and this circular, including the following:

Sl. | Reference Particulars
1 Regulations 17 to 27 of LODR Corporate governance requirements
Regulations

2 Regulation 11 of LODR Regulations | Compliance with securities laws

Requirements of this circular

(a) | Para (I)(A)2) Submission of documents to Stock
Exchanges

(b) | Para (I)AX3) Conditions for schemes of
arrangement invoiving unlisted entities

(¢) | Para (I)(A)4) (a) Submission of Valuation Report

(d} | Para (I)(A)5) Auditors certificate regarding

compliance with Accounting Standards

(e} | Para (I)(A)9) Provision of approval of pubiic
shareholders through e-voting

achin Kumar Srivastava p Hi
Company Secretary & Head Legal Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 07639849

o

Date: 25/09/2020 Date: 25/09/2020
Place: Ayodhya Place: Ayodhya

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

vash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P). India Registerad Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P), india
www.yashpakka.com CIN: L24231UP1981PLCO0S294
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Certified that the transactions / accounting treatment provided in the draft scheme of
arrangement involving Yash Pakka Limited (“Transferee Company”) and Yash
Compostables Limited (“Transferor Company”) are in compliance with all the
Accounting Standards applicable to a listed entity.

tARK N\For Yash Pakka Limited yaRgor Yash Pakka Limited

&y <
. .i (
5 s el
)
4 Jignesh Shah agdeep Hira
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEQ
DIN: 07639848

Date: 25/08/2020 Date: 25/09/2020
Place: Ayodhya Place: Ayodhya

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.£), India Registared Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Axad Nagar,
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P.), India

www.yashpakka.com CIN; L24231UP198IPLCDO5294
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Chartered Accountants Mistry Bhavan, 3rd Floos, Dinshaw Vachha Road, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020.
Tel.: +901.22-6623 0600

REF/CERT/VLP/202/20-21

To,

The Board of Directors,
Yash Pakka Limited
2" Floor, 24/57,
Birhana Road,

Kanpur - 208001

Sub: Certificate confirming the minimum issue price for the proposed scheme of Merger of
Yash Compostables Limited with Yash Pakka Limited.

This certificate is issued in accordance with your email dated 18" September 2020, which requires us
to confirm:

i.  The retevant date for the purpose of said minimum issue price was 19* June 2020.

ii. the minimum issue price of Rs. 34.48 per share, as mentioned in the Appendix-1 to this
certificate, has been computed based on the pricing formula prescribed under Chapter V of
SEBT (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, in compliance with
regulations 158 and 164 (1) of the said regulations for the proposed scheme of merger of Yash
Compostables Limited (“YCL") with Yash Pakka Limited (“YPL")

The responsibility of the computation of the minimum issue price as aforesaid in compliance with
pricing formula prescribed under Chapter V of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, in compliance with regulations 158 and 164 (1} of the said regulations and
provision of the requisite information for the purpose of this certificate is the responsibility of YPL
including compliance with the relevant laws and regulations; including preparation and maintenance
of all relevant supporting records and documents, This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of
this Appendix-1 and applying an appropriate basis of preparation and presentation

Qur responsibility is to confirm:

i.  The relevant date for the purpose of said minimum issue price was 19" June 2020, and

ii. the minimum issue price of Rs. 34.48 per share, as mentioned in the Appendix-| to this
certificate, has been computed based on the pricing formula prescribed under Chapter V of
SEBI (Issue of Capita! and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, in compliance with
regulations 158 and 164 (1) of the said regulations for the proposed scheme of merger of Yash
Compostables Limited (*YCL”) with Yash Pakka Limited (“YPL”)

We conducted our examination of the statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reporis or
Certificates for Special Purposes (revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India (ICAT). The said Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the
Code of Ethics issued by ICAL




We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control

(SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and other assurance and Related Services Engagements issued by ICAL

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanation given to us, we confirm
that ’

i.  the relevant date for the purpose of said minimum issue price was 19® June, 2020, since the
Board meeting was held on 20" June, 2020 (which day was a holiday for trading), and

i,  the minimum issue price of Rs. 34.48 per share, as mentioned in the Appendix-I to this
certificate, has been computed based on the pricing formula prescribed under Chapter V of
SEBI (Issue of Capitat and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, in compliance with
regulations 158 and 164 (1) of the said regulations for the proposed scheme of merger of Yash
Compostables Limited (“YCL”) with Yash Pakka Limited (“YPL")

This certificate is addressed to and provided to the Company solely for the purpose of submission to
National Company Law Tribunal and other regulators along with the Draft Scheme of merger for its
approval and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other person or to any other person to
whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without prior consent in writing,

For CN K & Associates L1P
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Ragistration No.; 10196 AW/ W-100036

Himanshu Kishnadwala '
Partner

Membership No.: 037391

UDIN: 20037391 AAAAGBI1511

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 19" September 2020
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Appendix -1

(To be read with Certificate no, REF/CERT/VLP/ 202/20-21)

A] Average of weekly high & low of the voluine weighted average price (VWAP) of the equity
shares of Yash Pakka Limited quoted on the BSE Limited during the last twenty-six weeks
preceding the relevant date (considering relevant date as 19" June, 2020)

1 0Dec-19 | 26.Dec19 | 40,68 1903 | 4031
2 27-Dec-19 2-Jan-20 42 64 40.35 41.50
3 3-Jal"ll-20 9-Jan-20 42.65 40.65 41.65
4 10-Jan-20 16-Jan-20 42.75 41 96 42.35
5 t7-Jan-20 23-1an-20 45.40 43 .46 44.43
3 W Tan20 | 30Jan30 7T 350 4418
7 TiJan30 | 6Feb20 4394 2068 47
] 7-Feb-20 13-Feb-20 44.18 40.09 42.13
9 [4-Feb-28 20-Feb-20 39,56 37.72 38.65
0 31-Feb20 | 27-Feb20 37.85 5555|3692
11 28-Feb-20¢ 5-Mar-20 36.19 31.85 34,02
12 6-Mar-20 12-Mar-20 29.95 25.73 27.84
13 13-Mar-20 19-Mar-20 2342 2138 2240
T 20-Mar 30| 26-Mar20 5361 7961 2028
ES 27-Mar-20 2-Apr-20 21.90 21.16 21.53
6 JApr20 | 9-Apr20 3675 5037|2356
17 10-Apr-20 16-Apr-20 28.77 27.28 28.03
s 17-Api20 | 23-Apr20 3538 3003 | 3270
19 24-Apr-20 30-Apr-20 37.33 35.05 36.19
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20 1-May-20 7-May-20 32.10 29.77 30.93
21 8-May-20 14-May-20 3435 31.42 32.89
22 15-May-20 21-May-20 37.27 33.74 35.51
23 22-May.20 28-May-20 35.76 34.16 34.96
24 29-May-20 4-Jun-20 36.37 35.27 35.82
25 5-Jun-20 11-Jun-20 36.10 32.33 34.21
26 12-Jun-20 13-Jun-20 32.21 3015 31.68

Average

Price 34.48

B| Average of weekly high & low of the volume weighted average price (VWAP) of the equity
shares of Yash Pakka Limited quoted on the BSE Limited during the Iast two weeks
preceding the relevant date (considering relevant date as 19™ Fane, 2020)

5-Jun-20

“11-un20 |

32.33 3421
2 12-Jun-20 18-Jun-20 32.21 31.15 31.68
Average
Price 3295
A] Average of 26 weeks high low of the VIWAP 34.48
B} Average of 2 weeks high tow of the VWAP 32.95
Applicable Minimum Price (Eigher of the A or B) 34.48

ULy
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ANNEXURE VIl

Brief particulars of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company

Particulars (Transferee Company) (Transferor Company)
Name of the  Yash Pakka Limited (“YPL") | Yash Compostables
company ' Limited(“YCL")

Date of | Date of Incorporation: May | Date of Incorporation:

Incorporation &
details of name
changes, if any

05, 1981

Details of name change of the
Company: The Company was
originally incorporated under
the name of “Yash Papers
Limited” under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 on
May 05, 1981 issued by the
Registrar of Companies, U.P.
Thereafter, the name of the
company was changed from
"Yash Papers Limited" to "Y.ash
Pakka Limited" vide fresh
Certificate of Incorporation
pursuant to change of name
dated November 8, 2018
issued by the Registrar of
Companies, Kanpur.

The Company has its shares
listed on the BSE Limited
(“BSE").

February 27, 2014

Details of name change of
the Company: The Company
was originally incorporated
under the name of "Yash
Ecoenergy Limited™ under the
provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 vide Certificate of
Incorporation dated February
27, 2014 issued by the
Ragistrar of Companies, Uttar
Pradesh. Thereafter, the name
of the company was changed
from "Yash Ecoenergy Limited"
to its present name i.e. "Yash

Compostables Limited" vide
fresh Certificate of
Incorporation  pursuant to

change of name dated July 3,
2018 issued by the Registrar of
Campanies (RoC), Kanpur.

Registered Office | 2™ Floor, 24/57, Birhana Road, | Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad
Kanpur — 208001, Uttar | Nagar, Kanpur — 208002, Uttar
Pradesh, India Pradesh, India

Brief particulars | With effect from the Appointed Date i.e. 1% April, 2020 and upon

of the scheme

this Scheme coming into effect, the Transferor Company shall
stand merged with and be vested in the Transferee Company, as
a going concern, without any further act or instrument and
pursuant to the provisions of 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions- of the Companies Act, 2013, together with all the
properties, assets, rights, liabilities, benefits and interest therein
as more specifically describad in the Scheme.

Fer Yash PaT Ligni
W&?

>

Formerly Yash Papars L;mﬁg ke & CEO

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P}, india
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakkacaom
www.yashpakka.com

Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
Kanpur208002, {U.P.), india
CIN: L24231UM9B1PLCO05294
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Rationale for the
scheme

. YCL and YPL, belonging to the same group of management, it

would be advantageous to combine the activiies and
operations in a single entity. The amalgamation would create
synergies between two complementing companies with similar
objective and business line.

. Both YPL and YCL have their independent B2B customer’s

and dealer networks, supply chain and logistic partners, the
amalgamation will also provide synergistic linkages besides
economies in costs by combining the total business functions
in all segments including sales, procurement, logistic activities
and the related activities and operations and thus contribute to
the profitability of the amalgamated entity.

. Economies of scale will play a bigger role as the consolidated

entity's operational efficiency will increase, which will in turmn
aliow the merged entity to compete on a iarger scale in the
industry, thus benefiting the merged entity and the
shareholders.

. The amalgamation will enable the merged entity to build up a

diversified product portfolio in YPL and will assist the merged
entity with faster and quicker decision making as both
manufacturing and marketing activities are under the same
management.

. The amalgamation will enable the merged entity to get direct

access to customers which will give them a beiter
understanding of the market taste and customer
requirements. This will assist the merged entity to produce
right quality required for different market segment.

With YPL having a manufacturing experience of more than 40
years alongwith all the requisite technical know-how to
produce in house paper pulp which is a basic input for
compostable products, gives YPL an edge over other
competitors and YCL a company involved in marketing will
result in the merged entity to have all the necessary functions
under one roof. It is considered desirable and expedient to
consolidate and amalgamate the business of both YCL and
YPL so as to bring bath the functions will be under the same
management, production planning process will become more
aligned to the customer needs which will result in a stronger

ror Yash Pakka&imited -
Menaging Director &

Formetly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

- - kka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P.), India
+91-§278-258174 | connect@yashpa | prlapeas o

wwwyashpakka.com
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asset base and skilis to conduct the business in the emerging
environment and to rationalise the costs of business.

The amalgamation will increase the net worth of YPL which
would enable it to capitalise upon such improved net worth to
enhance the stake holders’ value.

The amaigamation will increase financial strength, enhance
flexibility and ability to raise larger resources, attract and
retain better talent and undertake iarger support services
related projects.

The amalgamation will result in integration and effective
utilisation of resources, which is likely to result in optimising
overall shareholder value and improvement in competitive
position of YPL as a combined entity.

The amalgamation will result in economy of scale, reduction in
overheads, administrative and other expenditure, efficiency
and optimal utilisation of various resources.

The amalgamation will bring both the entities under one roof
to portray one face to all the parties with whom the Yash
Group deals.

The amalgamation will result in better leveraging of facilities,
infrastructure and resources.

. Duplication of administrative functions together with the

multiple record keeping will be eliminated, resulting in over-all
reduction in expenditure.

The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in
multiplicity of legal and regulatory compiiances which at
present is required to be made separately by YCL as well as
by the YPL.

This merger will provide an opportunity to leverage assels and
build a stronger sustainable business. it will provide an
opportunity to fully leverage stronger asset capabilities,
experience, expertise and infrastructure of both the
companies and thus increased ability for promotion of
business activities as well as for fund raising as may be

Fer Yash Pakkaﬁnited

Jagdeep Hira
Managing Direcior &

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

>

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (UR), india Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
+91-8278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, {U.P.), india

www.yashpakka.com

CIN: L24231UP1981PLCCO5294
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required for business development.

p. The merger would lead to synergic benefits, efficiency of
operations and management, rapid growth of the entity,
optimum utilization of its resources and minimization of the
administrative and operative costs.

g. The merger will result in a value creation for the shareholders
and stakeholders of YCL and YPL as the combined
amalgamated company will have improved efficiency, market
share, financial structure, larger cash flows and stronger
consolidated revenue and profitability.

r. The merger of YCL with YPL would resuit in consolidation of
business activities of both the companies and will facilitate
effective management of investments and synergies in
operation.

s. There is no likelihcod that any shareholder or creditor or
employee of YCL and YPL would be prejudiced as a result of
the Scheme. Thus, the merger is in the interest of the
shareholders, creditors and all other stakeholders of the
companies and is not prejudicial to the interests of the
concemed shareholders, creditors or the public at large.

Date of resolution | June 20, 2020 June 20, 2020
passed by the
Board of Director
of the company
approving the
scheme

Date of meeting of | June 19, 2020 Not Applicable
the Audit
Committee in
which the draft}
scheme has been

approved .
Appointed Date April 01, 2020 April 01, 2020
Name of | BSE Limited Net Listed

Exchanges where
securities of the
company are
listed

For Yash Pakka Limi 4
: A3
Jagdeep

Managing Direcior & CEQ
Formerty Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), india Registered Office: Flat No, 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.R), india
www.yashpakka.a\)m CIN: L24231UP1981PLCO05294
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Packaging with a Soul
Nature of | Yash Pakka Limited is engaged | Yash Compostable Limited is
Business in the business of | inter-alia engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of | business of trading of

products like Pulp, Kraft Paper,
Poster Paper, Moulded
(Tableware) Products, Bagasse
Pith Pallets, and Egg Tray.

compaostable products. YCL is
also a marketing company and
has played a major role in
deveiopment of the brand
named 'Chuk’ which is owned

be issued

by YPL.
Capital before the | 3,52,40,000 Equity Shares of | 50,000 Equity Shares of face
scheme face value of Rs. 10/- each|value of Rs. 10/ each
(No. of equity | aggregating to Rs. | aggregating to Rs. 5,00,000 /-.
shares as well as | 35,24,00,000 /-,
capital in rupees)
No. of shares to | 28,38,500 Equity Shares

Cancellation of
shares on account
of cross holding,

Not Applicable

if any
Capital after the | 3,80,78,500 Equity Shares of | Nil
scheme face value of Rs. 10/~ each
- (No. of equity | aggregating to Rs.
shares as well as | 38,07,85,000
capital in rupees)
Net Worth (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Pre 11,662.99 (124.95)
Post 11,946.80 -
Valuation by | Name of the Valuer:
independent Ms. Sudha Bhushan '
Chartered (Registered Valuer- Securties or Financial Assets)
Accountant - Address: 701, B Wing, Julian Alps, Bhakti Park, Wadala
Name of the | Ph.: 9769033172

valuer/valuer firm
and Regn no.

Email : 9769033172

IBBI Registration Number : IBBI/RV/07/2018/12234

Methods of | Computation of Fair Exchange Ratio
valuation and - -
value per share YPL YCL
arrived under
each method with z::_“e :::ue
weight given to . -
each method, if| | — = . s';;-'\'e W%Q'_‘t Sh:": Wo:)ht
any. set Approac N
For Yash Pakka Ld

AV

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

vach Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), India
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com

- wwwyashpakka.com

S S ——

Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

Kanpur208002, (U.P.), india
CiIN: L24231UP1981PLCO05294
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Packaging with a Soul
Income Approach NA 0 2366.45 1
Market Approach 34.48 1 NA 0
Relative Value per
Share 34.48 2,366.45
Exchange Ratio 68.63

68.63 (Sixty eight point sixty three) Equity Share of Yash Pakka
Limited of INR 10 each fully paid for every 1 (One) Share of Yash
Compostable Limited (YCL) of INR 10 each fully paid up

Reason for Not Using Certain Meg; ods in Valuation - YPL

Yash Pakka Limited (YPL) is a BSE Listed company on a
Recognized Stock Exchange in India, and the price determined
by market forces is the most appropriate and relevant price for
the Company and hence we have adopted the ‘Market Price
Methad under the Market Approach’. The other methods like
Income Approach and Asset Approach is not considered here
because they are not representative of the valuation of YPL.

For Valuation of Equity shares of YPL, we have considered
average market price of last 26 weeks preceding the date of
Valuation by calculating the weekly average of High Price & Low
Price for each traded week. As per this method, the fair value of
YPL is 121,50,61,846 which is Rs.34.48/- per equity share.

Reason for Not Using Certain Methods in Valuation - YCL

We have only considered the Discounted Cash Flow method for
valuation of YCL because the entity is a relatively new company
and in the growing pattern. The Asset approach is not
appropriate here as the company will take time to establish sales
and market network and the benefit of the current set up
established will be derived in the coming period. The Market
approach is also not appropriate for the valuation due to the fact
that the company is a Pvt Ltd and not listed and there is no data
from comparable deals is available for similar companies. in this
situation we are constrained to use only DCF method under the
Income Approach as the most reliable valuation of YCL

An asset is mostly purchased for the value it may be able to

Fer Yash mi
2
Jagdeep

Managing Direcir &

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

vash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar. Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.R), India

www.yashpakia.com

CIN: L24231UP1981PLCO05294
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derive in the future. Income approach is the most scientific
approach as it considers the time value of money and the cash
outflows including working capital & capital expenditure that are
required for the increased levels of business forecasted. Also,
YCL being an unlisted company the comparable data is not
readily available. As per DCF method, value of YCL is arrived at
Rs.11,83,22,614/- And this converied into per equity share of
YCL at Rs.2,366.45/-.

Fair wvalue

shares

per

Re.34 .48 per share Rs.23666.45 per share

Exchange ratio

56.77 equity shares of face value Rs.10/- each of Yash Pakka
Limited will be issued and alictted for every 1 equity share held in
Yash Compostables Limited.

Name of Merchant

Mark Corporate Advisors Private Limited

Banker giving
fairness opinion
Shareholding Pre Post
pattern
No. of Shares | % of holding | No. of Shares [ % of holding_‘
Promoter
Public Ref: Annexure 8A & 8B Ref: Annexure 8A & 8B
Custodian
TOTAL
No of | Pre-Merger: 15526 Pre-Merger: 7
shareholders as
on 20" June, 2020 | Post-Merger: 15530 Post-Merger: 0

scheme, if any

Names of the Ref: Annexure 14A & 14B Ref: Annexure 14A & 14B
Promoters  (with -

PAN nos.)

Names of the| Ref: Annexure 14A & 14B Ref: Annexure 14A & 14B
Board of Directors

(with DIN and PAN

nos.)

Please specify | Yash Pakka Limited and Yash Compostables Limited are under
relation among | same group of management. Yash Pakka Limited is a
the companies | Manufacturer of Pulp & Paper Products, Moulded Products made
involved in the |from paper pulp, Egg Tray, Pith Pallet whereas Yash

Compostable is into trading of all compostable preducts including
the Moulded Products (Tableware).

Fer Yash Pakka N

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), India
+91-5278-25R174 | connect@yashpakka.com

www.yashpakka.com

N
Managing Oveckr 3

Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
Kanpur208002, (U.P), India
CIN: L24231UP1981PLC005294
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Details regarding | There will be no change in the Management control of Yash
change in | Pakka Limited (which is a Listed Transferee Company) pursuant
management to the Scheme of Merger by Absorption.
control in listed or '
resulting
company seeking
| listing if any
or Yash Pakka Limited
Jagdeep Hira
Managing Director & CEO 3 s
DIN: 07639849

Date: 25/09/2020
Place: Ayodhya

Formerty Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.), India Repistered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P.), india

www.yashpakka.com CIN: L24231UP98IPLCO05294
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ANWU&EéMA

ANNEXURE - IX

BRIEF DETAILS OF THE PROMOTER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YASH
COMPOSTABLES LIMITED (“TRANSFEROR _COMPANY?)

A. List of Promoters of transferor Company

Sr. | Name . f PAN

No.
1. | Mr. Ved Krishna : AJRPK1551C
2. | Mrs. Manjula Jhunjhunwala ' ABSPJ4695H

B. List of Board of Directors of transferor Company

Sr. [Name | DIN | PAN

No.
1. | Mr. Amit Sharma 07587504 AWMPS0346P
2. | Mr. Sumant Pai 08405547 AlZPP4484E
3. | Mr. Ved Krishna 00182260 AJRPK1551C
4. | Mrs. Kimberly Ann McArthur 05206436 BYEPM4617C

& v
Sumant Pai B

Director
DIN: 08405547

Date: 25/09/2020
Place: Ayodhya

Registerad Ofice ; Fiat No. 202, 34172, Azad Nager., : CIN : US1100UP201 4PLCD62981
Konpus - 208002. UR india - . | +  Econneck@yashcomposiabies.com
Coporate Ofice : C-2, Sector - 1. Nolda, 201301 India P: +915278 208900, 208501

Warks OMce: Yosh Noger, Folzabacd - 224136 wewchukin

——— . Iy —
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Packaging with a Soul

ANNEXURE - IX

BRIEF DETAILS OF THE PROMOTER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YASH
PAKKA LIMITED (“TRANSFEREE COMPANY”)

"A. List of Promoters of transferee/resulting Company

Sr. | Name PAN

No.
1. | Mr. Ved Krishna AJRPK1551C
2. | Mrs. Manjula Jhunjhunwala ABSPJ4695H
3. | K. K. Jhunjhunwala HUF (Karta - Ved Krishna) AAEHK4888A
4, | Satori Global Limited AAJCS9092A
5. | Yash Agro Products Limited AAACM9315R

B. List of Board of Directors of transferee Company

Sr. | Name "DIN PAN

No. ' ,
1. | Mr. Pradeep Vasant Dhobale 00274636 ABVPDS587B
2. | Mr. Ved Krishna 00182260 AJRPK1551C
3. | Mr. Jagdeep Hira 07639849 AAZPH8476N
4. | Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal 05281887 ABQPA2664M
5. | Mrs. Manjula Jhunjhunwala 00192901 ABSPJ4895H
6. | Mrs. Kimberly Ann McArthur 05206436 BYEPM4617C
7. | Dr. indroneel Banerjee 06404397 AISPB1599B
8. | Mr. Atul Kumar Gupta 01734070 ACNPG56468
9. | Mr. Imanul Haque 00001284 ABBPHB6648F
10. | Mr. Srinivas Vishnubhatla Q7274232 ABNPV7290H
11. | Mr. Basant Kumar Khaitan 00117129 AFWPK4313D

4

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 07639849

Date: 25/09/2020
Place: Ayodhya

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limitad, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P.). India Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com ’ Kanpur208002, (U.P), india
wwwyashpakka.com CIN: L24231UP1981PLCO05294
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AN S0 Co .
RAJEEV PREM & ASSOCIATES O, : 0512 - 2302412

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Mob. : 09415051670
Office : 216, Kalpana p
24/147-8, Eir':ig?\a R[:;:
. ) Kanpur-208 001
To, E-mail : carajeevkapoor@gmail. com
Tha Board of Directors
Yash Compostables Limited
Flat No. 202, 3A/172
Azad Nagar
Kanpur - 208002
Uttar Pradesh
India

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on pre amalgamation net worth

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with terms of our engagement letter
dated 1% September, 2020 with Yash Compostables Limited (the Company).

2. The accompanying statement of computation of pre amalgamation net worth of
the Company as at 31% March, 2020 ({the Statement)contains the details as
required pursuant to the requirements of Regulations 37 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2015 for onward
submission to the National Company Law Tribunal and other regulatory
authorities including Securities and Exchange Board of India, Stock exchange(S)
and regional Director, Ministry of Corporate Affairs in connection with the Draft
Scheme of Amalgamation (the Draft Scheme) dated 18" June, 2020 between
Yash Compostables Limited (Transferor Company}) and the Company
(Transferee Company) in terms of the provision of Sections 230 fo 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies
Act,2013(the Act) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements}Regulations, 2015 and circulars issued there under, initialled by us
for identification purposes ony.

Management’s responsibility for the Statement

3. The responsibility for the preparation of the statement in compliance with the
relevant Laws and regulations, including the Draft Scheme and Audited Financial
Results of the Company as at and for the year ended 31* March, 2020 is that of
the Board of Directors of the Company. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriate basis of
preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.




x4 -

Auditor’s responsibility

4,

Pursuant to the requirements of regulations 37 of the SEBI{Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, our responsibility is to provide
a reasonable assurance whether:

- The amounts in the Statement that from part of the pre amalgamation net
warth computation have been accurately extracted from the Audited Financial
Results of the Company as at for the year ended 31* March, 2020;

-  The computation of pre amalgamation net worth is arithmetically correct and
is in accordance with the basis of computation set out in the Statement.

The Audited Financial Result referred to in paragraph 3 above, have been
audited by us, on which we issued our Audit Report dated 19™ June, 2020.

We have performed the following procedures in respect of the Statement:

{a) The amounts in the computation of the pre amaigamation net worth of the
Transferee Company have been traced from the Audited Financial Resuit of
the Transferee Company as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2020;and

(b} We have verified that the computation of pre amalgamation net worth is
arithmetically correct and is in accordance with the basis of computation set
out in the Statement.

We conducted our examination of the Statement in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Review 2016}
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. The Guidance Note
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on
Quality Control {SQC) |, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and other Assurance and Related
‘Services Engagements.




Opinion

9. Based on our examination as above and according to the information and
explanations and representation given to us by the Company’s management, we
are the opinion that:

- The amounts in the Statement that form part of the pre amalgamation net
worth computation have been accurately extracted from the Audited
Financial Results of the Company as at and for the year ended 31% March,
2020: and

- the computation of pre amalgamation net worth is arithmetically correct and
is in accordance with the basis of computation set out in the Statement.

Restriction on use

10.This Certificate is issued at the request of Yash Compostables Limited and is
addressed to the Board of Directors of the Company solely for the use the of the
management of the Company for the purpose of onward submission to the
National Company Law Tribunal ant other regulatory authorities including
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Stock exchange(s)and regional Director,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs to comply with the requirement of Regulation 37 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015
and should not be used by any other person cor for any other purpose.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any
other purpose or to any other person (o whom this Certificate is shown or in to
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:008905C

o
Rajfev Kap:f;:/
Partner
Membership No.077827
Loy R 1189 AN A ALF 652
Place:Kanpur
Date: 19" September, 2020

Enci: Statement of computation of pre amalgamation net worth
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STATEMENT OF PRE AMALGAMATION NET WORTH

A) Net Worth of Yash Compostables Limited as at 31* March, 2020 (Pre
Amalgamation)

Amount in INR Lakhs

1} Equity Share Capital {paid-up Capital) 5.00
I} Reserves & Surplus

General Reserve ' NIL

Surplus(Profit and Loss Balance) (-} 128.95

Securities Premium Account NIL

Employee Stock grant reserve NIL

Total Reserves & Surplus (-) 129.95

Pre Amalgamation Net Worth{l+Il) {-) 124.95

Notes

1- For the purposes of preparation of aforesaid statement of pre amalgamation
Net worth, ‘Net worth' is calcuiated as defined under Section 2(57)of the
Companies Act,2013. “Net worth" means the aggregate value of the paid-up
share capital and all reserve created out of the profits and securities
premium account, after deducting the aggregate value of the accumulated
Losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off,
as per the audited balance sheet, but does not include reserves created out
of revaluations of assets, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation

2- Pre amalgamationnet worth as at 31* March, 2020 has been determined on
the basis of Audited Financial Resuits of the Company as at and for the year
ended31® March, 2020.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 008905C

Rajgkv Kapoor
Parther
Membership No.077827

Place: Kanpur i ,
Date: 19" September, 2020

Qﬂ; N . 20077817 A arh F-67572
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| . Narain Chambers, 5th Floor, M. G. Road, Vile Padle (E), Mumbai - 400 057.
CNIK & Associates LLP i o122 62500600 i -

Mistry Bhavan, 3rd Floor, Dinshaw Vachha Road, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 ¢20.
Chartered Accountants Bl 012623 0600

REF/CERT/VLP/201/20-2]

To,

The Board of Directors,
Yash Pakka Limited
2™ Floor, 24/57,
Birhana Road,

Kanpur - 208001

Sub: Certificate on Pre-amalgamation net worth of Yash Pakka Limited

This certificate is issued in accordance with your email dated 18" September 2020, which requires us
to provide assurance on whether: ’

t.  The amounts that from part of the pre-amalgamation net worth computation as mentioned in
Appendix-1 ta this certificate have been accurately extracted from the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 3 1™ March 2020; and

ti. The computation of pre-amalgamation net worth is arithmetically correct and is in
accordance with the basis of computation set out in the Appendix-] to this certificate

The preparation of Appendix-1 mentioned above in compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and provision of the requisite information to us for the purpose of the certification is the responsibility
of the management of YPL, including the preparation and maintenance of all acconnting and other
relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of this Appendix-1
and applying an appropriate basis of preparation and presentation.

Our responsibility is to provide an assurance on whether:

i.  The amounts that from part of the pre-amalgamation net worth computation as mentioned in
Appendix-1 to this certificate have been accurately extracted from the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31* March 2020; and

ii. The computation of pre-amalgamation net worth is arithmeticaily correct and is in
accordance with the basis of computation set out in the Appendix-1 to this certificate

We conducted our examination of the statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes (revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Indita (ICAI). The said Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the
Code of Ethics issued by ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Controi
{8SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and other assurance and Related Services Engagements issued by ICAI




Based on our examination as above and according to the information and explanations and
representation given to us by the Company’s management, we confirm that:

i. The amounts in the Appendix-1 to this certificate that form part of the pre-amalgamation net worth
computation have been accurately extracted from the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company, for the year ended 31™ March 2020: and

i, the computation of pre-amalgamation net worth is arithmetically correct and is in accordance with
the basis of computation set out in the Appendix-1 to this certificate.

This certificate is addressed to and provided to the Company solely for the purpose of submission to
National Company Law Tribunal and other regulators along with the Draft Scheme of merger for its
approval and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other person or to any other person to
whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without prior consent in writing.

For C N K & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Noz 10196 thW -100036

Himanshu Kishnadwala -
Partner

Membership No.: 037391 ; \__/
UDIN: 20037391AAAAGA1314 '\%co““

Place; Mumbai
Dated: 19" September 2020

161
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UDINI! 20037391 A4 AAGA 1314
Appendix-1 ;
{To be read with Certificate no.'REF.‘CERTNI.PIM();l)
STATEMENT OF PRE-AMALGAMATION NET WORTH

A)  Net Worth of Yash Pakka Limited a3 at 31% March, 2020

Equity Share Capital 20 |

Reserves:

Capital Reserve 37.32

Securities Premium 1,172.15 §

neral Reserve §$m~':

hRetained Earnings ( including Other Comprehensive Incomse) _6, 379,52

Total (B) &m,
ENet—mr_@_ {A+B) 11,661.99
Notes:

1- For the purposes of preparation of aforesaid statement of pre-amalgamation Net worth, “Net
worth’ is calculated as defined under Section 2(57) of the Companies Act, 2013. “Net
worth™ moans the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserve created out of
the profits and securities premimm account, afier deducting the aggregste value of the
gccuniulaged Logses, deﬁwﬂm&m@mﬁ@mmmmﬂﬁ}ﬂ
per the mdited balance sheet, but does not include resqrves.crosied out of woaligions o™ -
assets, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation CE

2- Pre-amalgamation net worth as at 31™ March, 2020 has been determined on the-basis of :
Audited Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2020,

Your Faithfuliy,
for Yash Pakka Limited

vl had

Jignesh Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Place:Ayodhya
Date:19-09-2020

Farmarly Yash Papers Limitod

Registered Office: Fiat No. 202, SA/U72, Azad Negar, - *
Kanpur- 208002, (U.P}, incha
CIN: L24231P1981FLCO05254
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CNK & Associates LLP  fyeinqramses Sth Hoor M. G. Road, Vmgﬂe‘w‘xbﬂpﬁ- I8 c

Chartered Accountants Mistry Bhavan, 3rd Floor, Dinshaw Vachha Road, Ch -l. :
van, » & urchgate, M . ]
Tel.: +91.22-6623 0600 » Road, § urabei - 400 020

REF/CERT/VLP204/20.2)

To.

The Board of Directors,
Yash Pakka Limited
2" Floor, 24/57,
Birhana Road,

Kanpur - 208001

Sub: Certificate on Post-amalgamation net worth of Yash Pakka Limited

This certificate is issued m accordance with your email dated 18" September 2020, which requires us to
provide assurance on whether:

I, The amounts that from part of the post-amalgamation net worth computation as mentioned in
Appendix-1 to this certificate have been accurately extracted (rom the Audited Financial Statements
of Yash Pakka Limited (“YPL Transteree Company) and Yash Compostables Lamited {“YCL™/
Teaasferor Compaay'} for the vear ended 3™ March 2020: and

i, The computation of post-amalgamation net worth is arithmetically correct and is in accordance with
the basis of computation set out in the Appendix-1 to this certificate.

The preparation of Appendix-! mentioned above (which has been initialled by us for identification
purposes only). in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and provision of the requisite
informasion 10 us for the purpose of the certification is the responsibility of the management of YPL.
including the preparation and maintenance of ali accounting and other relevant supporting records and
documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of this Appendix-1 and applying an appropriate basis of
preparation and presentation.

Our responsibility is 1o provide an assurance on whether:

i, The amounts that from part of the post-amalgamation net worth computation as mentioned in
Appendix-1 to this certificate have been accurately extracted from the Audited Financial
Statements of Yash Pakka limited (“YPL™ Transferee Company) and Yash Compostables
Limited ("YCL"/ Transferor Company) for the year ended 3™ March 2020; and

ii.  The computation of post-amalgamation net worlh is arithmctically correct and is in accordance
will the basis of computation set out in the Appendix-1 to this certificate.

We conducted owr examination of the statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes (revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia
(ICAD. The said Guidance Noie requires that we comply witht the ethical requirements of the Code of
Ethics issued by HCAL
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We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1.
Quality Conwrol for Firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information. and other

assurance and Related Services Lngagements issued by [CAL

Baged on our examination as above and according to the information and explanations and representation

given to us by the Company’s management, we confirm that;

i.  The amounts that from part of the post-amalgamation net worth computation as mentioned in
Appendix-1 to this certificate have been accurately extracted from the Audited Financial
Statements of Yash Pakka Limited (*YPL" Transferee Company) and Yash Compostables

Limited Y UL/ Transteror Company) for the vear ended 31 March 2020: and

ii.  The computation of post-amalgamation net worth is arithmetically correct and is in dccordance

with the basis of computation set out in the Appendix-1 10 this certificate.

This certificate is addressed to and provided to 1the Company solely for the purpose ol submission to
National Company Law Tribunal and other regulators along with the Draft Scheme of merger for its
approval and should not be used by any other person ar for any other purpose. Accordinghy. we do not
accept ar assume any lisbility or any duty of care for any other person or to any other person to whaom this

certificate is shown or iito whose hands it may come without prior consent in writing.

For C N K & Associales 1L1LP
Chartered Accountants
Firnt’s Reg’sn'alion Ng.

Himanshu Kishnadwautd
Pariner
Membership No.: (137391 ]
UDIN: 20037391AAAAGIT524

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 23™ September, 2020
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STATEMENT OF POST *AM*LG&MA’F&GH NET WM’FH

Post Amalgama!mn Net ‘Worth of 'i’nsh l’tlkkl Lmﬁ!ed a3 ut 31“ Mareh. 2020

 Pavtieslaps. '
L qul‘_v Share (,a;pﬁtal .

i Wﬁ!ﬂ.ﬁ._-, e
Cavital Rejerve .

(55BN

_Scgurities Premiom e 1,172.15
General Roserve 35000 7
Retained Barnings, {including Other Compmhenswts lnccme:} L 637052 1
Towl . (B TR |
‘Nebwor Y —iseE]. -
Naves:

{, For the purposes of preparation of aforesaid statement of post-amalgaration Net worth, “Net
worth’ is calvulated g8 defined under Seption 2{57) of the Companies Act, 2013, “Net worth”
means the aggregate value of the paid-up shate capital and aff reserve oreatod out of the profits
and securities prertium acogunt, after.deducting:the. aggregale velue of the accurulitedt Loases, -
deferred expenditure and. miscelioncous expendifune not wiitten off. as per the audited: bajisce
sheat, bus does not include resarves. oroated ot of revaluations of assets, write-back of
depreciation and amalgamation.

2. Post-amalgamauion met worth as &t 3}’ March. 2020 hos been determined on the basis of
©Audited Financinl siplements of the Transferor £ Tronsferce Company prepared-in cofmpliance
with Accaunting Standards / Indisn Aocotnting Standards prescribed under section- 133 wihe
Companies Act. 261 3 respectively.

. Your Faithfulty.
i for Yush Pakkns Limited

e gV N

Jigneih Shah
Chtef Financimt Offieer

Place: Ayudhya
Date: 23" beptcmbcr, 2020

Formeshy Yash Papers Limite

‘Yash Pakka Lirited, Yash Nagar, Ayodbya 224135 (U P}, india
+91:5276- 27 | amm*t\d:yashwm G
www.yashpakks com
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Yash Compostables Limited ‘66
(Formerly Known as Yash Ecoenergy Limited)

ANNEXURE-ICA

ANNEXURE - IX

BRIEF DETAILS OF THE PROMOTER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YASH
COMPOSTABLES LIMITED (“TRANSFEROR COMPANY™)

A. List of Promoters of transferor Corﬁpany

Sr. | Name - PAN

No. _
1. | Mr. Ved Krishna _ , AJRPK1551C
2. | Mrs. Manjula Jhunjhunwala j ABSPJ4695H

B. List of Board of Directors of transferor Company

Sr. | Name DIN PAN
No. :
1. | Mr. Amit Sharma 07587504 AWMPS0346P
2. | Mr. Sumant Pai 08405547 AlZPP4464E
3. | Mr. Ved Krishna 00182260 AJRPK1551C
4. | Mrs. Kimberly Ann McArthur 05206436 BYEPM4617C
for Yash Compostables Limited
=
Sumant Pai
Director

DIN: 08405547

Date: 25/08/2020
Place: Ayodhya

Registerad OfMce : FUNO 202.3N172 Azod Nogos, CN:USIIMIM!
Knpa - 200002, UR India - E: conneci@yashcomposiables.com
Corporgle Office : C-2, Sector - 1, Noida, 201301 india P. +915278 208900, 208901

Werks Ofice: Yosh Nogar, Falzaobact - 224138 www.chukin
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DETAILS OF CAPITAL EVOLUTION OF YASH PAKKA LIMITED (“THE

ANNEXVRE- 168

167

ANNEXURE X

TRANSFEREE COMPANY™”):
Date  of | No. of [ lssue Type of Issue [ Cumulative Whether
Issue shares Price (IPO/FPO/ capital {(No of | listed, if not
issued {Rs.) Preferential shares) listed, give
Issue/ Scheme/ reasons
Bonus!/ Rights, thereof
etc.)
27.04.1981 7 100 | Subscriber of 7 Unlisted
Memorandum
17.06.1981 15,000 100 { Allotted to 15,007 Unlisted
promoters &
associates
06.07.1982 7,000 100 | Preferential 22,007 Unlisted
aliotment
24.12.1983 7,000 100 | Allotted to 29,007 Unlisted
_ promoters &
B ot associates
24.03.7084 2,000 100 | Various applicant 31,007 Unlisted
as per
requirement  of
financiai
institutions
28.01.1989 2,000 100 | Various 33,007 Unlisted
applicants’
30.03.1990 34,993 100 { Allotted to 68,000 Unlisted
promoters
20.12.1991 @6,80,000 10 | Subdivision  of 6,80,000 Unlisted
Face Value from
Rs. 100 per
share to Rs. 10
per share
20.12.1991 #30,000 10 | Allotted to 7,10,000 Unlisted
promoters
02.01.1992 *5,68,000 Nil | Bonus Issue in 12,78,000 Unlisted
: the ratio of 4.5
(Promoters and
associates)
=N

~E

Miagieg Diecty & CEO

Formerly Yash Papers

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), india

Limited

+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakia.com

www.yashpakka.com

Registened Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

Kanpur208002, {U.P.), India
CIN: L24231UP19681PLCO05204
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21.12.1992 25,87,500 10 | Initial Public Offer - 38,65,500 Listed
{IPQ) v

29.06.2005 | 1,68,00,000 10 | Further  Public 2,06,65,500 Listed

{Promoter) Offer (FPO)

&

04.08.2005

{Public)

31.03.2007 10,00,000 11 | Preferential Issue 2,16,65,500 Listed

24.03.2008 9,00,000 11 | Preferential Issue 2,25,65,500 Listed

16.09.2008 14,34,500 11 | Preferential Issue 2,40,00,000 Listed

24.05.2012 37,00,000 11 | Preferential Issue 2,77,00,000 Listed

31.03.2016 21,30,000 | 15 | Preferential lssue 2,98,30,000 Listed

23.04.2016 24 80,000 15 | Preferential Issue 3,23,10,000 Listed

21.07.2017 29,30,000 - 15 | Preferential Issue 35,24,00,000 Listed

@ One equity share of 100/- subdivided into 10 equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

# Issued as a result of conversion of 3000 preference share of 100/- each. These preference
shares were allotted on 04.11.1981. '

* Bonus issued in the ratio of 4:5.

r Yash Pakka Limited

agdeep %

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 07639849

Date: 25" September, 2020
Place: Ayodhya

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

vash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), India
+01-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com
www.yashpakka.com

|

Registered Offica: Figt No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

N
Kanpurzosodz.!- (U \ndia
CIN: L24231UP1981PLL 005294
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ANNEXURE XI
To,
The General Manager,
Department of Corporate Services,
BSE Limited,
P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai — 400 001.

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI: {Listing Obligations and

' Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed scheme of

merger by absorption of Yash Composbables Limited (“Transferor

Company”) by Yash Pakka Limited ("Transfehe Company”} and their
respective shareholders (‘the Scheme’)

In connection with the above application, we hereby confirm that:

a} The proposed scheme of merger by absorption to be presented to any Court or
Tribunal does not in any way violate or override or circumscribe the provisions of the
SEBI Act, 1992, the Securities Contracts (Reguiation) Act, 1956, securities contract
(Reguiations} Rules, 1957, RBI Act, The Depositories Act, 1996, the Companies Act,
1956 / Companies Act, 2013, the rules, regulations and guidelines made under
these Acts, the provisions as explained in Regulation 11 of the SEBI (Listing
obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the requirements
of SEBI circulars and BSE Limited. :

b} In the explanatory statement to be forwarded by the company to the shareholders

u/s 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, it shall disclose:

i) the pre and post-arrangement or amalgamation (expected) capital structure and
shareholding pattern and

i) the “faimess opinion” obtained from an Independent merchant banker on
valuation of assets / shares done by the valuer for the company and unlisted
company.

i) Information about unlisted companies involved in the scheme as per the format
provided for abridged prospectus of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if applicable:

iv) The Complaint report as per Annexure Il

v) The observation letter issued by the stock exchanges .

¢) The draft scheme of amalgamation/ arrangement together with ail documents
mentioned in Para I(A)(7)(a) of SEBI Circular no.CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated

For Yash Pakk\ i
Jagdeap
Managing Direcior &
Formerly Yash Papaers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.R), India Registered Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,

+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakda.com :mpfzrig:mgg& |naia94
www.yashpeakka.com : 0052.

¥




YASHPAKKA

Packaging with a Soul

March 10, 2017, has been disseminated on company’s website as per Website link
given hereunder: .yashpakka.com

d) The company shall disclose the observation letter of the stock exchange on its
website within 24 hours of receiving the same.

e) The company shall obtain shareholders’ approval by way of special resolution
passed through e-voting. Further, the company shall proceed with the draft scheme
only if the vote cast by the public shareholders in favor of the proposal is more than
the number of votes cast by public shareholders against it

f) The documents filed by the Company with the Exchange are same/ similar/ identical
in all respect, which have been filed by the Company with Registrar of
Companies/SEBI/Reserve Bank of India, wherever applicable.

g) There will be no alteration in the Share Capital of the unlisted transferor company
from the one given in the draft scheme of amalgamation/ arrangement.

h) None of the promoters or directors of the companies involved in the scheme is a
- fugitive economic offender,

Managing Director & CEQ
DIN: 07639849
Res. Add.-H. No. 1177,
Sector g,
Faridabad - 121006

Date: 25" September, 2020
Place: Ayodhya

Formerly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (UL.), india Registerad Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagoar,

- - 4. kka.com Kanpur208002, (U.P), India
mzyﬁnﬁ?&i,ﬁ”"“@”’"” CIN: £ 2423UP1981PLCO05294
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ANNEXURE- ga !
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Ofﬁce;215'Ka[panaP_|aza
241147-B, Birhana Road
Kanpur-208 001

E-mail : carajeevkapoor@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of Yash Compostables Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Yash Compostables Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
-~ notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other exptanatory information.

tn our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generaily accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and lossand its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements. that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under

~ the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’'s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the financial statements and ourauditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financialstatements does not cover the other information and we do
notexpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financialstatements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and,in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materiallyinconsistent with the financial statements or ourknowledge obtained in the



audit or otherwise appears to bematerially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed,we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this otherinformation,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothingto report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimales that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a frue and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. .

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualty
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

172
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disctosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern,

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013, and on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the company as we considered appropriate and according to information
and explanations given to us, we give in the "Annexure A’, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 197(16} of the Act, we report that the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
and limits laid down under Section 197 the Act.

3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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(b}

(c)

(d)

(€)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as of
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial pasition ~ Refer Note no. 25 to the financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term confracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

ii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008905C

- é‘"a r Z{/‘ Lo t B
Rajéev Kapoor
PARTNER
Membership No. 077827
UDIN: 20077827AAAACQB660

Place: NOIDA
Date: June 19, 2020
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date on the financial statements for
the financial year ended March 31, 2020 ofYash Compostables Limited)

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and also on the basis of such
checks as we considered appropriate, we state that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

including quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the
year, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of fixed assets. No discrepancies have been
noticed in respect of the assets physically verified during the year.

(c) The company does not own any immoveable property.

The inventories of the Company have been physically verified by the management
at regular interval during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable. As expiained to us, the discrepancies noticed on verification were not
material in relation to the operations of the Company.

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties listed in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

The company has not granted/made/given any loan, investment, guarantee, or
security where provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable. Hence,
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

In cur opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year within
the meaning of Section 73 to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
read with the Rules framed there under. Hence, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable.

Provisions for maintaining Cost Records pursuant to the Rules framed by the

Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of

Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company during

the year.

(a) According to the books and records produced and examined by us, the
Company is generally reguiar in depositing undisputed Statutory dues
including Income Tax, GST and other material statutory dues as applicable
with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amount payable in respect
of aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2020 for a period
of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues
of Income Tax andGST which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The company does not have any loan or borrowings from any financial institution,
bank, government or debenture holders during the year. Hence, paragraph 3({viii)
of the Order is not applicable.
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{ix} The company has not raised any maney by way of initia! public offer or further
public offer {including debt instruments) or term loan during the year.

(X) Based on the audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi} In our opinion, the managerial remuneration paid or provided by the company is in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

{xii} The company is not a “Nidhi Company”; hence paragraph 3{xii} the Order is not
applicable.

{xiii) In our opinion, transactions with the related parties are in compfiance with section
177 and 188 of Act where applicable and the details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

-~

(xiv) The company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence,
paragraph 3(xiv) the Order is not applicable.

{xv) In our opinion, the company has not entered into any hon-cash transactions with
directors or parsans connected with him. Hence, paragraph 3(xv} the Order is not
applicable.

(xvi) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under Section 45 A of
{he Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934,

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008905C
_. | : feps I A
-~ Ra{gev Kapoor un | in,
PARTNER NN e
Membership No. 077827 “3‘?&,,@0\\1\“?

UDIN: 20077827AAAACQB660

Place: NOIDA
Date: June 19, 2020




Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) of our report of even date on the financial statements for
the financial year ended March 31, 2020 ofYash Compostables Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Yash Compostabies Limited("the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date,

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential compenents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of india.

.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internai control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibiiity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financia! controls, hoth applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internat financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of materia) misstatement of the financiai statements, whether due to fraud or,

ervor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generalty
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain o the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements gue to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 008905C ‘__e:;-i-,\x{_i.{gé;;{;'{.;&h

Place: NOIDA &

Date: June 19, 2020 /éwl Lz t,
Rajeev Kapoor 'I
PARTNER

Membership No. 077827
UDIN: 20077827AAAACL8680
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YASII COMPOSTABLES LIMITED
(Toxmerly YASN ECOENERGY LIMITED)
(CIN: U445000P2004PLCO52991)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

T Particubnrs Nole As a1 315¢ March 2020 0
U . Ne. (Rupees) . (Rupeey)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareboiders' funds
(a) Share capital 2 5.00.000,00 5,00,00¢.00
(h} Swiplus 3 (1,29,94 611 .34) (1.12,80.461.52)
(c) Money received against share warcants - (1,24,94,611.34} - - §,07,80,461 52
2, Steure appiication money pending ailothent - - .
3. Mam-current liabilittes
{a} Long-team borfowangs - - -
(b} Deferred tax liabilities {nel) - -
(<) Cther long-term Jiabilities . - -
(d) Long-term provisions - - - - -
4. Carrent Liabllities
{n) Shott-tenu borrowings . .
(1) Yrade Fayables 4 3,86,1 1,994.50 3,65,09,480 41
L) Other curremt liabilities 5 1765942 12 36,59.428.14
(1 Short-tenn provisions G §L,12.71%.00 4,14,90,656.02 6,46,221 .00 4,08,15,13017
TOTA, TN o
1. ASSETS:
I. Nom Currenf Asses
(a} Propeity.Mant and Equiginen 7
() Tangible Aszets - 1,84,14497 1 2,81.768.57
(o) Witangible Assets - - “
(i) Capital work-in-progress - - -
1) hitangtible assets under development - 940404 56 35501555
{b) Non-current Iyestments - - -
{€) Pelerred tax ysars (net) ] 45,35.453 51 39.41,603.23
{d) Long Term Loan and Advances - - -
l¢) Other non-curtent assels ] 1,12,040.00 59,42 143,04 60,144.00 46.,38,(31.36
2. Curvent Assefs
() Cmrent Investinents - - -
(b} Inventories 10 8,61,770.00 148.003.00
{z) Vracke Receivable Il 2,00,56,742.70 2,04,52,152.84
{d) Cash aud Cash Equivalents 12 1795,19%9.71 21,58,286.6%
(e3 Short Tormt Logas and Advances 12 1,53,147.00 4,890,145 00
() Other cairent gesets 14 1,47,14223 2,30,54005.64 8,49.952.76 2,53,96,537.29
TOTAL Zﬂzgm.“ 3:00&*1'“8.65
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Sce accompanying notes (0 the finangjal Matements -
As per our report of even date For and on behall of gty Board of Directors

Tor Rajeev Prein & Associntes
Chertered Accoumrants

Kepoi Lo
R _’eevkarmr

Pasinec

M No 077827

IMace  Noida
Dated 1906 2020

9?‘: 07587304
i

0 .

< A

Sumank Psi
Pirector
DIN: 08405547
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YASI COMPOSTYABLES LIMYTED
{formerly YASH ECOENERGY LIMITED)
(CEN: U4DIDOUPZO14PLCO62985)

STATEMENT OF FROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCII, 2030

|30

Particular ] Note Year ended Yenr gnded
No. 31 March 2020 31st March 2019
R (Rupees) . {Reopees)
REVENWE
L. Revenue fromn operations 15 21,24 85417.22 FE,24 25077 08
. Other income 16 6,15,484.24 3,10,705.20
Iti, Total Revenme {1+ EH) 21.31,00.901.46 ll&?&&?n.ﬂ
v, EXFENSES
Parchases of ‘vaded Cioods 134283674.69 10,36,04,452.00
Decrease/(increase) in Faventorics of Finished 17 (5,13,770.00} (3,48,000.00)
Fmployee Beuelits Expeuse (8 1,22.69 52250 92,97,198.00
Finance Costs 19 3516,070.08 7,84.45333
Deprecintinn and Aniortisation Experse 7 1,50,053.60 2333333
Otlwx Expenses 20 1,57.07,981.19 1,54,06,528.15
Tota) Expences Jllﬁillllﬂll.ﬂi 12,77,67,965,01
Y. Drofit/(Loss} before sxceptionat and
extra ordinary jtemis and tax (I¥ - V) {23,08,000.10} {1,50,32,182.73}
V1. FExceplicnal items - -
VIl. Profit/(Loss) befare extra grdinary itewis gnd tax (V - Vi) (23,00,000.10} {1,%0,32,182.73)
vIIl. Extraordinary items Lo -
IX.  Profit/(Loss) before tax (VI1 - VIIT} (23,13,600.10) (1,5032,182.73)
X. TI'nx Expenses
- Civerent Tax - -
- Defened Tax (5,93,850.28) (3941 663.23)

XI.  Profiv(Loss) for 1he year/period fyom continuing vperations (IX - X}

XII.  Pofit/(Loss) from discontinuing aperstions

XML Tax expenge of dlsconthnuing aperntions

(17,14,149.82}

X1V, Profitf(Loss) from discondinuing operations (after (ax) {X11 - XI1) -

XV, Profit/{Loss} Fer the year/period (X1 + XIV)

XVIL. Earning per Equity Share
(Face value of Rs 10 &ach)
Basic & Dihed

Significant Accounting Policies

21

1

(17,14,149.82)

(34.28)

The accnmpanying noles forrn an integral part of these financiat statements

-

As por our report of even date
Tar Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountangs

K:?; iy l ‘{;H""

ljeov Kapoor
Partner
M No 077827

Place Noida
S2. Pated: 19.06.2020

-

For and on Melm Bonrd of Directors

Y 7
i Stmant Pai
Director
DIN: 07587504 DIN: 08405547

~

{1,10,90,579 50)

{1,10,90,579.30)
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YASH COMPOSTABLES LIMITED
{foruierly YASN ECOENERGY LIMITED)
(CIN: U40100UF2014PLC062981)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE. YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Partlculars Year ended Year ended
st March 2020 st March 2019
= (Rupses} (R
CASIH FLCW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profiti(Loss) before Tax {23,08,000.1Q) (1,50,32,182.73)
Adjusunets for;
Depreciation/amortisation 50,053 60 2333111 N
Inferest lncome {4.76.226.00) {2,77060.63)
Finance Cost 35,i6,070.08 T,84,45333
Fiofit on Sale of Jixed Assels ($,275.00)
- 31,28.622.68 - 5,30,726.03
Operating Profil before Working Capital changes 8.80,622.58 (1,45,01.456.70)
Adjustment [or -
Inventories (5.13,770.00) (3,48,000.00)
Trade and Other Receivables 2393.21867 (2,27,90,250.60)
‘Trade Payable and Other Liabilities 6,75,525.85 4,07,66,602.17
- 35,54.974.52 - 1,76,28.351.57
Cash gencraled from pperations 14 35597.10 31.26,8%4.87
Interest Received 4,76,226.00 2,77,060.63
NEF CASH TROM OPERATING ACTEVITIES 39,11,523.10 34,03,955.50
CASIL FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purctinse of Fixed Aseets (Includiug CWIT) 18,16,944 O {6,59,217.46)
Snle of Fixed Assets X 10,000.00 -
Onher Non Curremt Apdets {51,896.00) 60,144.00)
NET CASH USED IM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (8,55,840.00) {7,19,861.46)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTEIVITIES
Incerest Pard (35,16,070.08) (7,84,453.33)
Incrense/(Decrease} in Short Term Botrowangs - -
Proceeds of Share Capilal issued - -
NET CASH {1JSED INYFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 35.[6.3 !608 (7,34,45333)
MNET INCREASEADFCREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {4,63,086,98) 18,99,640.71
CASIFAND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Upening Balance) 22,53,286.69 3,59,645.98
CASH AND CASM EQUIYALENTS (Closing Balance) 17,95,199.71 21,59,286.69
{See Note No. 12 far delaits)
- 0.00 0.0
Siguificant Acconnting Policies i
As pey ows report of even date For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors v

For Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chanered Accountants

}ds w e
R r Kapoor

Pariner
M. No (77827

DIN: 97587504

Place . Noida
Dated: 19.06.2020

Swasnt Pa)
Director
DIN: 08405547

P,
4‘? o

18




y 182

YASH COMPOSTABLES 1IMITED
Notes (o financial siatements for the year ended 31at March, 2020

The company having Corporate Identity Number (CIN) U4D100UR2014PLCO6298L was incorporaled vide Certificate of Imcorporsiion 1seved by the
Regiatrar of Companles Uttar Pradesh (ROC-UP) ou 27.02.2014, Certificate for Commencement o' Business was Isswed by ROC-UP an 21.03.2014.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation of Financiel Statements
‘Lhe Minancial siatements are prepared undes the hislorical cost convention on acceual basis of g in i with the applicable A ting Standarl
penerally accepted accounting principles {CAAP) i Indin and the selevaut provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013,

1.2 tlae of Estlinates
The preparation of fi ial s in conformity with Endian GAAF requires gement to make sstimates and puions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and 1he discl of contingent liabilies an the date of financial statemets and the reparted of and exp during the
reported persod Difference belween actual results and estunales are recognized wn fhe period in which the results are known/ malexialised.

1.3 Property,Flant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipeent are stated ot their cost of acquisition or construction as the case may be ahd including all related acquisition / installsti and
hnnnwnm cost as per Acmtmlmg Swandard (AS) 16 Subsidy received on Property, Plen & Bquipment ts ctedlted to the cost of respective Pmperry Plam &
Fq Cost 50 | is adj d for {ated depreciation / amostization and pravision for mpawment.

1.4 Dreprecintion
' Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on ‘Straight Line Method® on the basis of useful Life specified in schedule (1 te the panies Act, 2013. Fixed ssssts

costng, below Rs.5 000/~ are fully depeeciated w 1he year of eddition. Deprecimtion is pravided on pro-raie basis with reference to the date of addition/detetion in
respect of addilon Infdeietion from fixed assels.

—
A

Tmpairment of mssets

The conmpany psseases al cach Balance Sheet date, whether there is any indication that an esset may be inpaired. Jf any such indication exiats, the company

Ihe “vecaverable amount' of asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset o¢ the eecoverable amount of The cash generating unit to which The azset belongs is loss than
(he “carving amount”, the carrying amount 5 recuced Lo its recoverable mnount. If al the Balance Sheet date there i an indication thet a previously assessed /
i ed losa o longer exists, the recoverable amount is ceassessed and the a3set is reflected at recoverable amoum.

.6 lovestments
Investnents are stated at cost. A provision for diminution is made if in the opinion of the 8 the diminurion in vatue is other than temporary.

1.7 Provisions, Contingent Liabililies ami Contingeat Assets
Provisions are recognised in respect of obligations where, based on the evid ilable, their exi al the Balance Sheel date s considered probable.
Contingert 1isbilines are disclosed by way of hotes on accounts i respect of obigations where, based on the evidence available, their existence ot the Balance Sheet
date is considered not probable. Contingent asscts are nad recognised in The accounts,

1.8 Revenue Recognltion
Sales are recognised on despaich of goods 1o s. Salca are exclusive of GST and are disclosed net of trade di Other and are
veeognised on nocrual basis.

1.9 Rmrrowing Cost
Barrowing costs thet are ativil to the acquisition/ ion of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that
requires a substantial pesiod of time 10 g3t ready for its mlaxled use. All ofher b ing costs are [ d a3 an expense it the year in which they Are incurred.

Ny

Ci

1.4¢ Taxntion
Piovision for Incame 'Tax 15 made afier considering the various deductionsibenefits admissible uner the lncome Tax Act, 1961. [n accordance with AS 22
“Accounting Toe Taxes on lncome’, (he company has recosmsed Deimed Tax ansmg ot of timing differences between taxable income and aecounting Kcame and

z

quantified the same vsing the 1ax rates and laws or ively d as on the Batance Shee: date

111 Ivior period items, if maleriad, are disclosed separalely.

. Cash flow statemest has been prepared as per "Tndirect Method™ specified in AS<3 on Cash Fiow Statement.

) Y
"
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YASH COMPOSTARLES LIMITED
Nates to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Particulars As at 319t March 2020 )
( Rupees ) (Rupees )
2. SHARE CAPITAL
Authariged
30,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- zach 3,00,000.00 5,00,000.00
Isswed and Subscribed
50,000 Lquily Shares of Rs.10/- gach $,00,600.00 5.00,0{”.00
Fully Faid-Up
50,000 Eguity Shares of Rs. {0/~ each fully paid-up 3,00,000.00 5,00,000.00
Tatal 3,00,000.00 5,00,000.00
11 Reconcitiation of the shares ding st the beginntng and at the end of the year:
Equity shares As st 314 March 2020 Avat 3Lt March 2019
No. of shares (Rupees) No. of shares (Rupees)
Owstanding at the begining of the year/penod 50,000 ) 5,00,000 00 56,000 3,00,000.00
Sheves subscsibed dusing the year/period - - - -
Outstanding a1 the end of the year/period 50,000 $,00,000 50,000 3 00,000.00

2.2 Lerm/righty nttached (o equity shares

The company has only one chass of equaly shares baving a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equily shares is enticied to one vote pee shire. The compary

declares and pays dividends in ndian rupess. The dividend proposed by tlw Board of Directors is subjoct to (e approval of the shareholders w1 the ensuing Annual
General Meeting

In the event of liguidation of the company, the hotders of equity shares witl be emilled to recaive remaining assers etrhe company, ater distribution of alf preferentiat
amounts. The distribution will be in proporiion 10 the number of equity shares held by the sharsholders.

23 Bonus Sharex/Shares for consideration other than cagh isued & Buy Back of
shares during preceding five years: Not Applicalde Not Applicable

24 Shares held by holdiug/ullimate holding company snd/or their
subsidlarles/nssocintes: NIL NIL

.5 Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shaves in the company

As at Jlat March 2020 As at st March 2019
Name of the Share Holder Na. of % held No. of % kel
Shares Shares
Mr. Ved Krishna 49400 93.{3’2% 49,400 9B 80°%
o, & ot

-, s




YASH COMPQSTARBLES LIMITED

Notes to 11

tak statements for the year emded 314t March, 2020

Parfitcolars

Asatd arch 2020

(Rupsas)

9
( Rupees )

3

4

n

=

" v

)

.

¥

i

SURPLUS

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balaice as pex |ast Account
Profit / (Loss} for the yeat/period

(£,12.80,461.52)
(17,14,148.82
(1,29.94,61t.34)

).ess Appropriations 11,29.94,611,34}

Tatal

!1.19,94,6“.34!
Trade T'ayable
Tatal pulstarding dues of MSME
~ourstanding due 1,78.200.00

-outsianding overdue
Total outstanding ducs otiver than MSME

3,84.33.794.90

3,86,11,934.90

ther Current Linbilities

Olher Liabilities -

Advance fiom Cuslomer 4,56,424 .78
FDS Payasble 1,22,330.00
Salary Payable 9,20,507,00
GST Payable 1,20,319.34
Incentive md TA Bill payable 1,46,311°00

Interest payabte on delayed payment -YPL

17,65,942.12

Stort Term Provision

Audit Fee payable 15,000
Sitting f'ec payable 11,000
Py ovision For Expenses - 10,26, 719.00

11,12,719.00
Totsl

11,89,882 02}

(1,10,90,579.30

(1,12,80,461.52)

!l,lléﬂ,‘ﬂ.”!

€1.12,80,461.52)

63,722

3,64,45,758

—_———a e

3&“)9#80.43

12,29,964
59537
4,40,595
1,01,656.00
4,25,994.00
1,02,682.00
36,99'12174

-

6,46,221.00

5,46,221.00




YASH COMPOSTABLES LIMITED :-
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

7 Propertv Plant and Equipment {Amount in Rupees)
As per Companies Act 2613
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
S. Description Useful Asal Additions Sales/ As at Upto For the Deduction/ Upto As at As at
No.  jof Assets Life (Y)| 31.03.2019 discarded | 31.03.2020 |31.03.2019 year Adjustment | 31.03.2020 | 310.03.2020 | 31.03.2019
Tangible
A 10ffice Equipment (19%) 5 41,990.00 63,6035.00 10,000 97,5935 .OOr 1,906 | 18,082.62 1,275 18,713.95 78,881.05 40,084
B |Computer Hardware (31.67%) f 3 2,62,711.90} 1.,63,200.00 4,25,911.90 20,427 ) 1.23,416.31 - 1,44.843.31 2.81,068.59] 2,41,285
C  Fumiture & Fixture 10 - 14,750 14,750.00 - 7,886.64 7,886.64 6,865.36 -
D |Sealing Machine 15 - 18,000 18.000.00 - 668.03 668.03 17,331.97 -
Sub total 3,04,701.90 | 2,61,555.00; 10,000.00| 5,56,256.90} 23,333.33{ 1,50,053.60 1,275.00 1,72,111.93 3,84,144.97| 2,81,368.57
Intangible
C_[CWIP 3,55,016 | 5,55,38%.00 . 9,10,404.56 - - - - 9,10,404.56]  3,55.016
Total 6,59,717 | 8,16,944.00 10,000 | 14,66,661.46 23,333 | 1,50,053.60 1,275 | 1,72,111.93] 1294,549.53| 6,36,384
As per Income Tax -
Anpexure A
Depreciation as per L. Tax Rules for the Financial Year 2019-20
WDV as on Addition Sale Total Deprecation WDV ason
Particulars Rate 1-Apr-19 | >180days [ <180 days Forthe year|  31-Mar-20]
t Office Equipment 15% 38,341 65,605 10,000 94,446 14,166.90 80,279
2 Computers 40% 201,170 1,63.200 3,64.370 1,45,748.00 218,622
3 Fumniture and Fixture 10% 0 7,750 7.000 14,750 1,125.00 13,625
4 Sealing Machine 15% 0 18,000 18,000 2,700.00 15,300
Total 2,54,555 7,000 10,000 4,91,566 1,63,740 327826

2,40,011

a4

DI
QL
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YASH COMPOSTABLES LIMITED :-
Notes to financiat statements for the year ended 31 Masch 2020

Note 8
Deferred Tax as on 31.3.2020

As per As per Tax Deferred Tax

Books [. Tax Diff. Rate Assets Liability
WDV of Depreciable Fixed Asset 3,84,145 3,27,826 56,319 26.00% - 14,642.91
Already Provided in the Books s - 8.413.16
Provision for Deferred Tax to be done - 6,229.75

Carry Forward Deferred Tax Liability

Tax Deferred Tax
During the year Diff. Rate Assets Liability
Carry forward loss -23,08,000 -23,08,000 26.00% 6,00,080.03 -
Already Provided in the Books 39,50,016.39 -
Provision for Deferred Tax to be done 6,00,080.03 -

Carry Forward Deferred Tax Assets

Net Deferred Tax

14,642.91

45,50,096.42

45,35,453.51

5,93,850

?Q/""
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9 Oher Nan-Current Assets

Scpurity Repogit
91 Springboard Busiess Hub Pvt. Lid, 92,040.00 50,144 00
Skyline Financial Services P Lid. £0,000.00 -
National Security Depository Limited 10,000.00 10,000.00
1,12,040.00 60,144.00
10 Inventory
Finished Goods 861,770.00 3,48,000.0¢

56] 770,00 3,43,000.00

11 Trade Receivable
Considered good(Secwed) -

Considercd goad(Unsecured) ’ 2,00,56,742.70 2,14,52,152.84
Which heve significant increase (n credit zisk - -
Credit inpared -

2‘M£6|742.7u 2,14,52,152.34

12 CASIL AND CASH EQUEVALENTS
Balance with Bank

State Bank of India 4,60,36] .29 19.02,631.2)
Axis Bank Limited 13,24.151 42 -
BDFC Bank Luniied - 336,13t.48
Cash on Hand 1,187.00 19,524 .00
l'odal "’.95:199.71 12 36.69
- 13 SHORY TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Advance to Employees - 725700
Advance (o Vendors 1.93,147.00 4,70,838.00
 i9ien00 4,88,145.00
14 Other Current Assels .
GST Receivable i 2,25,695.60
Prepaid Expenscs 1,08,724 00 1,29,817.00
Other current asset - 4,94 4d40.16
TS Reccivable 6,705.00 -
tsurance paid for Marine Policy __3insas _
Total 3‘ 7|1‘2.23 §,49,952.76
15 Bevenye from operations
Sales of Moulded Praducts 231,23.24,387.72 12,51,12,745.00
1.295:SKU Disconnt 51,82,769.00 53.07.60967
Less; Offer Discoum 1,35,79,293.00
Less: Partners Margin 10,76,908.50
Less:aarget Incentive - 13,80,058.25
e 21,24,85,417.22 11 5,077.08
16 Other [ncome ..
Camamssian on Export Sale 1,34,09(.00 .
Inswrantce Recovered - ¥3.644.57
Cuareney Exchaoge Diff. 1,892.24
Interest an Qverdoe 4,76,226.00 2,77,060.63
Profil on Sale of Fixed Assels 127500 -
- 6,15,484.24 3;10,705.20
17 Chaogpgs jn loventory
Opening stock
-Fuushed Goods 3.48,000.(x) -
Closing stock
-Finished Goods $.61,770.00 3.48,000.0¢
513‘770.00 3'43|000.00

o 2er




88

YASH COMPOSTABLES LIMITED
Notes to #f Inl stateiments for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Pariliculars Year ended Year ended
Alst March 2020 3191 Mareh 2019
{ Rupees ) { Rupees )
14 Employees Bemeflt zxpenses
Director Retnuneration 13,990,561 .00 26,67,266.00
Staff welfare 168,015.00 T3,167.00
Satacy __1.07.06,345.00 $5,56,765.00
1,22,64,922.00 32,97.198.00
19 Finence Cast
Baik Charges 937108 3,695.13
Interest Paid Others 1,280.00
Inlerest Against Defayed Fayment -YPL 35,05,419.00 7,80,758.00
35,1 61070.08 ?l84|453.33
20 Oiher Expenses
Advestisemmem 63,744.00 2,76,426,00
Auwditor’s Remnuneration (refer Note No. 20.1} 75,000.00 75,000.00
Auditar's Expenses 18,508.00 -
Balance Wriiten-off 12039.70 -
Bosrd Meeting Expenses 64.,695.00 -
Broks and Periodicals 3.904.00 -
Brand & Ssrategy Charges 2,47,500.00 -
B Develoy Exp 2,70,228.14 -
Business Promotion Expenses 8,46,844.00 20.717,513.95
Cash Discount 5,19,194.60 98.994.68
Commission Paid 7.110,50 9,410.00
Consultancy Charges 30,000.00 21,319.9713.12
Design Service Charges 25,52,025.00 -
Tair and Exhibition 2,39,377.00 -
Fee & Charges 22,069.48 16,850.00
Failng Fee - £,300.00
Freight on Sale 94077300 35,22,120 00
Incentives 8,93,794.00 1,86,953.00
Jisurance on Putchase 192,97
Leual Expenses 3.600.00 £.100.00
Member Ship Fee - 1,31,R01 00
Olfice Fxpenses 12,000.00 1,600,00
Ouientation & Partisers Mect 53661700 -
Renl, Rales & Taxes Charges 8,13,329.38 48345400
Repair & Monenance 5,145.00
Packing Charges 6,66.021.62
Poxlage and Courier 3,12,469.68 17,960.90
Pontiug and Stationery 59.585.00 92,101 00
Prior Period Expenses 1.32,862.00 N
Public Relation Expenses 3,00,385 00 o -
Reeritment Cherges 2,69,988.00 2,52,685,00
Computer Software - 18,000 00
Insiranze On Sale - 31,271 .00
Misc Expenses 381600 B70.00
Rouwnd OFF 42.00 1.66
Relainetship Fee -~ - 4,%3 60000
Samphisy Expeiises 21,954 42 76,264.92
Siting Fee 1,20,000.00 -
Digital Advertisement Social Media Chages 24.16,273.83 -
Software License fee & Subsoription 223 ,429.00 -
Telephone Expenses 21,773.82 1.177.00
Travellng expenses _ 27,91,860.05 34,10,699.12
Total 1,57,07,951.1% 1,54,06,528.3%
20.1 Payment to avditor
Audit Iees 75,000.00 75.000.00
Olher Professional Charge - -
Qut of Pucket Experses 18.508.90
93150&00 15,0000
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YASH COMFPOSTABLES LAMITED
_Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315t Macch, 2020

Particulars Year ended Year ended
A1st March 2020 31st March 2019
[Rupees ) { Rupees )
21 Earnings per share {(EPS)
ProfitX Loss) after tax (17.14,14%9.82) ¢$,10,90,$79.50)
Mumber of equily shares for the purpose of
calculatinn of Basic & Diluted EPS ' 50,000 50,000
Nominal vatue of equily shares (Rs ) 10.00 ’ 1000
EPS- Basic and diluted (Rs.) (34.23) {221 B1)
22 a) CiF Value of Import NIL NIL
b} BExpanditure in foreign currency NIL NIL
©) Remittance in Foreign Currency on account of Dividend NIL NIL
d) Esming in Foreign Exchange- FOB Value of Expost NIL NIL

23 The celated penty disclosure in accordance with AS 38 'Reloted Party Disclosures”, is given below.

Particulars . Amount Amount

Key Manageriat Personncl and their relatives (Remuneration) (Rupeey } { Rupees )

Mt Anuj Kumar Mohto, Director (Key Management Persnninel) - 26,41,555.00

Mr. Sumani Pai, Birector { Key Manesgement Personnel) 13,90,56¢ 00 23,7100
- Mt Amnit Shanna, Execytive Dieecior { Key Management Personnei) 5,15,561.00

Enterprise where the majority shareholder has subsigntial interesl:
{Yash Pakka Liemted-Transactions)

Purchase (Nel ol Discowr/Incentives) 17,92,09,800.00 10.36,00,315.00

Rewd Paid 24&1)0.00 14,000.00

Interest on Delayed Payment 35,05,419.00 7,80,758.00

Comimission on Expost Sale - 1.34,09¢ 00

Sale of Moulded Products - 67,440.00

(Yash Pakka Limited-Balances)

Balance on Purchase (Cr Balanee) 3,83,24,067.22 3,64,45.758 00

Dalmics on Reimnb af exp (Dr Balence) - 4,94.440,16
24 Capital and olher commitments

. Eti  vakoe of remaining to be ted

v capiial account {ael of ndvances} NIL NiL

b. Ollier Cammitinents et NIL

25 Cantingent linbilities
Claim against (he company nol acknowledged as debt NIL NIL. .

26 Disclosure in lorins of AS-29

Fhere is no Contingent Liabilities as disclosed in Note no. 25 sbove as such no provision is required to be made. No provision was ding a5 al the begi
at 1lig end of the persod v
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YASH COMPOSTABLES LIMITED
Notes to i ial stat: ts for the year eaded 31 March 2020

27 Compliance of accounting standards has been made (@ the exient applicable ta the compay on the basis of ions or operations of the y dusing the yesr,

P

28 In the opinion of the Board snd to the best of their knowledge and belief, the provision for all knovwn JigbH#ties is adequate and nol in excess of gniount considered as
reasonably necessary.

29 The conpany hes requested coafiomation from Suppliers regarding 1heir ion (filing of Meinorandum) under the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises
Nevelopment Act, 2406 (the MSMED Acl). According tor the information available with the company, the following disclesures has been made in respect of dves to
Micro and Small Enlerprises.

Rapess)
Patticulas 2019-20 20)8-19
(n] Praipal amount and milerer duie thers on remoining unpaid (0 am: supphier st tho cnd ol the seae
Principal Amounl 178,200 63,122
Higa Digital S«t. Lid.
-outstandimg dut 1,78200 63,122
-outstanding overdue Nil Nit
Inlcrest due on above NIL HNIL
(b) Aot of inkerest pail by the company it terms of section 16 of the MSMED Acl, slong with the amoum of Lhe payment made lo the
supplier beyond ke appointed dey during the vesr NIL N
1c1 Ainovm o interest due and paywble for the period of delay in moking payment {which have beew paid but beyond dwe sppoinied dsy during the
vearh bt withoul adding (he nkersa specificd wndier the MSMED Act N NEL
(d} the mnount of inlerest accived and remaming ingsaid o lhie end of the ycor NiL NiL
1e} the omount of ferther increst ranaining due end pavable even in tlie succeeding years, umil tuch dme whea the inlerest dues sbove are
acunlly paid 0 the sl emerprise, kv the purpose of disaliowance of & deducttirie expendiuce under seciion 23 of the MSMED Act NIL NIL
30 Deferred Tax assets
on aceonnt of !
Business 1.oss 45,50,096.42 39,50,016.3¢
Tatal delemred tax asscts 45,50,096.42 139,50,016.39
Delerved Tax liability
s aecemint of
(iber timing Differerces ) 14,642 91 B.413.16
Total defersed tax liabilily 14,642.91 8412.16
Nct Delcimed Tax asset 45,35453.51 39,41,603.23

3

Narme of (he company Bias been changsd from Yash B gy Limited to Yash Compnsmbles Limited vide certificate of mcorporation pursuani to change of aame
dated July D3, 2018 issued by lhe Registrae of Conpanies {ROC) Kanpur.

32 The Bnard has considered and ppproved the proposal of merger by absorption of the conipany with Yash Pakks Limited ( CIN
L2423111PI1981PLC005294) im its menting held on 6th May, 2020,

33 Figures far the previous year figures have been reclassified f regrouped wherever required.

-

As per our report of even date For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors ()
4

Far Rajeev Prem & Associnles
DV
s

Chantered Accounlants
» y Lyf Y
it Sharma Sumant Pai
jeey

Kapaot ilive Director Director
Poriner N; 07587504 DIN- 08405547
M. No. 077327
Place Notda

Daled 19.06.2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF YASH PAKKA LIMITED (Formerly known as “Yash Papers
Limited")

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Yash Pakka Limited [Formerly known as
“Yash Papers Limited”] (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2020,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as * Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2020, the net profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our andit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Anditing
{SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

On account of ours as well as the Company’s inability to conduct a physical verification as on 31"
March, 2020 owing to the lockdown restrictions imposed by the Government, we have relied on
alternate audit procedures and details as provided by the management to obtain comfort over the
existence and condition of inventory at the year end.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance ir
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context

of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Equipment (PPE)

The Company has assessed the items of
PPE for indications of impairment by
assessing the recoverable amount of PPE
by estimating its value in use vis-3-vis its
fair value less cost of disposal. Based on
the said assessment, the management has
concluded that there ts no impairment as
at 31¥ March, 2020.

Refer Note 2 to the financial statements

Sr' [ Key Audit Matter - * | Anditor’s Response
.U S DS
1. | Impairment of Property, Plant and | Principal Audit Procedures

Our Audit approach included in the following:
*  Assessing design and implementation of key
controls for the impairment review process;

¢ Reviewing the key assumptions used in the
forecasts and assessing the accuracy to
determine the value in use and the fair value
less cost disposal as required under Ind AS
36 ‘Impairment of Non-financial Assets’.

2. | Evaluation of uncertain fax positions
and other litigations

The Company has several litigations
which also include matters under dispute
which involves significant management
judgement and estimates on the possible
outcome of the litigations and consequent
provisioning thereof or disclosure as
contingent liabilities.

Refer Note 40 to the financial statements.

Principal Audit Progedures

Our audit approach for the above consists of the

following audit procedures:

» Evaluation and testing of the design of
internal controls followed by the Company
relating to litigations and open tax positions
for direct and indirect taxes and process
followed to decide provisioning or disclosure
as Contingent Liabilities;

» Discussed with Company's legal team and
taxation team for sufficient understanding of
on-going and potential legal matters
impacting the Company.

»  We involved our internal team to evaluate
the management's underlying judgements
in making their estimates with regard to such
matters.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information . included in Director’s Report including Annexures, Management
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Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance Report and Shareholder’s Information, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Siatements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error;

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so;

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whele
are free from material misstatersent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an suditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due o
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgety, intentional omissions, misrspresentations, or the override
of internal control;

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
conirols;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and refated disclosures made by management;

s Conchude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concemn;

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statewnents that, individuaily or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in ¢valuating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit;

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards; <
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, fo the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far ag it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive incoms),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2G14;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors gs on 31® March, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and
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() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements — Refer Note 41 io the Financial Statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts
for which there were any material foresccable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For C N K & Associates LLP
Chastered Accountants

i ,\_;'_';,a\
MUMBAS s
il

Himanshu Kishnadwala’ L3
Partner %;,, (t@j/
Membership No.037391 T AT

UDIN: 20037391AAAACVSE158

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20™ June, 2020
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in Para 1| ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the Financial Statements for
the year ended 31% March, 2020.

L

1.

VL

VIL

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Fixed Assets;

(b} As informed to us, the process of physical verification of fixed assets undertaken by the
Company could not be completed in view of the lockdown imposed by the Government.
The management has however, assured that no material discrepancies would be noticed on
such verification which would be completed in the subsequent year,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us
and based on the examination of the confirmations from the banks provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties which are freehold, are
held in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date;

As per the information and explanations given to us, and read along-with our comments in
Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the main report, ‘physical verification of inventory has been
conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such physical verification;

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, and limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 139 of the
Act. Accordingly, para 3(iii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under section 185. The Company has neither made any investments nor given any loans,
guarantees or provided security to the parties covered under section 186;

The Company has not accepted any deposits du.ring the year and therefore, the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 ar any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed thereunder are applicable;

As informed to us, the Company is 10t required to maintain cost records that have been specified
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of Companies Act, 2013;

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, , income-tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), custom duty,
cess and other statutory dues and there are no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as at
31® March, 2020, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by

us, the statutory dues not deposited on account of disputes pending before appropriate
authorities are as under:
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VIIL

IX.

XL

XIIL.

XL

XV,

Name of | Natare of Dues | Awmount Amount | Period to | Forum from
Statute Demanded paid in which where the
(Rs. In dispate the dispuate is
lakhs) (Bs.In amount pending
lakhs) relates
UP VAT | Tax ou purchase 164.03 - | 2009-10 | Additional
Act, of Paddy Husk Commissioner
2008 Non-submission 203 2.03 | 2012-13 { (Appeals),
of statutory 6.69 2.70 | 2014-15 | Grade - 2
forms 3.17 1.52 ] 2015-16 | Commercial
1.42 0.72 | 2016-17 | Tax, Ayodhya,
Disaliowance of 3.92 1.57 1 2013-14 | Uttar Pradesh
Input Tax Credit
Entry Tax 0.68 0.68 [ 2013-14
Incorrect  Input 1.88 0.94 | 2016-17
Tax Credit 9.12 4.56
Claimed
Input Tax Credit 0.25 0.25 1 2017-18
mismatch 9.43 4.66 | 2015-16

Based on our audit procedure and according to the information and explanation given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to
financial institutions or banks or Government. The Company has not issued any debentures;

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer or further public offer including debt
instruments. In our opinion the term loans issued during the year have been applied for the
purpose for which they were raised;

During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither came across any incidence of
fraud on or by the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor we have been informed of
any such case by the management;

Ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to s, the Company has
paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions
related to Nidhi Company are not applicable;

It our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as requirsd by the applicabie accounting standards;

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placemerit of shares or
tully or partly convertible debgntures during the year;

GO
AN
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XV,

XVi

139

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with them. Hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable;

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For C N K & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101961 W/W-100036
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Membership No.037391 L)

UDIN: 20037391 AAAACV8158

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20" June, 2020




ANNEXURE “B” TQO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of 31™
March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finauncial Controls

The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lustitute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financia)l information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controfs over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
‘Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the company were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ali material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the company and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
iransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
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with genesally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and
{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,

use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error ot fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an intemal financia! contvols with reference to financial
statements of the Company and such intemnal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31% March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controf stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
ICAL

For C N K & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 161961 W/W-160036

: Tk
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e B 0 4 \.‘,

Himanshu Kishnadwala AT

Partner L

Membership No.037391

UDIN: 20037391 AAAACVE1SS

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20® June, 2020
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YASH PAKKA 1 IMITED

{Fermerly Kpown as Yash l’apers'l.imiwdj
Blance sheet ne o€ 315t March, 2020

[Particutars — T KoteNo: | AS at.31st March, 2020 .. Asats
1. ASSETS
Noy<turrent agsets
{at Propocty, plant und equipment 2 1667823 16,720.75
() Capial work-1n-progress 3 46105 0,76
(i Other inlangible assets 4 3804 60.97
) Fivainesal assets
{1 Investmens 5 3.10 0.12
(¥ IDer nan currcar asses 3 24180 33093
Tuta) now currend iusets 17.396.27 17,173.54
Current Azsets
tatinventories ? 5.605.24 7,078.63
(b Financial assets
10 Trade neoevadles 8 1,773.88 £,549.81
i) Casiv gt cash squivalenis g 2867 13.15
(1> Band; batances vther Uhan {11) above 10 378.80 32756
{iv} 1)ther financial asscls t) 16928 1571
1 Cui rzak . 285es(net) \2 - 8595
() Other ¢urent asyets 13 $50.14 568.74
‘I'nigl curreat assefs 8,506.01 9,881.55
TOTAL ASSETS 25,902.28 27,0550 |
1L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{)) Equity
(3) Cajuity shore capitat 14 3,524.00 3,524.00
(bt Other eaquity (5 §,138.99 5,846.43
Fotw Equity 11,661,99 $,370.43
Llabilities
(2) Non curvent liabilitivs
tat Financial lighilihes
i) BBorcowings 16A 427216 5.865.43
) prelersad rx abiities (nsy) 17 985 06 52378
() Other non curnat liabilitiey 18 1.350.51 3 .365.40
Tutal nen carvent liabitities 6,607.73 7,156.01
(3) Carrent liabiiities
(3 Linancial linbwtilies
() Burrasvings 6B 3.819.54 4351915
L1} Trade pavahles 19
(A) Towl vutstanding ducs of Small Enterpeises and Micze
wMetprses 254.64 27634
(33 Torgl onttanding ks 0f crediors odher than small
eCrpEses AM MICEL enterprises 592.5% 1.035.83
L) Uidier Nimaweal dnkalities 20 1,967 ¢1 1,783.970¢
b1 Other currsm hahikities 21 648.25 2.080.76
(L) ITuvisions 2 33863 232.80
“Total currenl lialilities 763156 9,928.05
Tetallinhilities 14&59,29 17,684.66
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 25,902.28 2705809
Sigailicant Accounting Policies i
Ste accompanying noees fcom 2 1o 46 forming part bf the laancial statements
A r our attached report of oven date For il uf the Bemd \r ]
Fur C N K & Associates L] Jagdeep Hiva
Chartered Aceounants Maneging Direcior & CEQ

Furm Rerwstrativo No. WIYG I W W I00036

Himstshn Kishnudwaks
Partier

Mcnibership No 37391
PPlage: Mumbz

Date: 201 fung 2020

Date. 20th Junc 2020

vchala

Jignesh Sheh

Chief Finaacinl GiYicer
Place; Mumbai

Date: 20th June 2020

DIN: 07639849
Place: Avodhya
Date: 20th June 2020

in Kumar Syivastavn
Company Secretary
I'tace. Ayndhya
Date: 20 une 2020
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formerly Known as Yash Papers Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the ycar esded 3tst March, 2020
Particulars
I Reverue from opcmioﬁs . 23 25,238.68 25,025.5%
1. Lther income 24 871.82 517.56
111, Total Income _26,110.50 _25543.15 |
TV, Espenses
Cosr of matereals coasumexd 2% 10,1 75.01 10,980.41
Purchese of stocksinvivade 3.25 12.20
(Changes in inventories of fimshed goods, work-in-progress and stock-in- 26 (58.47) 146.48
Hrade
Emploves benetils expenacs 27 266706 241909
Finance costs 2 1,261 .40 1,682.31
Dlepreciation and amortization expenses P 97595 37046
Other expenses 30 7.833.46 6249.11
‘Totul Expenscs (JV) 22,156.86 23,060.06
¥ Profit before Tax (111 - I'V) 3.955.84 2,433.09
V1. Tax expense: 3
I. Currem eax 685.13 34]1.59
2 Deferred tax 477.53 (131.58)
3. Tax adjustments relating to eorlior yours 29.35 2.10
¥11. Profit for the peried (V - YT) 2,761.83 2,070.98]
V1L Other cymprehensive income -
(3) Jtems that will not be reclasssfied 1o profit of loss
|Renwasurements of the delined benetit plans {62.69) (9.93)]
(11} Lncome (ax rolated 10 items thut will nut be reclassified to profit of loss 18.26 {2.90)
{44.43) (IZ-HJ
1X. Totat casprehensive income for the period (YIE - VIIE) 2.717.4_9' 2,058.10
X. Earaings per equity shure 32
1 Hasw 7.84 5,88'
2. iluted 7.84 513
~Signimﬂm Accounung Policies {
Sec accvmpaaying nolcs from 2 w 46 fosming part of the financial statements
As et vor atached ceort of even date For and oo beials’ of the Board \
r!Tor C N K& Associates LLP Jagdecp Hina
Chacersd Accountants Managing Director & CEO
Firm Registration No.: 1013961 W/WIE00036 DIN: 07639849
i Pface: Ayodhya Place: Ayodhya
- Date: 20th Junes, 2020 Daze: 20th June, 2020
Himunshw Kishnadwala : Jignesh Shah Sachio Kumar Srivastava
Partner . Chief Financia! Oi¥icer Company Secretary
Membesship No.. 37391 Flace: Mumbai Place: Ayodhya
Place: Mumbai Date; 20th June, 2020 Daig: 20th June, 2020
_Datc'. 20th Jww, 2020
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YASH PARKA LIMITED
{Foemerly Kunawa as Yash Papecs Lignited)

A. Lguity share capal
PR,

Sizien eut of Changes in Equity for 1e year ended J1st Abarch. 2020

Ra 1t lakhs

Brlance a1 on 136 Aprit, 2018
Addiions durmg the yesr
|Balmnce 43 on J1s¢ March, 305
Addtions ducing the yeu
Balmce as on Izt March, 2020

B, Xber cquity {Ra. in Jakhs)

Pardedlard | Othéc Eqeity i “Total egnity

Lo KesmndSurplth ’ Oﬂul’eomllﬂ?lﬂm - .
. N L Jliceme.

N s«:nrmu Relaiwed Earaings OMﬂ!lllif-ﬁhar
Balzoce ason (st April, 2018 !J72.l$ 412386 (42.90) {643,
Addions dunng Lhe year - - - - {44.43) (443
Profie for the yex - - . 2,76183 - 276183
Divdaxd Pud for the year ended Jiw - - - €424 84) - {424 34))
Mareh; 240 Hnelud EWTWL 1 WA k H
Balsnce usan 31t March, 2000 3132 1.472.0% 480.00 [ X1 -] 186.33)| [ XEES]

: t
%alarm.- on 1 April, 018

D2 20 th June , 2020

Dxe: 20 th June , 2000

Jignmsh Shah

Chial Fiaancin OFficer
Pince Mumbai

Dats: 20th hune | 2020

Dae 26t Juoe , 2020

Sechirs Kum s Srivastavs

t Addr v duciog bhe year - - - (12.38Y —t+2.84)
Profir fox the year ——— - 2907098 - 207098}
Balarnce ason Iint Mawek, 20153 nn 1,172.15 55800 412886 (31.90) 582643 |
Refe Nete |5 far nature and puposs of ceserved .
Sipnticant Accounting Policiens Refer note | -

See acospanying notes from 2o 46 formng psrt of the Gnancisl stateranvy ‘
Az pie ourattechied report of even date For Aul on behalf of the Boped
For C N K & Amodiaies LLP ved K
Chuterad Aceoumtants ExecoivelVi iman anpng Ihmmr CEQ
Firnt Registration Ngy: 16196 1 W/V 100036 DIN: 0| DIN: 07639348
Place Ayodiya Plice: Ayudhya
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YASU PARKA LIMITED
(Farenerly x0own o3 YA Papers Lisdted)
Statetremt of C'ash Flows for 1he year ended 31at Minrth, 2020

Larficulars

A, CASHL ELOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Ner Pryfit before tnx 3548334 24%2.08
Adjustrocets fur s
Depectiabon and amortizaton 975.9% 3T0.44
Ly (pevlis) sh s3e of property, plnat and equipaant 33 14.94
nferestconse [TErsH] (8247}
Tusunce cost 1.260.29 L5017
Rememturemeat of et delined Genefit plans (62.69) 9.9
el patn e s> on fordagn exchinge Huciuhon - 3ot
Nl [uant v 0sE On i pmEs neagured 3t piy Value through Profit and Logs 23 (G.O7}
Oyeraling profil belore working capsial ¢hanges 139404 435812
Chatges vy working copitul;
Addfrrsteent fior M in oy ing owels
{lacrease) devicase in ionele teceivables (234.02) (79.56)
1A NUEEE i WR1OMNas AN ¥ 203.73
{inceeasal’ docieass |1 odr nancial assets (U5 3] (64.08)
{mgneasel decredst in ofher disctx - 15018 754
\astement fus i 4 ) in operating tickititicr
Increase! (feereaset fu Lracke pavables (464.59) (403.43)
litcngzue. 1d w niver d abili 13474 a3t
lac.asse! [deciease) sn odier f1abilities 41036.95) 695,90
BiS rease (deErease) in PVISIINK 115,83 043
Cash genr raied lrvim operadicos 689089 S49%.08
e laes wdwaniled / |pad), na {584, L6) {6049.59)
Nei cash genernted from operating netivilies 550644 £,080.4¢
B, CASH FLOW FROM (NYESLING ACTIVITIES
Perciraye of property, plact a1d egqu i ble assats Gncluding capital work i {1.704,83), (1.955.26)]
proysess and capul advance)
Broceeds fram sale of propecty. st and cquipaiont 75 m5
sneer ¢3¢ reCeed 13721 5247
Uil bank buluncis yarargin suoney) (51.24] (8239
Net cush (used i/ 3 lrom g mervith (Ls13.83)f €1,542.47)]
CLCASI FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Ingrease (cevseased in lonp-lerm barrowings {1,593 I7) 1§,29273)
laeresse? (decsense) in shost-1erm borowings (699 01) (655 §b))

Issusuwe of wymiey shotes
Proviiim on Secuaty
Muoner axeivid ABNNEE v rant

- .00
Fusae: cunts paid {1.16029)] WADIATY
Denvatives - (7507
Dwisd Bant tacluding dividend taxs for the year endud 3 kst March, 2019 {424.34)) -

Net ¢ash asesl i fimapring oo tivities (A0 54831
INCREASL 7 | DECILEASR} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2382 $.99)
{2k 1o Lasih pguivaiems i e beginnow of the year 1354 1974

___Cash st crh | i the end of G yooe (rofer mate 4(c)) 2347 1315

Noip: ’

Roronciorion delveed 1 ush and cath equivalents and eash pat baak balances:

Cash and cash equivnlars ng pér Gash Slow siate mest 5.67 13.05 |
Aad Man g moaey teposits not considored as cash 3d cash equivalents 3N 1274
Cash and bank balaneer AT A7 34011

Notes ta (I S1awinert of cash Aow and dioclovers o7 oer cash tranyatises

in Farted of the Cish Flow Statement. igwoes in bracrers mdicatw deductons mida from the Nod Profit for denivias te nm cazh Now from operas sy acliviass. In
Pact-ld mad ParnC, Nigures m brackers widicads caah oanflows.

Siguilivant Accauntiog Policies (Refer Note )
Sae accanmpanving iple from 2 o 46 formin; of the Anaseial Matna

AL peraw anached relire o even date Far o behall of the Board

Jugdeen B
For UMK & Seasines WAP

Managing Di ETEQ
Chantered Atapuntigits DIN. 97639849
Fitas Regaoution N, 10196 1WAVI000, Place Ayodhya

inwash Kishaadwals

Partien

Nenibeishig Nu. 37301 Jgnosh Shui Kumar Srivaataya
Chie Fanmricel Ofticer Cunpany Secretnry

Mace aurba Place: Murbs Fuge : Ayodhya

{ Pue 20 fune, 2020 . Date: 2thn Sune, 020 Date: 206 Ty, 2020




YASH PAKKA LIMITED (Formerly known as “YASH PAPERS LIMITED”)

Notes ferming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2020

Corporate Information

Yash Pakka Limited (Formerly known as “Yash Papers Limited™} (“YPL" or “the Company”) was
founded in-1981. The Company is listed on BSE Limited. The Company is mainly engaged in the
business of manufacture and dealing in Paper and Moulded products. The principal place of business
of the Company is in Ayodhya, Uttar Pradesh, India.

L1

Basis of Preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS™) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Stendards) Rules,
2015; and the other relevant provisions of the Act as amended.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

The company’s presentation and functional currency is Indian rupees. All amounts in these
financial statements, except per share amounts and unless as stated otherwise, have been
rounded off to two decimal places and have been presented in lakhs.

Authorization of Financial Statements:
The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors in its meeting held on 20® June, 2020.

Histerical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
. Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value,

. Defined benefit plans where plan assets measured at fair value.

Use of Judgment and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management
to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the accounts and teported amounts
of income and expenses during the year. The management believes that the estimates used in
the preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonabie. The said estimates are based
on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but
provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant techniques for estimation
are described in the accounting policies below. Critical accounting judgments and the key
sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying the Compeny’s accounting policies arise in
relation to property, plant and equipment, impairment of assets, current asset provisions,
deferred tax, retirement benefits and provisions,

Information about significant areas of estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are
as below:

s Impairment of Financial Assets — Refer note 1.2.14;

» . Impainnent of Non-Financial Assets — Refer note 1.2.3;

. Estimates of useful lives and residual vatue of Property, Plant and Equipment and
[ntangible assets — Refer note 1,2.} and 1.2.2¢




i.2.

102'1'

Valuation of Inventories — Refer note 1.2.5;

Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations and actuarial assumptions — Refer note
1.2.7;

Provisions and Contingencies — Refer note 1.2.11;

Estimation of current tax expense and tax payable — Refer note 1.2.17.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current/non-current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Division 1 to Schedule [1I of the Companies
Act, 2013,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of mssets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the
normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of
its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item.

The cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price nct of any trade discounts and rebates,
any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently| recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure including brokerage and start-up costs on
making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental lexpenses and interest on

borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying assets up to the date the asset is ready for its
intended use.

When significant parts of PPE are required to be replaced at intervais, company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives.

An item of PPE is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each

financial year end and changes if any are accounted in line with revisions to accounting
estimates. :

Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE is provided as per straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013,
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PPE costing less than Rs. 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of capitalization.

Depreciation on additions/deductions to PPE made during the year is provided on a pro-rata
basis from / up to the date of such additions /deductions, as the case may be.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of impairment {osses, if any. Cost comprises of
the cost of items of PPE not yet commissioned, incidental pre-operative expenses and
borrowing costs,

1.2.2. Intangible Axsets
Intangible assets are carried at cost net of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Amortization
The above is amortized over a period of 5 years on Straight Line Basis.

1.2.3. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assety are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverabie amount is higher of the assets or Cash-Generating
Units (CGUs) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely indepsndent of those from other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

1.2.4. Leases
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee

(A} Lease Liability
At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date, The lease payments shail be discounted
using incremental borrowing rate,

(B) Right-of-use assets
[nitially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives.

Subsequent measnrement

(A) Lease Liability
Company measure the lease liability by (a) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and () remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment ar lease modifications.
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1.2.85.

1.2.6.

(B) Right-of-use assets .
Subsequently measured at cost less accurmulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the under lying asset.

Short term lease:

Short term lcase is that, at the commencement date, has a lease tenm of 12 months or less. A
Jease that contains a purchase option is not a short-term lease. 1f the company elected to apply
short term lease, the lessee shall recognise the lease payments associated with those leases as an
expense on either a straight-line basis over the leasc term or another systematic basis. The

lessee shall appiy another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of
the lessee’s benefit.

As a lessor

Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially alf the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified ag a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Lease income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis over the
lease term.

Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rufes, has notified Ind AS {16 Leases which repiaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17
leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors, It introduces a
single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning 1st April,
2019 and applied the standard prospectively to its leases.

Inventories
Cost includes all charges in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,
including octrot and other levies, transit insurance and receiving charges and excluding rebates

and discounts, if any. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business.

inventories other than Scrap are valued at lower of cost and net realized value.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an asnount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expécts ta be entitled in exchange for those goods or

services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

The specific recognition criteria described below are also to be met before revenue is
recognized.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the

. customes. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers below, if any:
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)] Variable consideration
This inctudes bonus, incentives, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of each reporting
period.

(i} Contract modifications

These are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts invelves
assessing whether the goods or services added to the existing contract are distinct and
whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Goods or services added that are
not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct
are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional goods or
services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract
and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Sale of Goods
Customers obtain control of the goode when the goods are delivered to and have been accepted
at their premises. Invoices are generated at that point in time. Invoices are usually payable
within 21- 30 days. Sale of goods are net of returns, allowances, trade discounts, cash discounts
and volume rebates. Export sales are recognized on the issuance of Bill of Lading/ Airway bill
by the carrier.

Income from Export incentives

Income from expott incentives such as duty drawback are recorded on accruai basis in
accordance with the terms of the respective schemes. Policy for other export benefits is as
stated in Note 1. 2.10 below.

Dividend income
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the same is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

[asurance Claims
insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted

and to the extent that the amount recoverabie can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to
expect ultimate collection.

Other Income

Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain
in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis.

Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized during the period when
the employes renders the services, These benefits include compensated absences such as
paid annual leave, and performance incentives.
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Retirement benefit costs
The Company has both defined-conuibution and defined-benefit plans, of which some
have assets in special funds or securities. The plans are financed by the Company,

Long term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to ocour within twelve months after the
end of the pericd in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a
Tiability at the present value of the definedt benefit obligation determined actuarially by
using Projected Unit Credit Method at the balance sheot date.

Defined-contribution plans

These are plans in which the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds snd
does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums. These comprise of
contributions to the employees’ provident fund and superannuation fund. The Company’s
payments to the defined-conttibution plans are reported as expenses during the period in
which the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

Defined-benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at cach
balance sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable} and the returet on plan assets (excluding net
interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they ocour, Remeasurement
recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained carnings
and is not reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognized as an
expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognized, whichever is earlier. The
service cost, net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net
expense within employment cost. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the
balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by
the fair value plan assets.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which accrue to employees and which can be carried to future
periods but are expected to be encashed or availed in twelve months immediately
following the year end are reported as cxpenses during the year in which the employees
perform the services that the benefit covers and the liabilities are reported at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits after deducting amounts already paid. Where there
are restrictions on availment of encashment of such accrued benefit or where the
availment or encashment is otherwise not expected to wholly occur in the next twelve
months, the liability on account of the benefit is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

1.2.8. Expenditure on Research aud Development

Expenditure on research of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that
of capital nature is capitalized as PPE.

1.2.9. Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective exchange rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange
rates prevailing on the reporting date.
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1.2.10.

1.2.11.

Exchange differences arigsing on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss either as profit or loss on foreign currency transaction and
translation or as borrowing costs to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs.

Non — Monetary items
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Government Grants
Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
reccived and afl attached conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized in Statemnent of Profit and Loss on
a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Gavernment grants relating to PPE are presented as deferred income and are credited to the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and raticnal basis over the useful life of the
asset.

The export incentives received by the Company such as duty draw back, Merchandise Export
from India Scheme (MEIS) and Export Promotions on Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme are
treated as government grants.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required 1o seitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation, Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost,

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by
future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or present obligations where it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Information on contingent liability is disclosed
in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is
probable. However, when the realization of iricome is virtually certain, then the related asset
is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognized as an asset,

1.2.12. Fair Value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer « liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measwement date. The fair value
measurement js based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
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« In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
# In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be
accessed by the Company for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest,

The Compeny uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs.

All assets and fiabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
ligbilities -

¢ Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

s Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initiaily at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or less, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
1o purchase or seli the asset.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective
financial assets. Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset, the Company classifies financial

assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive
incoine or fair value through profit and loss.

Debt instruments at amortized cost
Debt instruments such as trade end other receivables, security deposits and loans given are
measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

»  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual ¢cash flows, and

+ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solsly
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
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After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premiuwm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss.

Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FYTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

¢  The asset’s contractugl cash flows represent SPP1.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at

each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instruments at Fair value through Profit-or Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments excluding investrnents in subsidiary and
associate companies. Any debt instrument, which does not meat the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, foreign
exchange gain and losses, impairment {osses and other net gains and losses are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, YPL
decides to classify the same either as at FVTOC!I or FVTPL. YPL makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Profit or loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet)
when

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in fult without material defay to a
third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

The Company has transferred substantialiy all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatly all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instraments
measured at FYOCI) and equity instruments {measured at FYTPL) are recognized in the
Staternent of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses in respect of debt instruments measured at
FYOCI and that are accumulated in QCI are reclassified to profit or 1oss on de-recognition.
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1.2.14.

L.2.15.

Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FVOC] that are recognized and
accumulated in OCI are not reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

Impairment of financizl assets
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

z) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.
b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

In case of other assets (listed as a) above), the company determines if there has been &
significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit
tisk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is
measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank averdrafis, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or Joss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are
satisfied, For liabilities designated as FYTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within

cquity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortized cost such as loans and borrowings
are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition,
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilitics are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR ameortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and foss.

Derecognition :

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
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liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commodity price risk and
exposure on account of fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes being
recognized in Stetement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken through
profit and loss.

Borrowings .

Botrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured ai amortized cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in Profit or loss over the period of
the borrowing using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or afl of the facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
drawdown occurs.

The borrowings are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to anather party and the
consideration paid including amy noncash asset transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in profit or oss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability of at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is
breach of a material provision of a Jong-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the Jiability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the
reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for issue, not to demand
payment as a consequence of the breach.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
standalone balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptey of the company, or the counterparty.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized during the period of time that is required for the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity Incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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1.2,17.

1.2.18.

1.2,19,

Taxes on Income

Current and Deferred Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax
rates and provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the camrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computetion of
taxable profit and are accounted for using the liability method, Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxeble temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and
allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be availabie against
which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Current and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognized in reserves are recognized in
reserves and not in the Statement of Profif and Loss.

Unused tax credit

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an
asset if there is convincing cvidence that the Company will pay normal income tax,
Accordingly, MAT is recognized as a deferred tax asset in the Balance Sheet when it is
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the
post-1ax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the
profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted
tfor dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any atiributable taxes)
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares
would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations, Potential dilutive
oquity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have
been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the
outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented. The number of equity shares and potentiaily dilutive equity shares are
adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate,

Cash and Cash equivaients

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, deposit held at call with finarcial institution, other short term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank Overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in Balance
sheet, '
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1.2.20.

1.2.21.

1.2.22.

Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the internal reporting provided to

the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for
atlocating resources and assessing performance of the Company.

Dividend
Final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders

and Interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s
Board of Directors.
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

3. Lovestments

o Parfeulars

lnvestments at fair volue through profit and loss
Investnent i Ay 2 ily-pai

Aggregate amonnt of unguoted investments
Agprepate amount of impairment in value of investments

560 (P.Y.: 5003 equity shares of Rs. 2/- ¢ach of AMJ Land Holdings Limited 0.08 0.09
100 (P.Y.: 100) equity shares of Rs. 10/ cach of Rana Mohendra Papers 6.60 0.00
timited

106 (P.Y.: 100) equity shares of Rs. 10/- cach of Mukerian Papers Limited 0.01 0.01
23 {P.Y.: 25) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of Shre¢ Rama Newsprint & 0.01 0.02
Papers Limited

Total .10 .12
Aggregate amount of quoted investments nnd market vatue thereof 0.10 0.12

6, Other nou current asscts

Particurs

Capital Advance (Refer note 42)
Security Deposits

Deferred Revenue from EPCG licenses
Oibers {Reter note 41)

Total

7. lnve_nyories

. Perteulars . o
At lower of cosi and net realizable valie
Raw Matzrials 2,878.22 4,131.30
Waork in Progress 39.40 44.83
Finished Goods 986.11 943.69
Traded goods 7.17 598
Pulp 27.08 4.60
Store and Spares 1,660.75 1,928.66
Scrap 6.51 19.57
| Tetal 5,605.24 7,078.63
(i) The mode of valuation of inventory has been stated in Note 1.2.5
(i) lnventories have been pledged as security for borrowings (Refer note £6)
{iii} There has been no write down of inventories recognised as an expense during the year,
8. Trade receivables {Rs.

" Particalars.

Considered good - secured .

1,696.55

lll:kbl)

Considered good - unsecured* 1,457.46
With significant increase in credil risk 131.96 13196
Credit impaired - -
Less: Loss allowance {54.63) (39.61)
Tatal 1,773.88 1,549.81 |

* inctudes Rs. 463.59 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 409.01 lakhs) receivable from related parties. (Refer note 34).
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formerly Jmown as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the finuncial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

8.1 Following are the detiils for the trade reccivablkes whose ¢redit risk has been assessed individaally

(Rs. In lakhg)T
Particulars As at Asat
23t Morch, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Assessed credit risk on an individual basis 131.96 131.96
Less: Luss ajlowante on above (37.82) (26.54)
Total 94.14 10542

8.2 The average credil period for collection is 21 - 30 days.

Refer Notee 35 () & (b) for information about eredit risk and market risk of trade receivables.

9. Cash and ¢ash equivalents

(Rs. In lakhx}

Particulars Asat As at
31 st March 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Balanees with Banks in cucrant accounts 0.55 1.28
Cash in hand 28.12 11.87
Total _28.67 13.15
10. Bank balsnees other than cash and cash equivaients (Rs. In Inkhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 st March 2020 | 3ist March, 2019
Unpaid dividend accoant 7.07 -
Margin muncy deposiis {restricted, hetd as lien against bank guarantves) 371.73 327.56
Tutal 378.80 327.56
L1, Other financial assets - current {Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
31 st March 2020 | 3ist March, 2019
Ineerest acerued but not due® 5.36 12.64
Export incentives receivable 148.79 138.62
MERS licenses in hand 15.13 6.45
Total 169.28 157.71
12. Current tax assets (net) (Rs. In akhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 st March 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Taxes paid in advance {net of provision) - 85.95
- 85-95
L3. Other current aysets (Rs. In lakhs)}
Particulars As at As at
31 8¢ March 2020 | 319t Murch 2019
Advances te vendors 159.42 82.11
indirect Taxes recoverable 26391 45.79
Qthers (Refer note 44 ) 147.11 540.84
[ Total 550.14 668.74




YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Formerly Xnown as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming pars of the finuncial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2020

14. Xquity share capllll
Particnlars ' :

Authorised equity share capital
Equity shares
5,60,00.008 (P.Y. : 5,60.00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Preterence shares
400,000 (P.Y. : 4,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 100/~ sach

Totnl

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares
3.52.40.000 (P.Y. . 3.52.40,000) Equity shares of Rs. |0/- each

5.,600.00 5,600.00

400.00 400.00
6,000.0C 6,000.00
3,524 00 3,524.00

{1} Movements in equity share tae
Particalars :

Opening Balapce
Issued during the year
Closing BaJance

sz 40,000' '

3.52,40.

" 3,52,40,000

3.52.40,000 |

(i) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.

i the event of liquidalion of the company, the holders of cquity shares will be entitled to reccive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution wifl be in propertion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

iii) Details of shareholders I_mlding more than 5% slum in the company:

Name of the Shnreholder

Ved Krisha 1,10,09.950 1,10,09.950
% of Share 31.24% 31.24%

Satori Global Limited 33,34,500 33,34,500
% of Share| 9.46% 9.46%

tiv) For the period of 5 years immedistely preceding the date as at which the Balance sheet is prepared:
{a) No shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to the cantracts without payments being revised in cash

{b) No bonus shares have been ailotted
{¢) No shares have been brught back

= 0[\/ ‘,;‘;:
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Formerly Known 8s Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

15. Other equity

Capital Reserve

223

Securities Premium 1,L172.15 1,172.1%
General Reserve 550.00 550.00
Retained Eamnings 6,465 85 4,128.86
| Other Comprenensive Income -86.33 -41.90
Total 8,138.99 5.846.43 |

‘Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 37.32 3732
Add: transferred during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 37.32 37.32
Securities Premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,172,15 LI172.15
‘Add: transferred during the year -

‘Balance at the end of the year 1,172.18 1,172.18
General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 550.00 550.00
Add: transferred during the year - -
Balance af the end of the year 550.00 550.00
Retaired Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,128.86 2,057.88
Add: Profit for the year 2,761.83 2,070.98
Less: Dividend paid 352.40 -
Less: Dividend Tax paid 72.44 -
Balance at the end of the year 6,465.85 4,128.86
Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year -41,90 -29.02
Add: Profit for the year -44 43 ~-12.88
Balance at the end of the year -86.33 -41.90

15.2 Nature and Purpose of Reserves

Capital Reserve: Capital reserve includes the amount remained towards the forfeiture of equity and preferential warrants. This reserve

will be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Securities Premium: Sccurities premium reserve is on account of premium on issue of shares. This reserve will be utilized in

accordance with the provisions of the Act.

General Reserve: It has been created out of profits of carlier years.

Retained Earnings: Retained eamings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers to general reserve,

dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

Other Compreheasive Income: This includes actuarial gains/ (losses) on employee benefit obligations.
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED

{Formerly Known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of (be financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

15.3. Proposed Dividend on equity shares not rvecognised

Parﬁtulurg

Final [Dividend for the year ended Re. 1 per share (P.Y. Re. 1) . 35240 35240
Dividend distribution tax on above - 7244
Total 352.40 424.34

224

As proposed by the Board of Diirectors, the same Is subject to approval by sharcholders at the ensuing anauaf general meeting of the

Company.

16. Borrowings

{A) Long term berrowings (Rs. lg lakds)
Particulars {

Secured

Term loans from banks 374747 5,366.47
Unsecured

From related parties (Refer note 34) 524.69 498.96
Total 4,272.16 5.865.43 |

(B) Short term berrewings

4,519.15

Particulars

Secared

Working capital Joans from banks 31,819.54
Totai 3,819.54

4,519.15




YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formerly Kaown as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

16.1. Repayment terms:

4) Sccured rupee term loans from banks: Structured Quarterly Installments.

b} Loan from Pradeshiya Industrial & Investment Carporation of UP Limited (PICUP): Bullet repayment at the end of tenure of
lpan

c} Loan from related parties: Repayable after bank secured term loan is repaid

d) Scheduled repayments: Coniractual repayments in case of foans from banks:

Particulars

Within one year

Between one o five years®

Over five years®

*The above excludes 1nd AS adjustments

2.22126]]

e) Interest rates: Loans availed from banks carry interest rate ranging from 10.15% 1o 11.75%.
Refer note 35(b) (11} & (Efl) on Interest rate risk and Liguidity Risk respectively,

f) Security detxils:-

Term Loans from Banks are secured by

i. First pari-passu charge by hypothecation of all Immovable Properties and property, plant and equipment both present and future of
the company. [including equitable smortgage of land property & building]

ii. Second pari passu charge on entire current assets {present and future} of the company with 2nd charge over entire property, plant aund
equipment [present and future] of the company ceded to working capital bankers/ fenders (including Letters of Credit and Letters of
Guarantees).

iii. Personal guarantee of Promoter Dircstors of the company

iv. Corporate guasantee of Yash Agro Products Limited and Satori Global Limited,

v. 100% pledge of promoter’s sharcholding in the Company in favour of the lenders.

[7. Deferred tax liahiitles (net)

Particulars
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability .
On difterence betwezn book balance and tax balance of PPE 2.234.50 2,136.21
‘Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabikity 2,254.59 2,136.21
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision on employee benefits 101.52 67.79
Carried torward depreciation and business loss - (16.99)]
Unused tax credit (MAT) 1.043.57 1,368.45
Interest to bank 97.49 160.98
Others 26.86 30.20 |
Tax efiect of items constituting deferred tnx assets 1,269.44 1,610.43
Total 985.06 525.78
18. Other non current habilities (R3. In lakhs)
Particalars T R
Deierred Revenuc:
Capital Subsidy 40.00 44.00
Government loan under PICUP scheme (Reler note 16.1.b) 277.76 32761
EPCG abligation 1,032.75 903.79
Total 1,350.51 _1,36540
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Furmierly Known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

19. Trade Pavables _

Particulars
Trade pnyaﬁles:
= Dues o micro and staall enterprises (Refer note below) 254,64 276.34
- Other than micro and smal! enterprises 592.59 1,035.83
Total $47.23 1,312.17
(9.1 Disclasure under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium enferprises development (MSMED Act, 2006)
{Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid
Interest due and unpaid on the above amount
Interest paid by U Company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and|
Medivm enterprises Act, 2006

Payment made eyond the appointed day during the year

[nterest due and payable for the period of dejay

Interast acceved and remaining unpaid

Amount of fuither interest remaining due and payable

it

The above is based on the intimation received from its vendors regarding the status under Micro, Small and Medium cnmrpriml
development (MSMED Act. 2006). except as staied above. The above information ts based on the information compiied by the;

Company and relied upon by the auditors.

20, Other financial linbilities

Particulars

Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,668.31 1,477.73
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings® 29.35 28.35
Security deposits from customers 270.25 277.09
Total 1,967.91 1,783.17
*Incudes Interest payable to related party Rs 4.73 lakhs (P.Y 28.35) is paid at | 0% p.a. Refer note 34,

21. Other current liabilities {Rs. In izkhs)
Particulars S ot

Current maturities on deferred revenue on capital subsidy 4,00 4,00
Advaace from customers 170.26 1,317.07
Statutory liabilities 13338 5299
Payable on capital goods (Rejer note 44) 74.48 52940
Unpaid dividend FY 18-19 1.07 -
Taxes paid (Net of taxes paid in advance) 44.37 -
Others 214.69 177.30
Total 648.25 2,080.76

“\
of MuMBA) [0
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Formerly Known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial stntements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

22. Provisions
Particulars

Provision for Gratuity

Provision Jor Leave Encashment
Provision for Bonus

Total




YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming pari of the financial statements for the year

23. Revenue {rom gperations

ended 315t March, 2020

Particolars

- Ma

Sale of Products
Paper, Pulp and refated products

Within India 18,881.67 19,241.67
Qutside India 4,432,78 4,112.44
Maoulded Products

Within Indfa* 1,814.93 1,628.85
Outside lndia £09.30 42.62
Total 2523868 _25,025.59

*Refer note 34 for sales to Related parties

24. Other income

Particalars

[nierest ceceived on fixed deposit and others

137.23 32.47
Cxport incentives® 179.36 3i6.19
Balances writien back 446,40 -
[nvestinents measured at FYTPL - ¢.07
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment L.44 0.28
Excess provision for expenscs writien bavk 5.00 -
Net loss on foreign currency transiation - 20.63
Miscellancous income 102.39 97.92
Total 871.82 517.56
* Rs. Nit (PY. Rs. |11.80 lakhs) has been been regeived against the fulfillment of export obligation under EPCG
scheme.
25. Cost of materials consumed _.(Rs. 1n lakhs)
Particulars o ’ E
Raw matersial constrmexd 6,301.74 6,764.02
Chemicals consumed 2.212.29 2,382.14
Stores & spares consumed 1,127.14 1,285.85
Packing materials consumed 533.84 548.40
Total 10,175.0¢ 10,980.41

‘\:,k M ABAS
hG2 N
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 335t March, 2020

26. Changes

in mvmtories of fmshed ggmds, stukrin-trade and worln-il- ragress

Particulars

Opening Stock

Finished Goaods 943.69 1,041.37
Pulp 4.60 S.62
Work in Progress 44.33 92.61
Tetal Opening Stock 993.12 1,139.60
Closing Stock

Finished Goods 986.11 843.69
Pulp 27.08 4.60
Work in Progress 39.40 44.83
Totat Closing Stock 1,052.59 993.12
Total {5947 146,48

27. Employee benefit meﬂm ——

I_:_: lakhs)

Parficulars

Salary, wages and bonus*®

212181

1.875.36

Directors remuneration® 264.09 282.22
Canteibation to providsnt and other furds 11545 $7.45
Defined benefit plan expenses 3774 32.76
Workmien ang staff welfare expenses 127.97 141.30
Total 1,667.66 2,419.09
* Refer note 34 for payments made to Related partics

28. Finunce ¢osts {Rs. In lakhs)
Particutars. “3tst| Bos ihtyeaj' nﬁed 3&:
lnterest on

- Verm loan 674.63 939.60
- Others 485.66 568.57
Net [oss on toreign currency translation and transactions - 78.07
Bank and docunentation chasges 10111 103.07
Totai 1,261.40 1,682.31

29, Degrecmhon and amorllsatlon expenxe

Particulars

Deprociation on property, plant and squipment 952.82 850,48
Amartisation on intangibie assets 23.13 19.98
Tatal 975.95 870.46

Zi: ¢
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¥ASH PAKKA LVIMITED
(Formerly known as Yash Papers Lintited)

Notes forming part of the fingnciol statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

30. Other expenses

Particulars
Operating Expenses
Power and Fusl 4,162,837 4,467.12
Efftuent Treatrent Expenscs 89.13 51.74
Repairs and Maintenance
- Buitding 31.20 24.43
- Machinery 176,62 319.24
+ Others 320.56 3373t
Freight. Handling and Other Sales and Distribution expenses 711.60 71117
Comnission on saies 172.84 196.52
Others
Rent 20,07 17.27
Insarsnee 4547 34.73
Travelling and Conveyance 273,15 27243
Legal ang Professional Charges 190.99 203.43
Auditor's Remuneration (refer note below) 175 6.55
Subscription amd Donalion 87,93 70.43
Amonisation of deferred income on EPCQ licenye 20.82 26.02
Research and development expenses 1 23.19 39.50
Printing and Stationery 29.74 2441
Communication cost 21.83 32.63
Advertiseaent and Publicity 5.73 12.46
Loss on Assets discarded/scrapped 532 15.11
Loss on sale of export incentives .77 2.27
Exchange Fluctuation {net) 10.54 ~
Fair valuation of investments 0.02 -
Provision for impairement of non financial assets 15.97 5.00
lrrecoverable Trade receivables and other balance balances 39725 -
Pravision on doubtiut receivables and others 15.02 5.7
Miscellangous Expenses 95.08 67.88
Total 7,133.46 £,949.11
Note:
Axditor's romuneration.comprises:
As Auditors
For Limited Review
For cettifivation
Total




YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of ihe fina pcial statemenis for the year ended 31st Maich, 2020

31, Tax Expenses

() Am

ognized in prafit and loss

Current fax expense
Current year
Changes in estimales relating to prior years

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Tax expense recognized in the income statement

685.13 541.59

29.35 2.10

Total 714.48 543.69
477.33 (131.58)
Total 477.83 {131.58)
1,192.01 412.11

in other comprehensive i
Rl bull L L L e

Sl i 1
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

(62.69)

(44.43;

(9.98)

(2.90)

{12.88)

(62.69)

(4442

{9.98)

2.90)

(12.38)

\eT



YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formerly kaown as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the finamcial statements for the year ended 31s¢ March, 2020

31. Tax Expenses
(c) Recaaciliation of effective tax rate

;R_s 1a Lakbs)

i’roﬁt béfﬁre tax

3,953.84

2,483.09

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 21.54% 851.66 21.54% 334.86
Tax effect of:

Deferred tax 11.62% 459.27 -5.30% (131.58)
Due to permenant differences -1.56% {61.70) 0.00% -
Adjustment of 43B assets pertaining to previous year -2.11% {83.42) 5.42% ) 134.60
Others 0.20% 7.94 036%) 833
Effective income tax rate 29.69% 1,173.78 22.02%( 546.71

The applicable tax rate for the Company for the year ended 313t March, 2020 was 29.12% (Previous Year: 29.12%). The Company pays lax as pea the provisions of MAT and therefore the applicable
1ax rute is 21.54% (Previous Year: 21.54%). The tax rate has been reduced to 22% from September 2019. However the Company has decided jo continue with the old rates on account of unabsorbed

depreciation and unutilised MAT credit.

Deferred tax (AssetVLiabilities

On difference between book batance and tax balance of PPE 2,136.21 118.29 - 2.254.50

Provision on emploves benefits (67.79) (51.99) 1826 (101.52) 101.52 -
Unabosorbed business losses and depreciation 16.99 (16.99) ) 0.00 i =
Unused tax credits (1,368.45) 324.88 . {1,043.57) 1,043.57 .
Intcrest to bank (160.98) 63.49 . (97.49) 97.49 -
Others (3020 3.34 = (26.86) 26.86 0.00
Tax assets (Liabilities) (Net) 525.78 44103 18.26 985.06 1.269.44 2,254.50

8T



YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formexly lcmown as Yash Papers Limiced)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

31. Tax Expenses

Deferred tax (Asset)/Liabititics
On difference between book balance and tax balance of PPE 1,786.12 350.08 - 2,136.21 - 2,136.21
Provision on employee benefits -28.93 -3595 -2.901 -67.78 67.79 -
Unabosorbed business Josses and depreciation -348.73 36572 16.99 -16.99 -
Unused tax credits -824.27 -544.18 -1,368.45 1,368.45 -
[nterast to bank 66.38 -227.36 -160.98 160.98 -
Others : 3.89 -34.09 - -30.20 30.20 -
Tax assets (Liabilities) (Net) 654,46 -125.78 -2,90 525.78 1,610.43 2,136.21

(€¢) Deferred tax asset created on unused business losses
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Netes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

32. Earnings per share

Eikd

Prafit for the year 2,761.83 2,070.98

Eyuity shares ar the beginaing of the year (108.) 3,52,40,000 3.52,40,000

Equity shares issued during the year - -

Equity shares at he et of the year (nos.) 3,52,40,000 3,52,40.0600

Weighted average equity shares for the purpese of calculating basic 3,52,40,000 3,52,40,000

earnings per share (nos.)

Weighted average cquity shares for the parpose of calenlating diluted 3,52.40,000 3,52,40,000

earnings per share (avs.)

Earnings per share-basic {face value of Rs. 10/ cach) (Rs.) 7.84 5.88
7.84 5.38

Curnings pev shavg-diluted ¢face value of Rs. 10/~ sach) (Rs.)




YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the linancial statements as on 31st March 2020
33. Employee Benefit Dischosures

L. Defined Contribution plas
The Company rmakes contributions towards provident fund to defined contribution retirement plan for the qualifying
employes. The Providsnt fund contributions are made o Government administered employees' provident fund, Both the
emplovees and the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fuad plan equal o a specified percentage of
the covered employees salary,

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year under
‘Contribution to statf provident aad other funds' (Refer note 27)

Employer's voolribution to Provident Fund ' ' ~$5.77 75,90
Total 85.77 75.90

113, Defined benefit plans

The company operates funded gratuity plan for qualifying employees, Under the plan, the employces arc cntitled to
retirement benefits depending upon the aumber of years of service rendered by them subject to minimum specified
number of years of service.

No other post retirement benelits are provided to these employees.

The actuarip! valuation of plan assets and the present value of defined benefit obiigation weee carried out at 3ist
March. 2020 by the certified actuarial valuer,

The present value of the defined denefit obligation, related current service cost and past service cost were measured
using the projected unit credit methed.

{A) Movements in net defined benefit (asset)/ Mability =

Particulars .

Defined obligations at the beginning of the year ’

Currend service vost 37.47 2063

Interest cost 26.06 22.02

Past service costs

Benefits paid (58.39) (6.22)
« changg in demographic assumptions (0.24) -

- change ia financtal assumplions 36.18 2.76

= experience variance 23.65 8.68

|Pefined benefit obligation as af end of the year 407.57 342.84

{B) Movements in the fair value of plan assets _
Particulars ’ S

Fair value at beginning of the year
lavestment income

Return on plan assets

Actual ceturn on plan assets
Actuavial gainf{loss) on plan assets
Contributions by the employer
Other adjustments -
Benefits paid (38.39) (6.22)
Fair value of plan assefs a5 at end of the year 348.70 33840
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements as on 31t March 2020

33. Employec Benefit Disclosures
(C) Amount recogmud in the balance slleel

Particalars

Present value ofdcﬁned benefit obligaxicn as at end of the ycar

" 342,84

Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 348.70 3N
As at year end {58.87) {3.44)

AD} Amounts recognized in ﬂw statement of proﬁt and loss

Particulars

Current service cost
Past service cost
Net interest income/ (cost) on the net defined benefit Hability (Assct)

3748

0,26

Total

37.74

Particulars

{E) Amouats mogmzed in other ctvmuebenswe income

Actuarial (gains) / losses due to :
- ¢hange in demographic assumptions

- change in financiat assumptions 36.18 276
- experiensy variance 23.65 8.68
Return on plan asscts 3.1 (1,46
Tetal 62.69 9.98

(F) Category of plan assets
The Compaoy's !an assets in respect of p
Particolars '

Administered by Life Insuranve Corboratidn of india *

Government of India Securities 0% 0%
State Governmenl securities 0% 0%
Special Deposit Scheme 0% 0%

*The Company is unable 1o abtain the details of plan assets from the Life Insurance Corporation of India and hence the

disclosure thereo! is not made.
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial staterments us on 31at March 2020

33. Employce Benefit Disclosures

{G) Sensitivity ana_b_i_s_i_s
Particulars ' TG
DBO On base assumptions
A, Discount Rate (- / + (%)
Discount Rate Increase 371.39 31700
1. Effect due to 1% increase in discount rate -8.88% -7.54%
Discount Rate Decrease : 450,01 37295
2. Effect due to 1% decrease in discount rate 10.44% 8.78%
B. Salary Growth Refe
Salary Growth Rate Increase 448.50 37221
I. Effect due to 1% increase in discount rate 10.04% 8.57%
Satary Growth Rate Decrease 37169 31700
2. Effect due to 1% decrease in discount rate -3.80% -7.51%
|C. Atrrrion Rate
Attrition Rate Invrease 41295 34926
L. Etfect due to 50% increase in discount rate 1.32% 1.87%
Atlrition Rate Decrease 401.44 335.59
2. Effect due to 50% decrease in discount rate -1.50% -2.12%
D. Mortality Rate
Monatity Rate increase 408.52 344.00
{. Effees due to 10% increass in discount rate 0.23% 0.34%
Mortatity Rate Decrease 406.60 341.66
2. Elficct due to 10% decresse in discount rate - 24% -0.34%
(H) The expected future cash flows as at 315‘ Mal'th 201 we —
|Semmary of Assets and Tiakilities: .~ ~"- - - s JAYap e R hE ).
2015-16 . {40.28)
2016-17 (66.79)
2017-18 (40.70)
201819 (3.44)
2019-20 _ (58.87)

cted Cash flows ever the next

[ year

2105 years

§to 10 yeass
[More than 10 years

(H) Actuarial assumptions
Acwarial valuation as 4t the year-end was done in respect of the aforesaid defined benedit plans based on the foliowing

assumplions:
& Ry
"ﬂ

* b f’. AL :-_f)
.‘7\ seft
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements as on 31s¢ March 2020

33, Employee Benefit Disclosnres
i) General assumption:

Particulars

Discount rate (per anntr} 6.60% 7.60%
Withdrawal rate 2.00% 2.00%
Rate of increase in compensation 5.00% 5.00%

it) Morwlity rates considered are as per the published rates in the India Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 (Previous
year: India Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) (Modified) ULT. ) mortality table.

iii) Leave policy: Leave balance as at the valuation date and each subsequent year following the valuation date to the
extent nol availed by the employes accumulated up o 3 (st Decomber 2019 is available for encashment on separation
from the Company up to a maximum of 30 days.

iv) The discount rate should be based upon the market yields available on Government bondy at the accounting date
with 2 erm (s matches that of the liabilities, )

v} The contribution to be made by the Company for tunding its liabilities for gratuity during the financla) year 2019-20
amounts to Ks. 20 lakhs (PY Rs. 80 lakhs).

vi) The expected rate of retum on plan assets 1s based on market expectation, at the beginning of the year, for refurns
over entire lite of the related obligation.

vig) The assumption of fuwure salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation. seniority,
promotion, supply and demand and other relevant factors. '

viii} Liability on account of long term absences has been actuarially valued as per Projected Unit Credit Method,

ix} Short term vompensated absences have been provided on actual basis.

¥
2
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Fermesly Known us Yash Papers Liniteld}

Notes forming part of the Gnancial stutensents s« on 31t March, 2020

35, Financial Instruments
{i} Capital Management

The Compay's anltal managewan is intended to ereote vilue for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of [oag-term and short-erm ma!s of the Company.
The Comp the of capital required on the basis of anaual eperating plans and loag-term product and otner stratogi plaas. The
tunding requarements are met throngh equity and other longermishort-term borowings. The Compaay's policy is airmed a1 eumbmwonol short-term and kong-
ternm bomowgs

Uhe Cumpany monitors the Gapital structure on the basiz of totat dedt to equity ratic and maturity profile of the overall debt portiotic of the Company.

Total barrowngs ineiudes all long and shost-term borrowvings as disclosed in motes (6 to the Goancial statements.

The capilnl of the pioy comsists of debt, which inchsdas the | includi & bak cash and cath squivalents
ehnding shoet 4osm bank deposits, equity compriaing issued capital and recerves- Tho yling retio for lhe yuar i: a3 nnder:

b 9.760.01 11,262.31
Less. £ash aud cash equivalent inciudimgs short term deposits (pestncted) 407.47 340.71
Ned debi {A) 9.352.54 11,83¢.60
Tol iy (B 11,862.99 9,370.43
Debt Equity Ratia (A/B) 03¢ L33 ]

{ii) Cutepeoriex 4f financial instruments

Calculation of Fair Valugs

The fare valwes of W Jinancial assels and liabitities are defingd as (e price that woukd be received to sefl an assel or pail 1o transter 2 iability in an orderty
vansich between market pasticipants at the measurement date. The following methods ami assumplions wers wserl Lo estimate the fair values of fnaocial
anshuments:

at The fan values of iy in quoted i

in cyquity shares is based on the current bid price of respactive i 48 ar th ropo date.

b) The tair value uf the long-term bomowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impadted due to iatarest rate changes and will not be significantly different
from their camyng ampunts as thete is o significant change in the underlying credit risk of the Company {since the date of inceplion of the loans).

ch The tar vakie of loans From banks and other financiat indebtedness as well os othes oot cutrent financial liabilitics ik estimated by discounting fidure cath
flows using, rates currantly availabfe for debt or similar terms and cemaining maturities,

d) Cash anid cash aquivalents, trade receivables, other financial asscts, trade payables and other financial lisbilities have fair valnes that approximate 10 their

cnaying amounts due to their short-teem nature.

Pacticulary - :

Finungial Assety

Financiof assets measwred al kair value

[nvestments measured & FVTPL - 0.10 - 012
Financinl aseets measnred st amortized cosi

Teade Receivables 1,773 88 - 1,549.81 -
Cash any cash oquivalears 2867 - 13.15 -
Bank batances other than cash and cash equivalents 37830 | - 327.56 -
Otfier financial assets 169.28 - 15711 -
Taial 2,350.63 0.10 2,048.23 0.52
Finaouial Liabilities

Finanviul liabilities messured at amortized cust

Borsowings 9,760.01 - 11,362.31 -
Trade and otlier payablss 847.23 - 1,312.47 .
{ther financiat liabiléties 1.967.91 - 1,783.1% -
[Total 12,574,158 “ 14.957.68 -
Fair value T ized in the hal shest:

The following table providey an poakysis of fi ial i ts that are baex paition at fair valae, groupod into Levels | (0 3

based o 1lic degroe 10 which the fair value is observable.

-Level | faic value measurements are thosy derived from quoted prices (unadjusied) in astive markets for idzaticat asscts or Mabilities, =
<Level 2 fuir value measurements & those desived from inputs other thag guoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability,

cither directly (L. as pricos) or indirectly (i-e. deryved from pnces)

-Leve) 3 fuir vadue are thase derived from val
market data (unobservisble inputs).

‘that inclwde inputs for the psset oc lisbility that are not based on obsarvable
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YASH FAKKA LIMITED
(Formedy Known as Yash Papers Limited)

Nutes forming part of the finnuciai statements ns on 3158 Murch, 2020

34, Finanelal Instruments

Partioulpzs. " |

As ot 3lat Mardi, 2020
Asaets a1 fudy value
Jivesiments aseasuied ot BYTPL

Ay al 3ts1 March, 2019
Assers at fair value
invusiments measuted at FYTPL

(sis} Fi wl risk t obj

The Company's principal fi ial liabilities prise of loan from banle and financiaf institations, and trade payablcs. The main purpose of these financial
teabilities is |0 caise Anance for the Campany's opeeations. The Campany s vacious Srancial asscts such as trade reocivables, cash and shert tanm deposils,
which anse directly from its aperations.

The main risks ansing from Compenys financial instmments are foreign cBrrency ngk, credin rigk, market nsk, intesest rate nisk 1nd liquidity risk. The Board
of Directars faview and agree policies for managing each of these rigks,

(a) Credit risk:

Credit 1isk 15 the risk of financial loss to the Company it a terpacily v a it | instrument fails to nveet ils contraciual obiigations, and arises

pemuipaly hony the Company's wade arnd oihes metwblu cash 'amu mh equhm nd oher bank balantes. The maximum expoiure to aredit risk in case

of ol the finsncal mstruments d bebow 1s «ctedd to 1hiedr respective tamying amount.

Trade aug Othr jccervables

Customer mdll 1s managed by each business unit subgect to the Comgpany's estnblished policses, procedures and coatrol relading to cussomer credit risk
. e Trode receivables are nqn-i t beacing and ace genwrally on 21 - 3¢ days crodit toem. Credit limits are estabibdied for all oustomers based on

internal ratipg cxitetin. Quistanding customes receivables are regularly monitored.

The Company the expected credit Jose of trade receivables based on historical (rendl, indusicy practices and the business cavironment in which the

entity operales. Loss rates aro based on actual credit loss expenience and past trends.

At 3151 March, 2920, the Company's top three cust s ] for Rs. §26.22 lakhs of tho trade and other receivables camying nmound (P.Y. ; Rs. 780.85

lakhsy

Expecteil credit bass assesqment [or customers:
The following walle pruvides information aboat the expozure to aed-t risk and ECLs ﬁor urndc rccclvwles
&3 ot $1st March, 3030 fbg:t :

Nellher pnl due not mmulml

Oty 161242 0% -
12 yrs 2L 5% 1.66
2103 yrs - 118 -
3yes and sbore 175.67 28% 4392
Specific provision 19.31 $0% 966
L 185] e

-ual.;im nlmh. W19

Ne&vhér mt duc not m\pur«i
Oto | wr

Lia2 yss

2103 yrs

3yrs and above

“$pecifec provision )
{Tolal lzm,ll 39.61 |

Mevement im the expected credit foss allswunce
Porticulars

Balsoce at the beginning of the year
A Provision made during the year
Dalsove at the ead of the
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Noies forming pari of the linracinl statemeats as on 313¢ March, 2020

3%. Financlai Instruments

QOther financied assets

The Compacy maiitaing exposure in cash and cash equivalents anyd teem deposits with banks.

The Conipaay beld cash and caglh equivalents of Rs. 28.67 takhs at 3)st March, 2020 (P.Y.: Rs. 13.15 lakhs). Cash and cash equivalents are held with cepalable
audh cxediteworthy banks,

Indivictual visk lmmits are set for each Pty based on faanciat position, credit rating and pas sxperience. Credit limits and conceniration oF expoyunes
are activaly { by the Manag of the Company.

Qther than trade snd other receivablis, thie Conpany 125 no other finaucial assets thar sre past due but not inipaired.

(by Market risk:
Markel Risk (5 Uie nisk thak the fair value or future cash flows of a Enaacial i will 9] b of changes in market priocs, Market fisk
comprises thrce types of nsk: currency sk, intecest rate fisk amd price rigk,

(1} Forcign corrency risk .

The Campaav s exposed to currency nsk on of its opexating aod finacing activities. The fanttional of the C is [ndian Rupes.
Company's axposure s manly denomanated in U.S. dollars (USD). The LIS axchange rata bas changed sut ially in recent periods and mauy cominue to
fluctunte substanmially 1n the furure.

The Compony does nol uge d ve ki wl te for trading or speculative purposes.

The earrying of the Company’s financial assets and fi L Giabilities d din foreign curvencies at the reporting date sre as follows:

Piirticu

s 1741

Exeo .77 N - -
ALLY 1].t0 - - -
Tatal 349.10 165.56 117,11 1,108.04

T foflowing 1ablo details the Company™s sensitlvity to a 5% and ¢ in the fuactionat y against 1he col foroign
and pavables. 5% 15 e semsitivity rale used whon reponting foreign currency risk internally to key t personnel and represeats management's

of the bly possible change in forcign exchange caes. The sensitivity analysis includes only cutstanding foreign currancy descminated
monetasy items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign curmency rafes_ A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
and ofher cquily where the respective fanctional curvency slrength by 5% agains the relevant foreign y. For & 5% weakeniag of the functional

currancy against ihe relevani currency. there would be en equal and upposite impact on the profit and other equity, and fho balances below would be nogative.

'I.|.n]1tlu:t.n;| prufit before tax
Ush
Euco
AED !
Total 9.18 {49.55)]

pRLL
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Notes forming part of the finuncial statements as en 3 {sy March, 2020

35. Finaacial Inscruments
¢I1) Laterest rate risk:

Interest tate risk is measured by using the cash fow seasitivity for changes in variable inierest cases. Any movement in the referencs rates could bave an impact
nu the Company’s cash Aows a5 well ae costs.

teresl gitivi

As o1 3kst March, 2020 and 2019, Gancial lisbility of Rs.$,235.32 Lakhs and Rs. [1,363.35 Lakhs, respectively, were subject to variable intevast rates.
incresserdeceease of 25 0asis poims in intevest rates at the balance sheed date would resuit in decrssesfincrease in profit/(loss) bafors tax of Rs.23 .09 lakhs and
Rs. 28 4£ Lakhs for the yem ended 3 (3¢ March. 2020 pad 2019, respectively

The nek pravided asswmy o paralled shill uf 25 basis poincs igronsst mte. This caleulatton also Hist tie change ool af the balance sheet dale
ang has been calewated based on risk exposures outstaading as ai that dare. The period end balances are not necessarily representaiive of the avaraps deln
ougstandmg dusiag the peniod.

This analysis assumes that oll other variables, in particulsr forcign y rafes, remain constant,

(Note: The impact is indécated on the profit{fogs} before tax basisy.

(1ER} Liquidity risk:

The Company follows a conservauve policy of easusding sufficien: lguidity &2 all times taough a strategy of profiuabls growth, efficient liquidity af a1l times
through 7 strategy of profilable wrowth, effrcient working capital managemett as well as prodent capital exponditure. The Company has a cash credit facility
with hnks 1o support 3y temparary fundiog requirements.

The Company beliaves tha current cash and cash equivalents, fisd up b ing linea and cash Now that is genermed from operations is sufficicat to meet
requiremants, Accurclinply, hiquidity risk is perceived to be low.
kagpuidity table.

The Tulbou-mg-iahlas <etaid ihe Company's semaintag contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The tebies have been drawn up based on the cash flows of
tinancial liabilities based on the earliest date an which the Company can be required fo pay:

Finanvial instrumenty;

Borrowings 544185 3.74747 524.69
Trade and other prvables M - -
Other financial fiabilities 1,967.91 - .
Tutal finyncinl Sabitities 02.9% 374747 22463

Partlculors

D74 e h e,
a2 P ES

L o
Finanaal instruments:

Borrowings 3,996.88 336047

Traade and olber payabies 131287 -

Other financial Gabilihes ) 1,283 -

Yotal fipancial lizhilities 900222 5,366.47 498,%¢ 14,957,658 |
(V) Other price viski

The Company is not expased o any significan! equity price risks arising fram equily investments, as on 31st March 2020, Equity investments are hedd for
stratcgic cuther than tading purposes. The Company dues not astively tade thess investzonts,

RAuity price sensitivity analvis:

There is mininum cxpomice to equity price risks as at e reporting date or as at the previous reporting date.

s TRy

ABAN S 2T
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(Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming part of ibe financisl statements as on 315t March, 2020
36. Segmental Information

Business S¢gment

The Company has determined following reporting segments based on the information reviewed by the Company’s Ohief Operating Decision
Maker (‘CODM').

a) Paper, Pulp and other products

b) Moulded Products

The above business segments have been identified considering :
a) the nature of products

t] the differiog risks and returns

c) the inmternai organization and management structure. and

d) the inteennl financial reporling systems

‘The CODM, who is respongible for nllocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as Jagdeep
Hira (Managing Dirsetor & CEQ), as explained in the Directors” Report section.

The measurement pringiples of segments ace consistent with those used in Significant Accounting Poticies.

(R, In lakhs)
Partienlars -
REVENUE 23,736.76 2,373.718 26,110.50 23.853.32 1,689.83 25,543.15
RESIHTS
Profit/ loss before interest $,463.94 (149.06) £,314.99 4,482.12 (253.01) 4,229.11
Less: interest (742.11) {519.28) (1,261.3%) (1,148.92) (533.38) {1,682.30)
Unaliocable Expenses 0.00 0.00 {99.55) 0.00 000 {63.72)
Total profit before tax 4,721,73 (668.34) 3,953.85 3,333.20 {786.39) 2,483.09
Provision for taxation
Current 0.00 0.00 685.13 0.60 0.00 541.59
Deferred tax 0.00 0.00 471.53 .00 0.60 (131.58)
Earlier years 0.00 0.00 2935 0.00 0.00 2.10
Net Profit 4,721.73 {668.34) 2,761,383 3.333.20 (786.39) 2,070.98
Other information .
Assets 21,135,08 4,767.20 25,902.28 20,631.71 5,337.43 26,969.14
Unallocable Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.00 6.00 $5.95
Linbilitics 7,347.29 5,600.87 12,948.16 10,699.99 6,352.76 17,052.78
Unallocable Liahilities 0.00 0.00 1,291.11 0.00 0.00 631.90

z/pﬁSGC&
)ﬁ/ %
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Furmerly lknown as Yash Papers Limited)

Notes forming purt of the flinancisl statements as on 31st March, 2020

36. Segmental Information
Additional Information by Geographies

Adthough the Company’s operations are managed by product area, we provide additional information based on geographies.

Revenue by peopraphical market

Withia India 20,696.60 20,870.52
Cuside India 4,542.08 4,155.06
Totwd 25,238.68 25,025.58

All nun cunrent assets of the Company are located in India.

Reverue from major producis

The following is an analysis of the Company’s revenue from continuing operations from its major products.

Pagper. pu.lp_z and other products

Faa s ML )
23.314.45

23.354.12

Total

23,314.45

23,354.12

Revenue from major customers

‘The Company is not reliant on revenues fronl transactions with any single customer and does not receive 10% or more of its revenve from
transaciions with any single customer in case of Paper and Pulp. The transactions from single customer for moulded products is as follows:

Partivulars
T P71 e
Y ash Compostables Limited 1,801.96
Total 1,801.96 1,936,00




YASH PAKKA LIMITED (Formerly known as YASH PAPERS LIMITED)
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

37. Disclosure in terms of Tud AS 115 on the ncconnting of revenae from Cortracts with Custemers

1. Dissggrepated rewvenue mfomahon for Revenue from Contracts wxlh Custumers

Particulrry . . . 3 R

Types of Goods

Paper 20,163.46 20,233.13

Puip 2,724.61 2.786.86

Egp Tray 237.08 253.27

Bagpasse Pith Pallets 149.30 BO.85

Mouyided products 1,924.23 1,671.47
Total] 25,238.68 25,025.58 |

Sales by Geographical location

India 20.696.6¢ 20.370.52

Qutside india 4.542.08 4,155.06
Total 25.238.68 25,025.59

Sale Channels

Directly to Consumers 1,850.45 1,680.91

Through intermediaries 23,388.23 23,344.68 |
To!n_l'; 25,238.68 25025.59

Sales by performance obligation

Upon Shipment/ Dispatch 25.238.68 25,025.59

Upon Delivery - -
Total 25.238.68 25,025.59

1. Reconcilirtion between réveaue with customers and contract price:

(s In [akhs)

Particulars . th; ;7 3
Revenue as per contracted prwe 23,265.53 23, 038 42

Adjustments

Discounts/ Rebaies (26.83) (12.83}
Revenue from contracts with Customers 25,238.68 25,025.59

111. Reconciliation of the revenee from contracts with the amonnts disclosed in the segment information

Particulars

Total revenue from comracts wtth Luslomer

RS In loliks

et

25,025.59

Total revenus as per Segment -
- Paper, pulp and othier products 23.314.45 23.354.11
- Mowlded products 1.924.23 1.671.47
IV. Contract Balances

. (Rs. In lakhs
Particulars 3166 March, 2020 Mieeh; 2019
Trade Reaeivables 1.773.88 1,549.8\
Contract Liabitties 170.26 1.317.07
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED (Formerly known as YASH PAPERS LIMITED)
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

38. Disclosera in tevns of Ind AS (16

Effoctive 01st April 20t 9, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 — Leases and applied it to all lease contracts existing on
0ist Aprii 2019 using modified retrospective method. The Company is not required to restate the

previeus figures. There is no materiat impact on transition.

QOperating Leases

As Lessee

Short term leases:

The Company has obtained premises for its business operations under operating ieases of low value, These are 10t non-
cancelable and are rencwable by mutual consent of the parties.

The same are shown under 'Rent’ in the Statemens of Profit and Loss as tollows:

Lease rent

As Lessor
The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payaments, showing undiscounted lease payments to be received
afler the reporting period.

Within one year
Between one 1o five years
Beyond five years

Fmanee Leases

Amounis recognised in the Balance Sheet

A company has finance lease arrangemeant tor various land leases for terms of 61- 74 years . The cesrying amount of these
asseis are shown below:

Rs. In Lakh:

Gross Carrying Amount
Avcumulated Depreciation
Depreciation recopnized in statement of profit and loss
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YASH PAKKA LIMITED
{Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)
Notes forming part of the finaucial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

39, Expenditure on Resesrch and Development

Capital .Expen.di.tum.
Revenue Expenditure

40, Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In pursuance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and CSR Policy of the Company it i required to spend two percent of the average net profits for the three immediately preceding
financial years towards CSR activities.

Since the company has earned profits in preceding previous years, gross amaount required to be speat by the company tcwards CSR activities during the year is Rs. 36.62 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.
19.76 lakhs}). The company has made CSR expenditure during the year of Rs. 40 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 31 takhs),

Cla\ms agmnst the Company rm aa:h)owlcdged 23 delm

« VAT 183.00 171.53
- Guarantees given by Banks ' 651.29 653.29
- Letter of Credits 499.34 721.32
[Total 1,331.63 1,552.14

42. Capital and other commitments _

Esiimaled value of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account (net of advance paid)

14



YASH PAKKA LIMITED
(Formerly known as Yash Papers Limited)
Notes forming part of the financial siatements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
43. The Company has analysed all parameters associated with this risk due to Covid-19 and has assessed that Covid- 19 and the business changes thereafter will have no material impact on

the going concern of the company.

44, The Company had fodged an insurance cfaim of Rs. 3.8 crores against loss of PPE due to fire and was accounted as [nsurance Claim receivable in financial year 2017-18. Since the said
claim has not been admitted by the insurance company, the same has been written off during the year. Simultaneously, an equivalent amount payable to the vendor for the said PPE, which,
as per mutual consent with the company, was to be paid on receipt of the said insurance claim, has also been written back.

45. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 20th June, 2020 approved the draft scheme of merger by absorption of 'Yash Compostables Limited with the Company subject to
receipt of necessary approvals under appliceble laws, The Appointed date of the Scheme is 1st April, 2020 or such other date as the adjudicating body(ies) may direct or fix, for the purpose
of amalgamation of Yash Compostables Limited with the Company under the merger Scheme.

46. Figures for the previous period are re-arranged/ re-grouped, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current period's classification and disclosures.

1§T
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As per our attached report of even date For ang on behalf of the Board

o A

For C N K & Associates LLP Ved a .
Chartered Accountants Executie Vi¢e chairman
Firm Registration No.: 101961 W/W 100036 DIN; 6182260

Place: Ayodhya

Dated 20th June 2020

Ty Liad,
" . & "

Himaonshu Kishnadwala Bt B Jignesh Slah
Partner A gf-:%;‘/ Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.: 37391
Place: Mumbat _ Place: Mumbai
Dated 20th June 2020 Dated 20th June 2020

OF F'INA/\(".H}L E Al e e

J-gdﬁ}tkk
Manaying Directdr & CEO

DIN; 07539849
Place: Ayodhya
Dated 2(th June 2020

achin Kemar Srivastava
Company Secretary

Placé: Ayodhya
Dated 20th June 2020

RO 20

TST




8/12/2020

State Bank of India 253
ANNEXURE- 19A

Welcome : YASH PAPERS LTD. {1951) 0w More

CASHIER

Youarehere: / Reports / Query By Account

e-PayOrder Details

e-PayOrder Detalls

e-PayQrder Number CNABCGOTO3
Debit Status Success
11-Aug=2020
BSELIMITED
One Lakh Ninety Elght Thousand Nine Hundred only 1,98,500.00
00000010156982518
MERC CASHIER TBHART]
oM 1
ERCIAL BRANCH LUCKNOW MAKER 5 zer1
"CNABCGOTQ3"

. ]
Counterfoll Description BSE LIMITED
Transaction Type NEFT Funds transfer
GSTIN Number -
Debit Account Detalls

S i R Beanci Amount

00000010156982518 COMMERCIAL BRANCH LUCKNOW 1,98,500.00
Cradit Account Detalls

[y Tardd/ Brao. BARSO e Armousk Credit Siatus UTR Ne.
BSE LIMITED/BSELO3708 CMS/CMS/ICICA000104 1,38,900.00 Credited to Beneficiary Account SBIN520224723290
Privacy Statement  Terms of Service (Terms & Conditions)
@ State Bank of india Site best viewed at 1024 x 768 resolutionin 1.E 10+, Mozilla 35 +, Google Chrome 35 +
. » YashP
https:ficorp.ontinesbi.com/corpuserviewinboxtransactiondetail. htm 17

Jagdeep
Meanaging Diecor & CED
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Welcome : YASH PAPERS LTD. {1951) Knaw More

TBHARTI

State Bank of India

254
ANNEXURE- 198

enabling OTP as 2FA for transactian authorization. You are requested ta adhare this guldelina to continue the usage of INB facility. Any deviath

You arehere; / Reports / QueryByAccount

e-PayOrder Detalls

e-PayOrder Details
e-PayOrder Number CRB4267410

Dabit Status Success

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF IN

Thres Lakhs Eighty Thousand Seven Hundred and Eighty Five only

000010156982518
CASHIER
COMMERCIAL BRANCH LUCKNOW MAKER
“CRB4267410°

q

Caunterfoli Description

Transactlon Type RTGS Funds transfer
GSTIN Number -
Debit Account Detalls
Giranen
00000010156982518 COMMERCIAL BRANCH LUCKNOW

Credit Account Detalls

HaniklRrarcr Sl ode

BANDRA KURLA COMPLEX/BANDRA KURLA
COMPLEX/BKIDQ000122

SECURITIES AMD EXCHANGE BOARD OF
IN/012210210000007

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF

25-Sep-2020
3,80,735.00
TBHARTI
Authorizer 1
>
Amount
3.80,785.00
Credit
1
Amicunt Status UTH Mo,

3,80,785.00 Success SBINR12020092500091065

._» Yash Pakkg Limited

hitps-/fcorp.onlinesbi.com/corpuser/viewinboxtransactiondetail.htm

12
& Hi
Kanaging Dicector &
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Packaging with a Soul

ANNEXURE XV
REPORT ON UNPAID DUES

Sr. Particulars Details of | Amount | Reason for non-
No. dues/fine payment

1. Pending Dues of SEBI NIL NIL N.A.
2. Pending Dues of Stock NIL NIL N.A,
Exchanges |
3. Pending Dues of NIL NIL - NA
Depositories

Jagdeep Hira
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 07633849

Res. Add.-H. No. 1177,
Sector 9,
Faridabad - 121006

Date: 25" September, 2020
Place: Ayodhya

Formenly Yash Papers Limited

Yash Pakka Limited, Yash Nagar, Ayodhya 224135 (U.P), India Registerad Office: Flat No. 202, 3A/172, Azad Nagar,
+91-5278-258174 | connect@yashpakka.com . Kanpur208002, (U.P.), India
www.yashpakka.com CIN: L24231UP19B1PLC005294
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